
 

 

 
Wednesday, 10 March 2021 
 
To:   Members of the SCR - Audit and Standards Committee and Appropriate Officers 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
You are hereby summoned to a meeting of the Sheffield City Regional Mayoral Combined 
Authority to be held virtually, on: Thursday, 18 March 2021 at 11.00 am for the purpose of 
transacting the business set out in the agenda. 
 

 
Dr Dave Smith 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 
 

Webcasting Notice 
 

This meeting will be streamed live or subsequent broadcast via the Mayoral Combined 
Authority’s website. 
 
You should be aware that the Mayoral Combined Authority is a Data Controller under the 
Data Protection Act 2018.  Data collected during this webcast will be retained in 
accordance with the Mayoral Combined Authority’s published policy. 
 
By entering the meeting room, you are consenting to be filmed and to the possible use of 
those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. 
 
 

 

You can view the agenda and papers  
at www.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk  
or use a smart phone camera  
and scan the QR code: 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/


 

 

Member Distribution 
 
Councillor Allan Jones (Chair) Doncaster MBC 
Rhys Jarvis (Vice-Chair) (Independent Member) 
Councillor Ben Curran Sheffield City Council 
Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards Sheffield City Council 
Councillor Ian Auckland Sheffield City Council 
Councillor Jeff Ennis Barnsley MBC 
Angela Marshall (Independent Member) 
Councillor Austen White Doncaster MBC 
Councillor Ken Wyatt Rotherham MBC 
Councillor Allen Cowles Rotherham MBC 
Councillor Phillip Lofts Barnsley MBC 
 



 

 

 
SCR - Audit and Standards Committee 
 

 
 

Thursday, 18 March 2021 at 11.00 am 
 
Venue: 11 Broad Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 

 

Agenda 
 

Agenda 
Ref No 

Subject Lead Page 
 

1.   Welcome and Apologies  
 

Chair Verbal 

2.   Urgent Items/Announcements  
 

Chair Verbal 

3.   Items to be Considered in the Absence of Public 
and Press  

Chair Verbal 

4.   Declarations of Interest by any Members  
 

All Verbal 

5.   Reports from and Questions by Members  
 

All Verbal 

6.   Questions from Members of the Public  
 

Chair Verbal 

7.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 21st 
January 2021  

Chair 5 - 14 

8.   Actions from the previous meeting  Claire  
James 

15 - 16 

9.   Economic Impact of the Coronavirus Pandemic on 
the Economy  
 

Paul 
Johnson 

17 - 18 

10.   Progress Update on the MCA's Response to the 
Bus Review  
 

Stephen 
Edwards 

19 - 24 

11.   Assurance and Monitoring and Evaluation 
Frameworks  
 

Ruth 
Adams 

25 - 120 

12.   External Audit Update 
  

Dan Spiller Verbal 

13.   Internal Audit Plan 21/22  Andy 
Smith 

Verbal 

14.   Internal Audit Plan 20/21 Progress Report  Andy 
Smith 

121 - 128 

15.   Internal Audit Reports  Lisa 
Mackenzie 

129 - 152 

16.   Strategic Risk Monitoring  Claire  
James 

153 - 170 

17.   20/21 Annual Governance Review - initial findings  Claire  
James 

171 - 180 



 

 

18.   Internal Audit Recommendation Tracking Report  Lisa 
Mackenzie 

181 - 192 

19.   Draft Treasury Management Strategy  Mike 
Thomas 

193 - 212 

20.   Work Plan  Claire  
James 

213 - 216 

21.   Any other business    

Date of next meeting: Thursday, 10 June 2021 at 11.00 am 

At:11 Broad Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ  



SCR - AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON: 
 
THURSDAY, 21 JANUARY 2021 AT 11.00 AM 
 
11 BROAD STREET WEST, SHEFFIELD S1 2BQ 
 

 

 
Present: 
 
Councillor Allan Jones (Chair) Doncaster MBC 
Rhys Jarvis (Vice-Chair) (Independent Member) 
Councillor Ian Auckland Sheffield City Council 
Councillor Jeff Ennis Barnsley MBC 
Angela Marshall (Independent Member) 
Councillor Ken Wyatt Rotherham MBC 
Councillor Phillip Lofts Barnsley MBC 
 
Officers in Attendance: 
  
Dr Dave Smith Chief Executive MCA Executive Team 
Gareth Sutton Chief Finance Officer/S73 

Officer 
MCA Executive Team 

Dr Ruth Adams Deputy Chief Executive MCA Executive Team 
Mike Thomas Senior Finance Manager/ 

Deputy S73 Officer 
MCA Executive Team 

Claire James Senior Governance & 
Compliance Manager 

MCA Executive Team 

Emily Hickey Governance and Compliance 
Officer 

MCA Executive Team 

  
 
In Attendance 
 
Lisa Mackenzie  Internal Audit 
Dan Spiller Internal Audit 
Andrew Smith  External Audit 
Andrew Shirt (Minute Taker)   
 
Apologies: 
 
Councillor Josie Paszek Sheffield City Council 
 
 
1 Welcome and Apologies 

 
 The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.  

 
There were no apologies. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



 

2 Urgent Items/Announcements 
 

 None. 
 

3 Items to be Considered in the Absence of Public and Press 
 

 None. 
 

4 Declarations of Interest by any Members 
 

 None. 
 

5 Reports from and Questions by Members 
 

 None. 
 

6 Questions from Members of the Public 
 

 None.   
 

7 Minutes and Actions of the Previous Meeting held on 29th October 2020 
 

 RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 29th October 2020 be 
agreed as a true record. 
 

8 Matter arising and actions 
 

 A report was presented to provide Members with progress updates on 
Actions/Matters arising from the Audit and Standards Committee held on 29th 
October 2020.   
 
Members queried when a report on the Bus Review implementation would be 
presented to the Committee.   
 
Following discussion, it was agreed that a briefing note would be produced and 
circulated to Members in order to provide assurance, set out any risks and 
provide an update on the deliverability of the other strands of work within the 
Bus Review.  ACTION: R Adams.   
 
Members raised concerns in relation to SYPTE’s handling of risks around bus 
usage and its consequences.  The Chair suggested that a discussion takes 
place with A Marshall and C James after today’s meeting to disseminate 
concerns to the MCA Board.  ACTION: C James & A Marshall.   
 
Members noted that a report detailing economic analysis of the impact of the 
Coronavirus pandemic on the risks to the economy was currently being 
developed.  The report would be presented to the Committee following receipt 
of lagging economic data for Quarter 3.   
 
RESOLVED – That Members noted the updates on Actions/Matters arising 
from the Audit and Standards Committee held on 29th October 2020.   
 

Page 6



 

9 Integration Of The PTE With The MCA Update 
 

 A report was presented to provide Members with an update of progress and 
next steps for the integration of South Yorkshire Passenger Transport 
Executive (SYPTE) fully within the MCA.  The report confirmed the agreement 
of the outline project plan agreed by the MCA Board in September 2020.   
 
Members were informed that activity to integrate SYPTE fully within the MCA 
was currently in the very early stages of development, given the complexity and 
scale of the task.   
 
The report provided details of the aim and delivery objectives of the activity.   
 
Assurance was provided that consideration would take place to implement any 
new governance processes and any new risk management processes prior to 
integration.   
 
A draft programme approved by the MCA Board had been broken down into 
workstreams, linked to:  

 Governance  

 HR and Organisational Development  

 Finance and Assets 

 Branding and Communications  

 Programmes  
 
A detailed project plan based on the above workstreams was currently in 
development and would include a series of milestones where decisions would 
be required by the MCA Board.   
 
Assurance was provided that risk management would feature independently in 
all of the above workstreams.   
 
R Jarvis commented that, following integration, audit and scrutiny of SYPTE 
would be undertaken by this Committee.  Therefore, he advised that a full risk 
review be undertaken to make sure that from an organisational point of view, 
health and safety was not compromised.  He was also of the opinion that risk 
management should be undertaken as a whole, rather than featuring 
independently in all of the workstreams.   
 
In response, R Adams said that significant independent advice would be sought 
to examine the programme plan to ensure that the MCA’s proposal was an 
assured process for the activity, including risk management.  Work was also 
underway to appoint an interim capacity to lead on the HR workstream.  A risk 
review of the whole integration would be undertaken.  R Adams agreed to 
provide the Committee with written assurances on the activity at a later date.  
ACTION: R Adams.   
 
Members were informed that the process for integration required a Statutory 
process and an Order of Parliament to formally merge the 2 bodies.  
Engagement with MHCLG was currently underway to agree the route and 
milestones to dissolve SYPTE.   
 

Page 7



 

The timescale of the legal integration would depend on MHCLG securing 
parliamentary time following their agreement to support the proposal.  At the 
conclusion of the statutory process, all undertakings of SYPTE would transfer 
to the MCA, including assets, contracts and employees.  Until this point, 
SYPTE would legally retain its independent identity. 
 
The Committee noted that work was continuing to move towards full integration 
of the Executive Teams.  A number of services were already integrated across 
the Group, including legal, IT and HR, further work was taking place to fully 
integrate finance and marketing and communications.  
 
Planning work was commencing to integrate structures, processes and 
systems across the Group in preparation for full integration.  
 
In relation to budget allocations for the integration, Members were informed that 
budget projections had been built into the budget planning process for 2021/22.   
 
Following a detailed discussion about the integration of the operations of the 
SYPTE’s Audit and Risk Committee into this Committee, Members’ agreed that 
they would need to scrutinise the detailed project plan at a later date, before 
they could take a view about the interventions, advice and work the Committee 
would wish to undertake at the point of integration.   
 
The Committee requested that a progress update report be presented at the 
June 2021 meeting.  ACTION: R Adams.  
 
RESOLVED – That Members note the project plan approved by the MCA 
Board, specifically: 
 

1. The aim and objectives, as outlined in section 2.1,  
2. The proposed workstreams and outline for communication, and that a 

fuller work programme and risk register would be developed in the 
coming months.   

 
10 Group Internal Audit Plan Progress Report 

 
 A Smith presented an update on the progress of the 2020/21 Group Internal 

Audit Plan.  
 
It was noted that 32 days of the planned 71 days in respect of the MCA reviews 
had been delivered and a total of 123 days of the 272 days in the joint audit 
plan, a detailed breakdown was contained within the report.  
 
Members noted that since the last meeting of the Committee, the Programme 
Management – follow up and Public Engagement and Consultation audit 
reports had been finalised both receiving significant assurance.   
 
In addition, the AMP Technology Centre review had recently been finalised and 
would be presented at the March Committee meeting.   
 
The report also included details of work in progress and changes to the audit 
plan since the last meeting of the Committee.  There was currently around 50 

Page 8



 

audit days held in contingency.   
 
Members noted that the plan was under constant review due to the Covid-19 
outbreak and the uncertainty of its impact.  There had been no work 
undertaken outside of the Audit Plan. 
 
A Smith confirmed that all audits contained within the Audit Plan would be 
completed in 2020/21, ahead of the Internal Auditor’s Annual Audit Opinion 
being presented.   
 
G Sutton requested Members to consider a proposal to utilise the audit days 
currently held in contingency in a different manner, which would achieve the 
same assurance around how the MCA manages risk and provides value for 
money in its services.   
 
Consideration was requested from Members to allow the MCA to re-deploy 
some of the audit days currently held in contingency for Internal Audit to 
undertake advisory work in relation to several identified areas, particularly with 
regard to integration activity of SYPTE into the MCA.   
 
The MCA would write formally to the Chairs and Vice Chairs of the MCA and 
SYPTE Audit Committees to consider proposals ahead of their March meetings 
and agree if this is an appropriate use of residual audit days.   
 
The Committee supported the proposals outlined above.   
 
RESOLVED – That the Committee note the progress of 2020/21 audit activity 
undertaken by Grant Thornton for: 
 

1. Joint MCA and SYPTE audits  
2. MCA audits 
3. SYPTE audits 

 
11 Internal Audit Reports 

 
 The Committee considered a report which presented the Internal Audit reports 

for Public Engagement and Consultation and, Programme Management.   
 
Members noted that the objective of the Public Engagement and Consultation 
review was to provide an independent assessment of the design and 
operational effectiveness of the MCA’s and PTE’s frameworks in place for 
conducting statutory and non-statutory consultation and engagement exercises.   
 
The audit concluded that the processes provided significant assurance with 
some improvement required.  Based on the findings, nine recommendations 
had been made.  Full details of these were contained within the report. 
 
Updates on the nine recommendations would be included as part of the Internal 
Audit tracker report presented at future Committee meetings.   
 
Members were reminded that a review of programme management 
arrangements had been undertaken and a report issued in February 2020.  A 

Page 9



 

significant assurance opinion was reported with two low risk actions agreed.   
 
A follow-up piece of work, focussing on the Transforming Cities Fund, had been 
undertaken to determine how the issues and agreed actions raised in the report 
had been implemented.   
 
Based on the progress made in the areas reviewed, a significant assurance 
opinion was provided to implement the two actions identified by the February 
2020 audit.   
 
One low risk action had now been implemented and one low risk action was 
ongoing.  Full details of these were contained within the report.   
 
RESOLVED – That the Committee considered the findings and 
recommendations of the internal audits on:  
 

1. Public Engagement & Consultation; and  
2. Programme Management.   

 
12 Internal Audit Recommendations Tracker Report 

 
 A report was submitted which presented an update on the implementation of 

the recommendations made by Internal Audit.  
 
It was noted that, at the date of finalising the report, there were eight 
recommendations agreed with management that were overdue.  Management 
had confirmed nine actions had been implemented since the last Audit 
Committee; two recommendations were not yet due.   
 
Following publication of the agenda papers, it was confirmed that Internal Audit 
had received confirmation that several of the outstanding recommendations 
had either been superseded, or had now been implemented.  The two 
recommendations in relation to the Resource Management / HR Systems had 
now been implemented; the tracker report would be updated for the March 
meeting.   
 
R Adams provided a verbal update in relation to two Inward Investment 
recommendations.  It was proposed that, subject to the agreement of the Chair 
and Vice-Chair, the recommendations would be revised and updated.   
 
Members’ asked for assurances that the MCA had the capacity to implement 
recommendations in a timely manner.   
 
In response, R Adams said that, prior to Internal Audit reports being presented, 
reports and recommendations are discussed with the lead sponsor and 
agreement reached on implementation dates with the Management Board.  
This allowed management to factor in capacity to manage the implementation 
of recommendations based on their severity.  Any recommendation dates 
missed would be escalated to the Management Board for discussion and to set 
an appropriate revised implementation date.   
 
Members noted that the overdue recommendation in relation to GDPR – new IT 

Page 10



 

Policy was still in draft format and currently awaiting Union sign-off.  R Adams 
agreed to follow-up progress with the HR Team and Union and provide the 
Chair with a progress update.  ACTION: R Adams. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Committee note the progress of the implementation of 
internal audit recommendations.   
 

13 Governance Review Process and Improvement Plan Progress 
 

 A report was presented to set out the proposed process for the Annual 
Governance Review of the financial year ending 31st March 2021.  The report 
also provided updates to the Committee on the progress against the 2020/21 
Governance Improvement Plan.   
 
Members noted that, during February and March, the MCA Executive would 
conduct an assessment of compliance with the Local Code of Corporate 
Governance; to gain assurance the effectiveness of current arrangements and 
to; identify any opportunities for improvement.  
 
This process would include: 

 A review with MCA Statutory Officers  

 A review with the Executive Team full Management Board 

 One to ones with Assistant Directors and specific team members where 
required.  

 
The initial findings of the review would be reported to the Committee in March 
2021 and an updated Code of Corporate Governance and draft Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS) was scheduled to be presented to the Audit and 
Standards Committee in June 2021. 
 
An update on the progress of the Governance Improvement Plan for 2020/21 
which formed part of the AGS for the previous financial year and was presented 
at Appendix A to the report.   
 
Councillor Auckland queried if the Bus Review and integration of SYPTE into 
the MCA should be included on the AGS as two separate items.    
 
R Adams agreed to include the Bus Review and integration of SYPTE into the 
MCA as two separate items on the AGS.  ACTION: C James.  
 
A Marshall asked when the Committee would be asked to consider the 
refreshed Assurance Framework.  Furthermore, she queried if the update 
provided on the AGS should include this detail.   
 
R Adams agreed to circulate an MCA / LEP report via email to Members on the 
Assurance Framework for 2021, together with details of the timeline for its 
consideration / decision making.  ACTION: R Adams.   
 
In addition, C James confirmed that the Assurance Framework would be 
presented at the March meeting of the Committee.     
 
RESOLVED – That the Committee considered: 

Page 11



 

1. The proposed process for conducting the Annual Governance Review 
for the financial year ending 31st March 2021; and  

2. The progress against the Governance Improvement Plan for 2020/21. 
 

14 Risk Management 
 

 A report was presented to provide the Committee with an update on the progress 
of embedding the revised approach to risk management and an update on 
strategic risks.   
 
Members noted that, following the endorsement of the new approach by the 
Audit and Standards Committee and subsequent adoption by the MCA, a 
number of activities and actions had been undertaken to begin to embed the 
revised risk management approach.  Further details were set out in paragraph 
2.1 of the report.    
 
Members noted that the business planning process would conclude by the end 
of Quarter 4, at which point the plans would become operational.  At this point 
the risk register developed during the developmental stages would become the 
register for the relevant programme of work and would be reviewed and 
reported on in line with the Risk Management Policy and Process.  
 
Work would continue on the new Programme Management system to ensure 
alignment to the agreed approach.   
 
Risk sections of Business Case documentation would also be reviewed to 
ensure alignment to the agreed approach.  
 
Paragraph 2.2 of the report provided Members with a summary of the five 
strategic risk categories.  Revised Risk Management Actions Plans were 
presented at Appendices A-E. 
 
The Committee welcomed the progress being made in developing the revised 
Risk Management Action Plans.   
 
R Jarvis suggested that it may be appropriate for the Committee to undertake 
‘deep dives’ at future meetings, in relation to ‘red’ rated risks contained within 
the Risk Management Action Plans.   
 
The Chair said that it would be very helpful if the font size of the text presented 
in Appendices A-E was increased.  C James acknowledged the suggestion and 
agreed to explore as the report evolves.  ACTION: C James.   
 
R Adams provided Members with a verbal update on the Programme 
Management Risk Action Plan (Appendix D).   
 
The Committee discussed the implications around risk seven contained within 
the Budget and Financial Management Risk Action Plan.   
 
It was agreed that a report presenting the proposed MCA budget for 2021/22 
which was due to be considered by the MCA on 25th January, be circulated to 
Members via email after today’s meeting.  ACTION: G Sutton.  

Page 12



 

 
Members were informed that the report also included further detail on the 
MCA’s Financial Strategy and how the MCA was managing budget risks.  
 
RESOLVED – That the Committee:- 

1. Note the progress of embedding the revised risk management approach 
across the organisation.  

2. Note the update on strategic risks and identified any issues.   
 

15 Work Plan for 2020/21 
 

 The Committee considered its updated Work Plan for 2020/21. 
 
The following updates had been made to the Work Plan:- 
 

 The draft Treasury Management Strategy had been moved forward to the 
March 2021 meeting.   

 The Annual review of the Code of Corporate Governance had been deferred 
from the March 2021 to the June 2021 meeting.   

 The April meeting of the Committee had been brought forward and would 
now be held on 18th March 2021.   

 
RESOLVED – That the work plan be noted. 
 

 
I, the undersigned, confirm that this is a true and accurate record of the meeting. 
 
Signed  

 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 

 
Date 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Minute No 
 

Action  Status/Update  

8 Circulate a briefing note to Members in order to provide 
assurance, set out any risks and provide an update on the 
deliverability of the strands of work within the Bus Review.  
ACTION: R Adams.   

This action is picked up 
under item 10. 

8 Members raised concerns in relation to SYPTE’s handling 
of risks around bus usage and its consequences.  The 
Chair suggested that a discussion takes place with A 
Marshall and C James after today’s meeting to 
disseminate concerns to the MCA Board.  ACTION: C 
James & A Marshall.   
 

The paper at item 10 
reports that a detailed risk 
assessment will be 
developed for the 
integration of the PTE and 
MCA as part of the work on 
an assured process with 
the independent partner. 

8 Schedule a report detailing economic analysis of the 
impact of the Coronavirus pandemic on the economy 
following receipt of lagging economic data for Quarter 3.   

This action is picked up 
through item 9. 

9 Provide assurances regarding the programme plan for the 
integration of PTE and the MCA. 
 

A comprehensive paper is 
scheduled for the June 
meeting. 

9 Provide a progress update (June) on the planning work 
for the integration 

As above 

12 Follow-up progress with the HR Team and Union on the 
approval of the IT Policy and provide the Chair with a 
progress update.  ACTION: R Adams. 
 

Outstanding 

13 Include the Bus Review and integration of SYPTE into the 
MCA as two separate items on the AGS.  ACTION: C 
James.  
 

AGS preparation in 
progress. 

14 
 

Review the format and presentation of the Strategic Risk 
Registers ACTION: C James.   
 

Ongoing 

14 Circulate the report presenting the proposed MCA budget 
for 2021/22 which was due to be considered by the MCA 
on 25th January to members ACTION: G Sutton.  
 

Complete 

 

 

AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

18th March 2021 

Actions/Matters arising from the MCA Audit and Standards Committee  

held on 21st January 2021 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Purpose 

A presentation will be made at the meeting providing an analysis of the main economic impacts of 
Covid-19 and its implications for the MCA. The main themes that the presentation will cover will be 
Covid-19’s economic impact on jobs, young people, urban centres, and transport.  

Freedom of Information & Section 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 

Under the Freedom of Information Act this paper and any appendices will be made available under 
the Mayoral Combined Authority Publication Scheme. This scheme commits the Authority to make 
information about how decisions are made available to the public as part of its normal business 
activities. 

Recommendations 

The Audit and Standards Committee are asked to note the presentation. 

Audit & Standards Committee  

18th March 2021 

Presentation – Economic Impact of the Coronavirus Pandemic on the Economy 

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

1. Introduction 
  

1.1 The Bus Review, chaired by Clive Betts MP, concluded in March 2020 and made a series of 
ambitious recommendations for reform of the bus network in South Yorkshire. Due to the broad 
nature of the recommendations, the MCA decided not to respond in turn to each of the individual 
recommendations. Instead they agreed a high-level response to the review in July 2020; a set of 
6 principles that formed the basis of a 7-point plan. See Annex A for a further information and a 
progress update on the principles and 7-point plan. 
 

2. Consideration  

Progress  

2.1 Over the last 12 months, the bus network in South Yorkshire has experienced seismic disruption 
caused by the impact of social distancing and lockdown measures mandated by Government in 
response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The operating environment has been challenging due to a 
large reduction in demand and on-board capacity, resulting in a sharp decline in operator revenue. 
Despite MCA plans to adopt an accelerated timescale for delivering the 7-point plan, this has been 
hindered by the pandemic as resource has been diverted away from bus improvement work and 
into network stabilisation.  
 

Audit and Standards Committee 
 

18th March 2021  
 

Progress Update on the MCA’s Response to the Bus Review  

Purpose of Report 
 
This report provides the Audit and Standards Committee with an update on the 7-point plan that was 
agreed by the MCA in response to the Bus Review.  
 
Thematic Priority 
 
Secure investment in infrastructure where it will do most to support growth 
 
Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
Under the Freedom of Information Act this paper and any appendices will be made available under the 
Combined Authority Publication Scheme. This scheme commits the Authority to make information 
about how decisions are made available to the public as part of its normal business activities. 
 
Recommendations 
 
This report is for discussion at the Audit and Standards Committee meeting.   
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 10



2.2 Progress has still been made despite the challenging context and over the last 12 months we 
have continued to implement the 7-point plan. The MCA remains committed to improving the bus 
system in South Yorkshire and have invested c.£17m over the last 12 months to support operators 
as well as allocating c.£7m for the future protection of priority services. Most notably progress 
includes:  

 

• Preparation for integration of the SYPTE – all new recruitment is now made under the 
employment of the MCA; a single Director of Finance has been appointed to oversee 
integrated business planning and budget setting; and plans are in place to ensure 
constitutional changes to formally embed the integration by June 2021.   

• Changes in SYPTE governance – SYPTE now report to the Transport and Environment 
Board chaired by Cllr Chris Read. Formal changes to governance will take place pending 
the completion of the legislative process.  

• Refreshing each of the 4 local authority partnerships – directly linked to future recovery 
funding. The refresh will ensure that in the short term they are positioned to deliver recovery 
plans and implement service improvements.  

• System analysis commissioned – which will set the principles to shape a future South 
Yorkshire bus network, set out where customer focussed quality improvements are required 
and develop a roll out plan for zero emission buses, to meet the MCA’s net zero 
commitments. The outcomes of the analysis work will be used to inform bus recovery and 
improvement plans.   
 

Future  

2.3 Looking ahead, the anticipated National Bus Strategy from Government will be critical to informing 
the MCA’s future bus recovery and improvement strategy. Furthermore, the Committee will wish to 
note that it is possible that Government’s bus recovery funding (which will follow the current 
emergency support grant) may require the MCA’s commitment to explore statutory changes to the 
bus operating model. A paper is being prepared seeking the MCA’s views. 

2.4 Finally, to deliver the MCA’s ambitious programme of work and respond to any work arising as a 
result of the National Bus Strategy, the following additional resource has been put in place:   

• Senior Programme Director who will be solely focused on leading and implementing 
existing and future recovery and improvement plans such as those that fall out of the 
National Bus Strategy   

• Programme Manager to oversee, coordinate and monitor activity across different teams  
• Dedicated multi-disciplinary project team drawn from SYPTE and the MCA to deliver the 

different strands of work arising from both the Bus Review response and the National Bus 
Strategy  

• MCA Executive Senior Management oversight to ensure internal leadership, ownership 
and continuity  

 
3. Implications  
 
3.1 Financial 
 

Budget has already been allocated to cover the recruitment of the Senior Programme Director, who 
will in turn identify additional resource needs.   
 

3.2 Legal  
Legal advice will need to be taken when we understand more about the National Bus Strategy and 
the possible conditions associated with receiving the recovery funding.  

 

Page 20



3.3 Risk Management  
 
All significant risks concerning finance, pandemic response and changes to regulatory environment     
are captured and monitored in the strategic risk register. Specifically: 
 
Risk #3 in the Strategy Focus risk category 
‘Failure to respond effectively, as a Group, to the challenges brought about by the pandemic, for the 
public transport network and services for which the MCA Group are responsible could mean that 
transport ambitions for the region are not realised.’ 
 
Risk #5 in the Budget and Financial Management risk category 
‘Systemic loss of commercial viability in the South Yorkshire transport network due to patronage 
reductions, leading to pressure for greater public subsidy.’ 
 
Risk #4 in the Programme Management risk category 
‘Scale and complexity of work to implement the Bus Review 7 Point Plan, requiring expertise and 
resources beyond those that are available could mean a failure to effect the desired changes and deliver 
the desired SY transport network.’ 
 
Risk#3 in the Governance and Compliance risk category 
‘Failure to effectively identify and plan for the integration of the PTE with the MCA as a consequence of 
the Bus Review leading to weaknesses in governance and compliance issues as the PTE operation is 
required to comply with the legislation governing MCA.’ 
 
A detailed risk assessment / risk register will be developed for the integration of the PTE and MCA as 
part of the work on an assured process with the independent partner. 
  
 
3.4 Equality, Diversity and Social inclusion  
None  

 
3.5 Communications  
None  

 
3.6 Appendices/Annexes  
 
 Annex A – Detailed progress update on the MCA response to the Bus Review  
 
 

Report Author  Jo Kaczmarek 
Post Senior Project Officer  

Officer responsible Mark Lynam  
Organisation MCA Executive  

Email Mark.Lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 
Telephone 01142203445 

Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad 
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 

Page 21

mailto:Mark.Lynam@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Annex A  

MCA’s agreed response to the Bus Review  

Principles 

These principles set out a platform upon which further work will be undertaken to drive 
improvements on the bus network. They are distilled from the findings of the Review to identify 
at a high level, the types of measures that need to be considered if we are to deliver meaningful 
improvement to our bus system 

 1. Business as usual is not an option  
 2. More public and private investment is needed  
 3. We need to make buses a more attractive option for people  
 4. New funding sources are required  
 5. We need to set out what a good integrated bus network looks like  
 6. We need to change the way we make decisions 
 
7-point plan   
 
To deliver upon these 6 principles, the following 7-point plan is proposed, which will guide the 
MCAs work over the coming months   

1 Governance: Begin the process for integrating the South Yorkshire Passenger Transport 
Executive (SYPTE) fully within the Sheffield City Region MCA. 
 
Update:  
A significant amount of work has been undertaken to progress the integration of the 
SYPTE with the MCA Executive. This includes:  
a) A draft integration plan agreed by the MCA in September 2020 which includes 

constitutional changes and amendment of financial regulations. Maximising pre-
legislative dissolution and alignment of the MCA and SYPTE constitutional and 
financial regulations  

b) Commissioning an external, independent specialist to scrutinise the draft plan to 
ensure the process and plan for integration is fully assured as robust and 
comprehensive 

c) Alignment of financial and business planning, with the appointment of a single Director 
of Finance  

d) Single HR support – with all new recruitments being made under the employment of 
the MCA Executive  

 
2 Route Analysis: Analyse the South Yorkshire bus network to set out a ‘whole system’ 

approach that ensures buses run where people want to go both now and, in the future, along 
with achieving better integration with other modes. This will take a bottom up approach, 
focussing on each Local Authority area and the need for integrated routes across South 
Yorkshire. The analysis will look at the volume, role and timings of bus routes, including 
patronage by route, speed of journey and mode integration. The route analysis will identify 
the service needed by geographical area, before identifying the gap between where are now 
compared to where we would like to be and the cost of delivery. 

3 Quality Analysis: Identify the investment and infrastructure required to improve the quality 
of service/experience for passengers.  

4 Environmental Analysis: Identify the investment and infrastructure required to meet the 
MCAs net zero commitments.  
 
Update: 
We are in the process of commissioning these three substantial pieces of analysis, with a 
successful candidate about to be appointed to undertake the route analysis work. [There 

Page 23



may be an update on this by the time of the meeting.] These pieces of analysis will shape 
future decision making about bus improvement – for example what a good network looks 
like, what operating model is best suited to the region and what our customer service offer 
to passengers should be. It is likely net zero will feature heavily in the Government’s plans 
for bus recovery (and subsequent funding offers).   
 

5 Pricing Analysis: Consider the cost of using the regions bus services to develop a new 
pricing and ticketing framework to drive patronage and make it affordable, flexible and 
attractive. This will include a review of concessions to ensure they meet passenger needs.  

6 Model Evaluation: Work through the legal and financial implications of changing our current 
bus service delivery model using the powers available in the Bus Services Act 2017. This 
will include consideration of Enhanced Partnerships, either across South Yorkshire or in 
specific local authorities. It will also consider the long term legal and financial options for 
other models such as franchising.  

7 Cost Model: A financial planning exercise working with Local Authorities and bus operators 
to produce a new cost model to achieve the objectives set out in the above 7-point plan 
 
Update:  
These pieces of analysis will be commissioned at the earliest opportunity this year.  
No detailed work has been undertaken to investigate process of Enhanced Partnership 
and franchising in South Yorkshire due to the impact of COVID.  
It is highly likely that forthcoming Government policy changes (which have been delayed 
since Autumn 2020) will increase the pressure on the MCA to make an indicative decision 
about future operating models. It has been crucial to allow Government’s thinking to play 
out fully before deciding on a course of action.  
Initial conversations with local authorities have been started as part of the partnership 
refresh work and a paper is being prepared to go to the MCA to ask for a steer on policy 
direction 

 

 

Page 24



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1. 

 
Introduction 
 

 1.1 Each year the MCA and LEP is required by Government to update and publish its Assurance 
Framework by the 31st March.  The Assurance Framework sets out how the MCA and LEP 
will use public money responsibly, make robust decisions, achieve best value for money and 
act in an open and transparent manner.  It explains the governance structures in place for 
making decisions, outlines the policies and procedures that support decision-making and 
summarises how investments and interventions are appraised and managed, and how the 
MCA and LEP will publish information. 

Purpose of Report 
 
Each year the MCA and LEP are required to update and publish its Assurance Framework to outline 
the robust, transparent and effective governance arrangements that are in place.    Following 
devolution, the Assurance Framework also needs to be approved by four Government departments.  
The MCA is also required to produce and publish a Monitoring and Evaluation Framework alongside 
the Assurance Framework to outline how projects and programmes funded with devolved and 
awarded monies will be robustly monitored and evaluated.  This also requires Government approval.   
 
The MCA will formally consider the two frameworks at their meeting on 22nd March so that they can be 
submitted to Government for approval before 31 March 2021. This report summarises the 
amendments that have been incorporated. 
 
Thematic Priority 
 
Cross cutting - Governance 
 
Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
Under the Freedom of Information Act this paper and its appendices will be made available under the 
SCR Publication Scheme. 
 
Recommendations 
 
That the Audit and Standards Committee: 

1. Notes, at section 2.3, the key amendments that have been made to the Assurance 
Framework to ensure compliance with the Government’s requirements on Gainshare and the 
Gateway Review Process. 

2. Notes the updated Assurance Framework set out at Appendix 1, pending any amendments 
required by the MCA on 22nd March.  

3. Notes the updated Monitoring and Evaluation Framework set out at Appendix 2, pending any 
amendments required by the MCA on 22nd March.  

Audit and Standards Committee 
 

18th March 2021 
 

Assurance and Monitoring and Evaluation Frameworks 

Page 25

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 1.2 The Government requires MCAs with devolution deals to specify, in their Assurance 

Framework, how all devolved and awarded monies and powers, including Gainshare, and the 
Adult Education Budget (AEB) and Transforming Cities Fund (TCF) will be administered.  
Four Government departments (BEIS, MHCLG, DfT and DfE) must also approve the 
Assurance Frameworks of all MCAs with devolution deals.  
  

 1.3 The Government also requires MCAs with devolution deals to produce and publish an 
accompanying Monitoring and Evaluation Framework to detail how projects and programmes 
funded through devolved and awarded funding will be monitored and evaluated.  
 

2. Proposal and justification  
 

 2.1 The MCA and LEP is required by Government to publish an updated Assurance Framework 
by 31st March 2021 in accordance with the National Local Growth Assurance Framework 
guidance (issued in January 2019) and the 2018 LEP Review (Strengthened Local Enterprise 
Partnerships). 
   

 2.2 The Assurance Framework has been revised to outline the governance arrangements that 
will be used to manage and account for Gainshare and the Adult Education Budget (AEB), to 
incorporate changes made to the HM Treasury Green Book in November 2020, and to 
streamline and improve the assurance processes and procedures based on lessons learnt.  
The draft Assurance Framework 2021 is attached at Appendix 1. 
 

 2.3 Key amendments made to the Assurance Framework 
 
Management of Gainshare – A summary of the processes in place for allocating, managing, 
monitoring and evaluating the use and impact of Gainshare including the five-year Gateway 
Review process with Government. 
Funding Flexibilities – Clarity on the appraisal and assurance process to reflect the 
flexibilities available to the MCA.  
Adult Education Budget (AEB) – Further detail on the procurement and approval process 
for contracting with AEB delivery partners and investing AEB.  
SYPTE integration with MCA Executive – Detail on the integration of SYPTE within the 
MCA which will conclude in 2021.  
Project Development – Reference to working with scheme promoters and partners to 
identify and develop project ideas to deliver the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) and Renewal 
Action Plan (RAP) objectives. 
 
Other minor changes include: 

• Changing the name of the SCR Executive Team to the MCA Executive Team 
• Changing the name of the Appraisal Panel to Assurance Panel 
• Removal of references to SCR and Sheffield City Region as far as possible with more 

emphasis on South Yorkshire 
• Removal of references to LGF as far as possible to reflect the new funding 

programmes and responsibilities from 1st April 2021 
• Updated charts and tables for the timeline of the organisation, LEP and Thematic 

Board membership, staff structure and project appraisal and assurance process. 
 

 2.4 Further to the presentation of an early draft of the Monitoring and Evaluation Framework to 
the MCA Board on 25th January 2021, the Monitoring and Evaluation Framework has been 
further refined.  The Monitoring and Evaluation Framework attached at Appendix 2 now 
includes the logic models that will be used to evaluate the impact of programmes and 
projects by thematic area, against the SEP and RAP targets, and to include the Monitoring 

Page 26



 

and Evaluation Plans required for individual programmes, specifically Transforming Cities 
Fund (TCF). 
 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1 Failure to update and submit the Assurance Framework and Monitoring and Evaluation 
Framework for Government approval would risk the MCA and LEP being non-compliant with 
national standards on governance and transparency, and not fulfilling the conditions for 
devolution.   
 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
The MCA and LEP are required to demonstrate compliance with national guidance in order to 
receive devolved and core funding.  The release of Gainshare funding is dependent on the 
Government’s approval of the Assurance Framework.    
 

 4.2 Legal 
The Assurance Framework outlines the legal duties of the MCA and the policies and 
procedures that are in place to ensure that the MCA and LEP make decisions in a legally 
compliant, robust and transparent manner.  This includes referencing the responsibilities of 
the Section 73 Officer, the purpose of internal and external audit, the role of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee and the project appraisal process (Appendix 1 – Section 4: 
Accountability for Decisions and Public Funds). 
 

 4.3 Risk Management 
The Assurance Framework specifies the processes and procedures that the MCA and LEP 
has in place to manage risk.  These processes are in accordance with HM Treasury’s Orange 
Book principles and include the Strategic Risk Management Framework, the Risk Register and 
quarterly monitoring of projects and programmes (Appendix 1 – Section 4: Accountability for 
Decisions and Public Funds). 
 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  
The LEP is required to demonstrate its approach to equality and diversity in terms of the 
composition of the LEP Board and its Equality and Diversity policy.  The Assurance 
Framework outlines the LEP’s commitment to equality and diversity and current gender 
composition of the LEP Board (Appendix 1 – Section 3: Structures and Roles).  The LEP 
Diversity Policy is also referenced. 
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 The MCA and LEP is obliged to publish information on the decisions that are being made, 
particularly on investments, in an open and transparent way.  The MCA and LEP has always 
taken the approach of publishing as much information as possible on the website so that it is 
accessible.   
 
Appendix 1 – Section 8: Publishing Information outlines how the general public can access 
information that the MCA and LEP holds, the range of information that can be accessed 
through the website, the Forward Plan of Key Decisions, meeting papers and financial and 
project performance information.   
 

 5.2 The Assurance Framework 2021 and Monitoring and Evaluation Framework will be published 
on the website following Government approval.  
  

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 6.1  Appendix 1 - Draft Assurance Framework 2021 

Page 27



 

Appendix 2 – Draft Monitoring and Evaluation Framework 
 
 

Report Author  Lyndsey Whitaker 
Post Senior Economic Policy Manager 

Officer responsible Dr Ruth Adams 
Organisation Sheffield City Region 

Email ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 
 

Telephone 0114 220 3442 
 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad Street 
West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
Other sources and references: 
 
 

Page 28

mailto:ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


 

 

 Appendix 1 

 

 

 

 

Assurance Framework 

2021 

Page 29



 

2 
 

Contents 

 

1 Introduction 3 

2 About the Sheffield City Region 5 

3 Structures and Roles 10 

4 Accountability for Public Funds 25 

5 Robust and Transparent Decision-Making 29 

6 Contract Management 38 

7 Measuring Performance and Success 40 

8 Inclusive and Collaborative Working 43 

9 Publishing Information 46 

10 Glossary of Terms 50 

11 Appendix A: Summary of LEP Policies 51 

12 Appendix B: Joint Statement from LEP and MCA 53 

 
 

List of Tables and Figures 

Figure 1 Sheffield City Region Timeline 5 
Figure 2 Map of the Sheffield City Region and the wider Functional Economic Area 6 

Figure 3 Strategic Economic Plan 2021-2041 (January 2021) 7 
Figure 4 Renewal Action Plan 8 
Figure 5 The Sheffield City Region Organisational Structure 10 

Figure 6 The Mayoral Combined Authority Executive Team Structure 23 
Figure 7 Business Case Development, Appraisal and Approval Process 31 

   
Table 1 Membership of the Sheffield City Region Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) 2021/22 12 

Table 2 Membership of the Sheffield City Region Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) 2021/22 14 

Table 3 Gender Composition of LEP Board (February 2021) 18 

Table 4 Membership of the Thematic Boards 2021/22 20 

 
 

Version Control 

V1 First draft L Whitaker 

V2 Second draft C Howard, F Kumi-Ampofo, N Byers, C James, L 
Whitaker 

V3 Incorporated amendments from R Adams and S Davenport  L Whitaker, F Kumi-Ampofo 

V4 Incorporated amendments from N MacDonald L Whitaker 

V5 Amended para 3.66 as requested by BEIS L Whitaker 

 

Page 30



 

3 
 

1. Introduction 

 

Purpose of the Assurance Framework 

1.1 The aim of this document is to set out how the Sheffield City Region Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) will 

use public money responsibly, both openly and transparently, and achieve best value for money.  This 

document outlines: 

 

 The respective roles and responsibilities of the Mayoral Combined Authority Board, the Sheffield City 

Region Mayor, the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Board and other elements of the decision-making 

and delivery structure; 

 The key processes for ensuring accountability, probity, transparency, legal compliance and value for 

money; 

 How potential investments will be prioritised, appraised, approved, and delivered; and 

 How the progress and impacts of these investments will be monitored and evaluated. 

 

1.2 The Assurance Framework sits alongside several key governance and policy documents – most notably the 

Devolution Agreement and Settlement Letter, the MCA Constitution, the LEP Terms of Reference, the 

Financial Regulations, the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP), Renewal Action Plan (RAP), Investment Plan and 

Monitoring and Evaluation Framework.   

 

1.3 The Assurance Framework has been developed in response to the National Local Growth Assurance 

Framework (January 2019, which incorporates the Single Pot Assurance Framework Guidance 2016), 

Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnerships Report (July 2018), the LEP Governance and Transparency 

Best Practice Guide (January 2018) and the Ney Review (October 2017). 

 

1.4 This Assurance Framework takes effect from 1 April 2021.  It will apply to all new funding bids, funding 

regimes and projects from this date.  For continuity and consistency purposes, some existing projects which 

are already part way through the 2020 Assurance Framework process, will conclude their approval through 

that route.  

 
 

Updating the Assurance Framework 

1.5 The Assurance Framework is reviewed and updated at the end of each year.  The next annual review of this 

document is scheduled to commence in November 2021.  However, this document may be amended and 

re-published prior to the annual review date if improvements or significant changes are made to the MCA, 

LEP or its governance and assurance structures and processes, or if new guidance is received from the 

Government.     

 

1.6 A draft of the Assurance Framework is presented to the MCA and LEP Boards to approve any changes.  The 

Assurance Framework is then submitted to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 

(MHCLG) and other Government Departments for approval, including the Department for Transport and 

Department for Education.  

 
 
 
 
 

The Structure of this Document 

1.7 The remainder of this document is structured into the following sections: 

Page 31



 

4 
 

 

 Section 2 describes the Sheffield City Region, the funding devolved by Government and the plan for 

economic growth; 

 Section 3 explains the structures, roles and responsibilities of the organisations that make up the 

decision-making bodies; 

 Section 4 outlines the processes for ensuring openness and accountability for public funds; 

 Section 5 describes how the MCA and LEP collaborate and engage with other MCAs, LEPs, partners 

and the public; 

 Section 6 illustrates how decisions are made in a robust, evidenced and transparent manner; 

 Section 7 explains how projects are delivered and monitored and evaluated; 

 Section 8 outlines how information is published; 

 Appendix A provides a summary of the policies that the LEP is governed by; and 

 Appendix B is a joint statement from the LEP and MCA on their respective roles and responsibilities. 

  

Page 32



 

5 
 

2. About the Sheffield City Region 

 

History 

2.1 The Sheffield City Region geographical area consists of the four local authority districts in South Yorkshire.  

 

2.2 The concept of the Sheffield City Region dates back to 2008 when the SCR Forum was created.  However, 

joint working across the South Yorkshire authorities significantly predates this, as shown in Figure 1 below.  

 
Figure 1: Sheffield City Region Timeline 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.3 The SCR Forum evolved into the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) in 2010.  This was followed by the 

formation of the Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) on the 1st April 2014 and the election of the first Mayor 

on the 4th May 2018.  The South Yorkshire Devolution Deal1 was signed into law on 27 July 2020.   

 

 

Geography 

2.4 The MCA and LEP’s boundaries are coterminous. The geography consists of the four local authority districts 

in South Yorkshire (Barnsley, Doncaster, Rotherham and Sheffield).   

 

2.5 The wider functional economic area for the Sheffield City Region also covers five neighbouring districts in 

the D2N2 LEP area: Bassetlaw, Bolsover, Chesterfield, Derbyshire Dales and North East Derbyshire (Figure 

2).  Prior to 1 April 2020, these districts were full members of the Sheffield City Region LEP, when revisions 

to the LEP’s geography were made to comply with the LEP Review recommendation on removing overlaps 

with other LEPs. 

 

2.6 Whilst the five districts in Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire are no longer members of the Sheffield City 

Region LEP, they continue to be non-constituent members of the MCA in accordance with the 2014 Order2 

                                                      
1 The Barnsley, Doncaster, Rotherham and Sheffield Combined Authority (Functions and Amendment) Order 2020  
2 The Barnsley, Doncaster, Rotherham and Sheffield Combined Authority Order 2014 

Page 33

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/806/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2014/863/made


 

6 
 

that created the MCA.  Discussions will take place throughout 2021 to determine the best way of engaging 

with the non-constituent local authorities on cross-border economic issues.     

 

Figure 2: Map of the Sheffield City Region and the wider Functional Economic Area 

 

 

 

Plan for Economic Growth 

2.7 In 2020, the MCA and LEP completed work on developing a Renewal Action Plan (RAP) in response to the 

COVID Pandemic and its attendant socio-economic challenges, to outline the objectives and priorities for 

economic recovery and growth for the Sheffield City Region.  The RAP accompanies a new Strategic 

Economic Plan (SEP) which was approved by the MCA and LEP Boards in January 2021.  

 

Page 34



 

7 
 

2.8 The SEP is a twenty-year economic strategy which sets out the vision and policy objectives for growing the 

economy at pace; ensuring that all people and places have a fair opportunity to contribute to and benefit from 

prosperity and protecting and enhancing our environment. 

 

2.9 The SEP is built on a broad range of socio-economic data and is the result of extensive consultation with 

business representatives, local industry leaders, local authorities, residents and stakeholder organisations.  

The vision and policy objectives for economic growth across the City Region, are set out in Figure 3 below. 

 
Figure 3: Strategic Economic Plan 2021-2041 (January 2021) 

 
 
 
2.10 The SEP will be reviewed and updated on a regular basis to ensure a sound strategic basis for investment. 

 

2.11 The RAP is a jobs-led plan that outlines £1.7bn of priority interventions for supporting our Employers, People 

and Places focusing particularly on the immediate term.  The priorities are set out in Figure 4 below:  

 

  

Page 35



 

8 
 

Figure 4: Renewal Action Plan  

 

 

 

 

2.12 Together, with the Transport Strategy, the Net Zero Work Programme, and the local authority Leaders’ 

priorities for Gainshare, the SEP and the RAP set the blueprint for how devolved and awarded funding from 

Government will be invested.  The SEP and RAP also set the criteria that all programmes, schemes and 

projects will be measured and assessed against; from application stage through to contracting and delivery.  

 

 

Devolved Powers and Funding 

2.13 The South Yorkshire Devolution Deal provides the ability to establish a single pot of funding to invest in 

economic development.  This includes Gainshare, the Adult Education Budget, a consolidated transport 

budget and other local growth monies as detailed below. 

 

 

Gainshare 

2.14 The Gainshare (grant-based investment funding) allocation for South Yorkshire through the Devolution Deal 

is £30m per annum for a period of 30 years.  This consists of 60% capital and 40% revenue funding and is 

to be invested in the delivery of the MCA and LEP’s strategic and economic priorities.   

 

 

Adult Education Budget (AEB) 

2.15 From the start of the 2021/22 academic year, the MCA will assume responsibility for the Adult Education 

Budget (AEB). Devolution of AEB will support high quality adult education across South Yorkshire. This 

equates to around £35m per annum.   

 

 

Transport Settlement 

2.16 The MCA is responsible for the consolidated devolved capital transport budget.  This consists of the 

Integrated Transport Block, the Highways Maintenance Block (excluding PFI), and Highways Maintenance 

incentive funding.  

 

Transforming Cities Fund (TCF) 

Page 36



 

9 
 

2.17 Following a successful bidding process, in March 2020, the Government awarded £166m from the 

Transforming Cities Fund (TCF) to the Sheffield City Region for a period of three years.   

 

 

Getting Building Fund (GBF) 

2.18 In June 2020, the MCA was awarded £33.6m for a prioritised programme of Major Capital Infrastructure 

Schemes under the Government’s Getting Building Fund.  The fund is to be used to accelerate ‘shovel ready’ 

infrastructure schemes. 

 

 

Brownfield Fund (BF) 

2.19 The MCA was allocated £40m in June 2020 to deliver a programme of housing schemes on brownfield sites 

over the next 5 years through the Government’s Brownfield Fund. 

 
 

Emergency Active Travel Fund 

2.20 During 2020, the MCA was awarded £8.7m in two tranches to support investment in active travel 
infrastructure in order to accelerate modal shift from car journeys, improve decongestion, safety for non-
motorised road users and air quality, and promote healthier lifestyles. 

 
 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) 

2.21 In November 2014, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced that a UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) 

pilot programme in 2021-22 to help UK regions to prepare for a longer-term UKSPF from 2023.  The UKSPF 

will replace the previous six-year Local Growth Fund (LGF) programme and EU Structural Funds. 

 

2.22 More detailed information on the UKSPF pilot will be published in early 2021 but it is expected to be focussed 

on supporting infrastructure improvements and regeneration in areas of deprivation, tailored employment 

and skills development and supporting businesses with innovation and green technology adoption. 

 

 

Powers 

2.23 Under the South Yorkshire Devolution Deal, the MCA and Mayor were granted the following devolved powers 

from Government: 

 

 The full devolution of the 19+ Adult Education Budget for college and training providers; 

 To improve the supply and quality of housing and secure the development of land or infrastructure; 

 To create a non-statutory Spatial Framework for South Yorkshire; 

 The option to establish Mayoral Development Corporations; 

 To provide grants and make agreements with other bodies on the management of the strategic highway 

network; and 

 The option to introduce a Mayoral precept. 

  

Page 37



 

10 
 

3. Structures and Roles 

 

Overview  

3.1 The MCA and LEP governance model combines the best of private sector expertise and public sector 

capacity, transparency and accountability. 

 
3.2 The Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) and Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) form the core decision-

making Boards. The private sector led LEP, supports and works alongside democratically elected Leaders 

on the MCA Board.  The Mayor, the Leaders of the four local authorities in South Yorkshire and LEP Chair 

sit on both Boards.  This has resulted in strong partnership between the MCA and LEP.  It also ensures that 

a single oversight is in place to deliver efficient, effective, accountable and informed decision-making.  

 
3.3 The Mayor, MCA Board and LEP Board are supported by four Thematic Boards and the MCA Executive 

Team.  The Thematic Boards are responsible for driving forward the agenda of their thematic area.  The 

MCA Executive Team advises the Mayor, MCA and LEP on policy, seeks agreement between those bodies 

and subsequently commissions, manages and monitors the delivery of projects.  The MCA Executive Team 

and local authority Chief Executives also support the decision-making process.  Two independent 

committees, the Audit and Standards Committee and Overview and Scrutiny Committee, ensure that the 

MCA, LEP and Mayor are fulfilling their legal obligations, and developing and delivering strategies that are 

in the best interests of local people. 

 
3.4 Figure 5 sets out the overall structure and how the Boards and Committees relate to one another. 

 
Figure 5: The Organisational Structure 

 

 
 
 
3.5 In 2021, SYPTE will be fully amalgamated into the MCA with SYPTE staff becoming part of the MCA 

Executive Team.  

 

Page 38



 

11 
 

3.6 The following sections provide a description of the different elements of the structure and their respective 

roles and responsibilities. 

 

 

The Mayor 

3.7 The Mayor is directly elected by the electorate in South Yorkshire (Barnsley, Doncaster, Rotherham and 

Sheffield) and serves a four-year term of office.  The Mayor was elected in May 2018 and the next Mayoral 

Election is scheduled to take place in May 2022.     

 
 
Role of the Mayor 

3.8 The Mayor has a manifesto of commitments on which he was elected, and he exercises powers and functions 

that are devolved to the MCA by central Government.  

  

3.9 The Mayor is the Chair of the MCA and leads the MCA in terms of proposing and agreeing the revenue and 

capital budgets of the MCA, including allocation of the consolidated transport budget, appropriate use of the 

Adult Education Budget and how Gainshare is utilised to support the MCA’s policies.  

 

3.10 The Mayor is a member of the LEP Board and also promotes South Yorkshire as a place to live, work, visit 

and invest in.  

 
 
Responsibilities of the Mayor 

3.11 The decision-making powers and functions of the Mayor are: 

 

 Development of a strategy and spending plan for the delivery of mayoral functions; 

 Responsibility for a consolidated, devolved transport budget, with a multi-year settlement to be agreed 

at the Spending Review; 

 Responsibility and the power to approve franchised bus services, to support the MCA’s delivery of smart 

and integrated ticketing across South Yorkshire; 

 Responsibility for an identified Key Route Network of local authority roads that will be collaboratively 

managed and maintained by the MCA on behalf of the Mayor; 

 Powers over strategic planning, including the responsibility to create a spatial framework for the Sheffield 

City Region; 

 Ability to create Mayoral Development Areas or Corporations in agreement with the relevant MCA 

member. 

 

 

The Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) 

3.12 The Sheffield City Region Combined Authority was formally constituted in law in April 2014.  It comprises the 

four constituent local authorities for South Yorkshire and five non-constituent local authorities from the 

neighbouring D2N2 LEP area.  The constituent members are Barnsley, Doncaster, Rotherham and Sheffield. 

The non-constituent members are Bassetlaw, Bolsover, Chesterfield, Derbyshire Dales and North East 

Derbyshire.  With the election of the Mayor in May 2018, it became the Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA). 

 
 
Role of the MCA 

3.13 The MCA is the legal and Accountable Body for funding devolved and awarded to the MCA and LEP.  The 

MCA is also the Local Transport Authority for South Yorkshire.  This role and its accompanying 

responsibilities are defined in the MCA Constitution.   

  

Page 39

https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=181&MId=392&Ver=4&Info=1


 

12 
 

Responsibilities of the MCA 

3.14 The MCA’s remit is strategic economic development, housing, skills and transport.   

 

3.15 The MCA is responsible for setting the policy direction in South Yorkshire and maximising financial 

investment to achieve economic growth.  The MCA is also responsible for making large investment decisions 

and ensuring that the policy and strategic objectives of the SEP are delivered.   

 
3.16 On this basis, typically the agenda for the MCA is focused on different elements of the SEP and takes 

decisions and oversees performance on items including: 

 

 Programme updates – on initiatives being delivered; 

 Investment decisions; 

 Monitoring of financial and output performance; 

 Assurance, strategic risk management and governance; and 

 Strategies and plans. 

 
3.17 The constituent members of the MCA are accountable for where and how public money is being spent.   

 
3.18 Additional responsibilities and further powers may be devolved to the Mayor and the MCA, pending 

agreement by Government, the Mayor, MCA and the constituent authorities. 

 
 
Membership of the MCA 

3.19 Membership of the MCA is set out in Table 1 below.  This specifies the type of membership; constituent, non-

constituent and observer. 

 
Table 1: Membership of the MCA 2021/22 

Member Post Membership Type 

South Yorkshire Mayor Constituent 

Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council Leader Constituent 

Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council Mayor Constituent 

Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council Leader Constituent 

Sheffield City Council Leader Constituent 

Bassetlaw District Council Leader Non-constituent 

Bolsover District Council Leader Non-constituent 

Chesterfield Borough Council Leader Non-constituent 

Derbyshire Dales District Council Leader Non-constituent 

North East Derbyshire District Council Leader Non-constituent 

Sheffield City Region LEP Chair Non-voting 

Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council Nominated Representative Rotational 

Sheffield City Council Nominated Representative Rotational 

 

3.20 The MCA Constitution stipulates that substitute members will be nominated and agreed by the full members 

annually.   

 

3.21 Each year the MCA appoints two additional, rotational members from amongst the constituent councils. This 

is a requirement of the Order by which the Combined Authority was established to ensure that the majority 

of Members are from constituent councils.  In 2021/22, the rotational members are from Barnsley and 

Page 40



 

13 
 

Sheffield.  In 2022/23, they will be from Doncaster and Rotherham.  By convention these Members do not 

attend or vote. 

 

3.22 Organisations are invited to attend MCA meetings as an observer.  These can include Government agencies 

(such as Homes England or Network Rail) and other LEPs which have close economic links with the Sheffield 

City Region (for example but not restricted to the Leeds City Region, Manchester and Humber LEPs). 

 

3.23 All MCA Board members are expected to conduct themselves in accordance with the Nolan Principles of 

Public Life.  These principles are embedded in the MCA Members’ Code of Conduct as detailed in the MCA 

Constitution.   

 
 
MCA Board Meetings 

3.24 The MCA Board meets on an eight-weekly cycle and the meetings are held in public.  

   

3.25 All constituent members of the MCA Board and the Mayor have one equally weighted vote.  Non-constituent 

members have no automatic right to vote.  The MCA Constitution allows for voting rights to be extended to 

non-constituent members at the discretion of the constituent members.   

 

3.26 Decisions are made by a majority of the members present at MCA meetings and voting when using the 

powers held by the Authority when it was established in 2014.  For the new powers devolved to the MCA 

through the devolution deal, the Mayor must be part of the majority of members present and voting on the 

exercise of such functions.  These functions are: 

 

 Adult Education Budget; 

 Skills powers/duties; and 

 Housing functions. 

 

The Constitution sets the majority as the Mayor plus 75% of the Members from the constituent councils 

present at the meeting.  By convention, if 100% of the Members from the constituent councils are in favour 

of a resolution, then the Mayor will also vote in favour (as that is the will of the MCA), unless the Mayor 

gives minuted reason for not doing so. 

 

3.27 The approval of the non-statutory Spatial Framework will require a unanimous decision from all constituent 

members. The establishment of any Mayoral Development Corporation will require the agreement of the 

Mayor and the MCA member that represents that place.  

 

3.28 The Mayor’s budget proposals will be approved by the MCA in accordance with the Combined Authorities 

(Finance) Order 2017 and the Constitution.  

 

 

Quoracy for MCA Board Meetings 

3.29 At least three voting members of the MCA must be present for a meeting to be valid.  If a decision is required 

to meet agreed timescales and a meeting of the MCA is either not possible or scheduled, written procedures 

for decision making apply, in line with the MCA Constitution and the relevant Overview and Scrutiny 

regulations. 

 
 
 

 

 

The Local Enterprise Partnership Board (LEP) 

Page 41

https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s2868/A%20-%20Members%20Code%20of%20Conduct.pdf


 

14 
 

3.30 The Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) is a voluntary business-led partnership which brings together 

business leaders, local politicians and other partners to promote and drive economic growth across the 

Sheffield City Region.  The Sheffield City Region LEP was established in 2010.   

 
 
 
Role of the LEP 

3.31 The LEP leads on strategic economic policy development within the City Region and sets the blueprint for 

how the Sheffield City Region economy should evolve and grow.  The LEP is the developer and author of 

the SEP.  The LEP works to raise the profile, image and reputation of the Sheffield City Region as a place to 

visit, live, work and invest in.    

 
 
Responsibilities of the LEP 

3.32 The LEP is responsible for setting strategy and acts as the custodian of the SEP.  The LEP bids for funding 

and programmes from Government and is responsible for delivering these programmes.  This included 

delivering the Growth Deal programme of activity which concluded on 31 March 2021. 

 

3.33 The LEP is also responsible for ensuring that policy and decisions both receive the input of key business 

leaders, and by extension, reflect the views of the wider business community.  The LEP fulfils this 

responsibility by leading on engagement with local businesses and policy makers at a City Regional, national 

and international level.  

 

3.34 The focus of the LEP Board is to discuss and make decisions on the following: 

 

 South Yorkshire Economy – such as research on how well the economy is performing and the issues 

and needs of different sectors and markets; 

 Performance - of LEP funded programmes; 

 Providing a Forum for Debate - between the public and private sectors; and 

 Economic Strategy and Policy Development – on new initiatives being brought forward. 

 
 
Membership of the LEP 

3.35 The LEP currently comprises 13 permanent private sector representatives, the four Leaders of the Local 

Authorities and the Mayor, a Trades Union Representative and up to five co-opted private sector members 

who act as specialist advisers on thematic issues.  Membership of the LEP is set out in Table 2 below: 

 

Table 2: Membership of the Sheffield City Region Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) 2021/22 

Member Post Membership Type 

James Muir LEP Chair – Permanent Member Private Sector 

Nigel Brewster LEP Vice Chair – Permanent Member Private Sector 

Lucy Nickson LEP Vice Chair – Permanent Member Private Sector 

Alexa Greaves Permanent Member Private Sector 

Gemma Smith Permanent Member Private Sector 

Professor Chris Husbands Permanent Member Private Sector 

Peter Kennan Permanent Member Private Sector 

Tan Khan Permanent Member Private Sector 

Neil MacDonald Permanent Member Private Sector 

Page 42



 

15 
 

Richard Stubbs Permanent Member Private Sector 

Joe Chetcuti Permanent Member Private Sector 

Karen Beardsley Permanent Member Private Sector 

Cathy Travers Permanent Member Private Sector 

Angela Foulkes FE College Representative Private Sector 

Professor Dave Petley HE Representative Private Sector 

Dan Fell Chambers of Commerce Representative Private Sector  

Bill Adams Trades Union Representative Membership Body 

Paul Leedham Co-opted Member Private Sector 

Michael Faulks Co-opted Member Private Sector 

MCA Mayor Public Sector 

Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council Leader Public Sector 

Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council Mayor Public Sector 

Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council Leader Public Sector 

Sheffield City Council Leader Public Sector 

 

3.36 Private sector LEP Board members are assigned a portfolio of work based on their expertise and knowledge.  

The portfolios are thematic based, and each LEP Board member leads on the LEP’s activity on that theme.   

 

3.37 The LEP Board also designates a private sector LEP Board member to be Small Business Champion and 

Equality and Diversity Champion.  The Small Business Champion is tasked with leading engagement with 

small businesses, and ensuring that the views of micro, small and medium sized businesses are adequately 

represented by the LEP.  The Equality and Diversity Champion ensures that the LEP Board understands its 

role in promoting diversity and eliminating discrimination. 

 

3.38 The current composition of the LEP Board is 75% Private Sector members compared to 21% Public Sector 

members and 4% Membership Body members.  This equates to a ratio that is substantially higher than the 

Government requirement of a two-third, one-third split. 

 

3.39 Co-opted members were first introduced onto the LEP Board in Autumn 2017 to provide additional specialist 

advice and expertise on the SEP’s thematic priorities, such as infrastructure, skills and employment.  The 

knowledge and advice provided by the co-opted members has led to significant progress being made on key 

projects and initiatives including the development and delivery of the Housing Investment Fund pilot.   

 
3.40 All LEP Board members are expected to conduct themselves in accordance with the Nolan Principles of 

Public Life.  These principles are embedded in the LEP Code of Conduct.  LEP Board members are required 

to sign a document confirming that they will subscribe to Nolan principles as a condition of their appointment.  

 
 
LEP Board Meetings 

3.41 The LEP Board meets on an eight-weekly cycle and the meetings are held in private, with the exception of 

an Annual General Meeting (AGM).   

 

3.42 All Board members (apart from co-opted members) have equal voting rights, and decisions are taken on the 

basis of a simple majority.   

 
 

 

Page 43

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/LEP-Code-of-Conduct-20-21v1.0.pdf


 

16 
 

Quoracy for LEP Board Meetings 

3.43 Meetings of the LEP Board are considered quorate when at least one quarter of the Private Sector Members 

and at least one quarter of the constituent local authority members are present.   

 

3.44 A LEP Board Member may be counted in the quorum if they are able to participate in the meeting by remote 

means such as by internet, audio or video link.  The member must remain available throughout the agenda 

items where discussions and decisions are made. 

 
3.45 Co-opted members, and any LEP Board member who is obliged to withdraw under the LEP Code of Conduct, 

are not counted towards the quorum. 

 

3.46 To ensure that LEP Board members are suitably committed to the work of the LEP, consistent non-

attendance at meetings is grounds for termination of membership.  This is outlined in the LEP Terms of 

Reference. 

 

3.47 If a decision is required to meet agreed timescales and a meeting of the LEP is either not possible or 

scheduled, the urgency procedure for decision making applies, as outlined in LEP Terms of Reference will 

be implemented. 

 
 
LEP Chair 

3.48 The LEP Chair must have a private sector background. 

 
3.49 The LEP Chair leads on building the reputation and influence of South Yorkshire at a national and 

international level.  The LEP Chair is also a non-voting member of the MCA. 

 
 
LEP Vice Chair 

3.50 The LEP has two Vice Chairs. 

 

3.51 The LEP Vice Chairs must have a private sector background.   

 

3.52 The LEP Vice Chairs provide day to day leadership and support to the LEP Board Members, lead on business 

relations within the City Region, engage with the wider business community and deputise for the LEP Chair 

when necessary. 

 

 
 
Defined Term Limits   

3.53 The LEP Chair and LEP Vice Chairs have defined term limits of three years.  They can re-apply for a further 

term.   

 
3.54 All other permanent private sector LEP Board member, and the named HE representative, are appointed for 

an initial term of three years.  As set-out in the LEP Terms of Reference, the Chair may extend the 

appointment of an individual for a further term of up to three years.  With a clear rationale, and only in 

exceptional circumstances, a further extension not exceeding two years may be granted.    

 
3.55 Co-opted LEP Board members have a defined term limit of one year.  However, following a recommendation 

from the LEP Appointments Panel, the LEP Chair can at their discretion, extend the term of co-opted 

members for a further period.  

 

3.56 The Trades Union Congress (TUC), Chambers of Commerce and FE Colleges (via the Association of 
Colleges) nominate their named representatives on an annual basis.   

Page 44

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/LEP-Terms-of-Reference-20-21v1.0.pdf
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/LEP-Terms-of-Reference-20-21v1.0.pdf


 

17 
 

 
LEP Board Recruitment and Appointment 

3.57 Private sector LEP Board members are appointed through an open and transparent recruitment and selection 

process, which is run on an annual basis.  In the interests of continuity and succession planning, the 

recruitment is staggered so that the terms of all private sector members do not expire at the same time.   

 

3.58 When private sector members either approach the end of their term, or if a LEP Board member resigns mid-

term, the vacant positions on the LEP Board are promoted through the MCA website, social media channels 

and are advertised in local and regional media.  Local business representative organisations are also 

consulted about LEP Board vacancies and advertise and promote these vacancies through communications 

with their members.  

 

3.59 When recruiting new LEP Board members, consideration is given to achieving diversity on the LEP Board in 

line with the LEP Diversity Policy.  However, all Board appointments are made on merit, and within the 

context of the skills and experience required by the LEP Board. 

 
3.60 Interested candidates are required to complete and submit an application form.  A LEP Appointments Panel, 

which is made-up of LEP Board Vice Chairs, reviews and assesses the applications against the LEP Board 

Member Job Description and Person Specification, with advice and support from the MCA Executive Team.  

Candidates are shortlisted for an interview by a panel including LEP Board members (usually the Vice 

Chairs), a member of an independent business representative body, and the MCA Chief Executive or Deputy 

Chief Executive. 

 
3.61 A combination of the completed application form and interview are used to judge each candidate’s 

experience, suitability and fit.  The LEP Appointments Panel makes the appointments which are then ratified 

by the LEP Board.   

 

3.62 Newly appointed LEP Board members are invited to attend an induction session with the MCA Executive 

Team to develop their understanding of the City Region, the organisational and decision-making structure, 

the LEP’s priorities and plans and support available to LEP Board members from the MCA Executive Team. 

 
3.63 Vacant positions for the Chair and Vice Chair roles are promoted in the same way.  However, these positions 

are also advertised in national media outlets and on the Government’s Public Appointments website.  The 

Mayor leads the appointment panel for the LEP Chair, which also includes another LEP Board Member, an 

independent business representative organisation, a Local Authority Chief Executive and either the MCA 

Chief Executive or Deputy Chief Executive. 

 
 

Equality and Diversity 

3.64 The LEP Diversity Policy seeks to ensure that the composition of the LEP Board is diverse and reflective of 

the City Region in the broadest sense.  Consideration is given to gender, race, protected characteristics and 

areas of expertise including industry knowledge, geography, sectors and business size.  This is done with a 

view to obtaining an appropriate balance of membership.  Applications from under-represented groups are 

encouraged.   

 

3.65 The current gender composition of the LEP Board is detailed in Table 3 below.  It illustrates that 38.5% of 

the LEP’s permanent private sector members are women. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 45

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/LEP-Terms-of-Reference-20-21v1.0.pdf
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/LEP-Terms-of-Reference-20-21v1.0.pdf


 

18 
 

Table 3: Gender Composition of LEP Board (February 2021)  

 

 

3.66 The LEP will obtain an equal split of male and female LEP Board members by March 2023.   

 
 

How the MCA and LEP Work Together 

3.67 A key facet of the governance arrangements in the City Region is the strong inter-relationship between the 

LEP and MCA and overlap of membership.  Building on the best of the public and private sectors, this brings 

accountability, transparency and business insight together.  The configuration and membership of the LEP 

and MCA are designed to be mutually supportive. 

 
3.68 The MCA is the legally Accountable Body for all funds awarded to the LEP and approves the LEP annual 

capital and revenue budgets prior to the start of the financial year.  However, the LEP advises on how these 

funds are prioritised.  

 

3.69 The MCA tests the value for money of proposed projects, and makes decisions in a legally compliant, 

responsible and transparent manner. 

 
3.70 To maintain good communication and cooperation, the LEP and MCA are both served by the same team of 

staff (the MCA Executive Team).  Financial information and updates on programme delivery are reported to 

both the LEP and MCA Boards.  This includes details of applications received for LEP funded programmes 

and contracts awarded. 

 
3.71 Given the clarity in remit and strong controls being in place, there are minimal circumstances where the MCA 

would not comply with the LEP’s advice. However potentially this could occur if: 

 

 The LEP was seeking to influence a decision of the MCA, which is within the remit of the Accountable 

Body, specifically an operational decision as opposed to a strategic decision regarding the economic 

strategy; 

 The LEP was seeking to influence a decision which is non-compliant with public accountability 

requirements and procedures, or does not offer value for money; 

 The MCA was seeking to influence a decision which is within the remit of the LEP (for example, 

supporting a project that is not aligned with the objectives of the SEP); or 

 The MCA was refusing to operationalise a policy directive of the LEP in accordance with the SEP. 

 

3.72 A procedure is in place for managing conflicts in decision-making should they occur.  The three Statutory 

Officers (Head of Paid Service, Section 73 Officer and Monitoring Officer) would first attempt to resolve the 

Page 46



 

19 
 

conflict with the Chairs of the LEP and MCA Boards. If the conflict cannot be resolved, and depending on the 

nature of the conflict, this would be formally escalated to either the LEP Board or MCA Board to discuss and 

agree a resolution. 

 
3.73  A Memorandum of Understanding concisely and simply explains the respective roles and responsibilities of 

the LEP and MCA, and how they work together.  This is published and ensures that members of the public 

are clear on who is responsible for decision-making in the City Region.  This document is contained in 

Appendix B. 

 
 

Thematic Boards 

3.74 To support decision-making and delivery, the MCA and LEP are supported by four Thematic Boards, which 

are based on the broad strategic priorities of the SEP.  The four Thematic Boards all have delegated authority 

to make financial decisions on behalf of the MCA up to defined limits.   

 
 
Role of the Thematic Boards 

3.75 The purpose of the Thematic Boards is to provide adequate and experienced capacity to review projects and 

make investment decisions.  These Boards bring together the public and private leadership of the MCA and 

LEP to drive the delivery of activity, ensuring that the focus remains on the outcomes being delivered. The 

Thematic Boards therefore enable the MCA and LEP Boards to operate strategically rather than merely as 

investment boards. 

 
3.76 The four Thematic Boards are accountable to the MCA and each one has a defined portfolio with distinct 

responsibilities for Business Recovery & Growth, Housing & Infrastructure, Education, Skills & Employability 

and Transport & the Environment.   

 

3.77 The Transport & the Environment Board has a broader role than the other three Thematic Boards; 

specifically, co-ordinating the transport activities, and overseeing the performance, of the South Yorkshire 

Passenger Transport Executive (SYPTE). 

 
 
Responsibilities of the Thematic Boards 

3.78 Each of the four Thematic Boards (Business Recovery & Growth; Housing &, Infrastructure; Education, Skills 

& Employability; and Transport & the Environment) has delegated authority to approve projects with a value 

of less than £2 million.  Decisions made by the Thematic Boards are presented to the MCA Board in a written 

Delegated Decisions Report.  As the delegating body, the MCA has the right to review decisions made by 

the Thematic Boards. 

 
3.79 The responsibilities of the four Thematic Boards are to: 

 

 Shape future policy, priorities and programmes for the LEP and MCA Boards to approve; 

 Review programme and funding applications of less than £2 million that have been through the appraisal 

process and decide whether to approve, defer or reject the application; 

 Review programme and funding applications of £2 million or more that have been through the appraisal 

process and make a recommendation to the MCA Board for approval, deferment or rejection of the 

application; 

 Accept grants with a value of less than £2 million; and 

 Monitor programme delivery and performance on their thematic area. 

 
3.80 The Transport & the Environment Board has the following additional responsibilities:   

Page 47

https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s2863/F%20-%20Scheme%20of%20Delegations%20of%20Functions%20to%20Thematic%20Executive%20Boards.pdf
https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s2879/Appendix%205%20-%20Housing%20Board%20-%20Terms%20of%20Reference.pdf
https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s2881/Appendix%207%20-%20Skills%20and%20Employment%20Board%20-%20Terms%20of%20Reference.pdf
https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s2882/Appendix%208%20-%20Transport%20Board%20-%20Terms%20of%20Reference.pdf


 

20 
 

 

 Shaping the development of the transport strategy and strategies for its implementation; 

 Overseeing the performance of SYPTE in delivering operational transport services and its capital 

programme and providing SYPTE with political direction; 

 Recommending the capital programme of SYPTE for approval to the MCA; and 

 Recommending the revenue budget of SYPTE for approval to the MCA. 

 

 
Membership of the Thematic Boards 

3.81 The members of the four Thematic Boards are set out in Table 4 below:   

 

 Table 4: Membership of the Thematic Boards 2021/22   

Business Recovery & 

Growth 

Education, Skills & 

Employability 

Housing & Infrastructure  Transport & the 

Environment 

One Leader from the MCA 
of a South Yorkshire local 
authority 

One Leader from the MCA 
of a South Yorkshire local 
authority 

One Leader from the MCA 
of a South Yorkshire local 
authority 

One Leader from the MCA 
of a South Yorkshire local 
authority 

Leader of Chesterfield 
Borough Council (non-
constituent local authority 
from the MCA) 

The Director General of 
the SYPTE 

A nominated 
representative for each of 
the South Yorkshire local 
authorities  

A nominated 
representative for each of 
the South Yorkshire local 
authorities  

A nominated 
representative for each of 
the South Yorkshire local 
authorities  

A nominated 
representative for each of 
the South Yorkshire local 
authorities  

A lead Chief Executive 
from a South Yorkshire 
local authority 

A lead Chief Executive 
from a South Yorkshire 
local authority 

A lead Chief Executive 
from a South Yorkshire 
local authority 

A lead Chief Executive 
from a South Yorkshire 
local authority 

Two private sector LEP 
Board members 

Two private sector LEP 
Board members 

Two private sector LEP 
Board members 

Two private sector LEP 
Board members 

Head of Paid Service (or 
their nominated 
representative) 

Head of Paid Service (or 
their nominated 
representative) 

Head of Paid Service (or 
their nominated 
representative) 

Head of Paid Service (or 
their nominated 
representative) 

A non-voting 
representative for the 
other non-constituent 
local authorities from the 
MCA  

A non-voting 
representative for the 
other non-constituent 
local authorities from the 
MCA 

A non-voting 
representative for the 
other non-constituent 
local authorities from the 
MCA 

A non-voting 
representative for the 
other non-constituent 
local authorities from the 
MCA 

 

 
3.82 Board decisions are made on the basis of consensus.  Where consensus cannot be reached the issue is 

escalated to the MCA.   
 

3.83 The Thematic Boards can form operational Hubs or Task and Finish groups of key stakeholders and advisors 

to assist in the management and monitoring of individual programmes or projects.  Any such groups are 

purely advisory and cannot assume any of the Thematic Board’s responsibilities for decision-making.  They 

are also required to submit reports to the Thematic Board. 

 

 
 
 

Page 48



 

21 
 

Thematic Board Meetings 

3.84 Thematic Boards meet on an eight-weekly cycle and the MCA Executive Team provides the secretariat 

function. 

 
 
Quoracy for Thematic Board Meetings 

3.85 Meetings of the Thematic Boards (with the exception of the Transport & the Environment Board) are quorate 

when five members are present; of which two are from South Yorkshire (constituent) local authorities and 

one is a LEP private sector member. 

 

3.86 Transport & the Environment Board meetings are quorate when six members are present. of which two are 

from South Yorkshire (constituent) local authorities and one is a LEP private sector member.  

 
3.87 A member who is obliged to withdraw under the MCA Code of Conduct or LEP Code of Conduct shall not be 

counted towards the quorum. 

 

3.88 If a decision is required to meet agreed timescales and a meeting of the Thematic Board is either not possible 

or scheduled, written procedures for decision making apply, in line with the Thematic Boards Protocol for 

Decisions Between Meetings. 

 
 

Audit and Standards Committee  

3.89 The Audit and Standards Committee ensures that the LEP, MCA and Mayor are operating in a legal, open 

and transparent way. 

 

3.90 In accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) guidance, the 

Committee provides a high-level focus on assurance and governance arrangements.   

 
3.91 The Audit and Standards Committee monitors the operation of the organisation.  Their role is to ensure that 

the MCA is fulfilling its legal obligations, complies with statutory requirements, is managing risk effectively 

and has robust control measures in place for all devolved powers and funding.  The Committee reviews and 

endorses all budgets and accounts, including those for the LEP, before they are finalised and presented to 

the MCA Board for approval, and identify any risks.  

 
3.92 Membership of the Audit and Standards Committee is politically balanced and consists of 8 elected 

Councillors (or their nominated substitute) from the four South Yorkshire local authorities and two 

independent members.  

 

3.93 The Audit and Standards Committee meets at least quarterly and reports into the MCA on both financial and 

non-financial performance.  

 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

3.94 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee holds the MCA, Mayor, LEP and Thematic Boards to account for all 

decisions taken, including devolved powers and funding.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has the 

authority to review and scrutinise any decision made, or action taken by the LEP, MCA, Mayor, Thematic 

Boards or MCA Executive Team.  The Committee can, at their discretion, produce reports and make 

recommendations for change or improvements.   

 
3.95 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is responsible for checking that the MCA and LEP are delivering their 

objectives, and that policies, strategies and plans are made in the best interests of residents and workers in 

Page 49

https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s2868/A%20-%20Members%20Code%20of%20Conduct.pdf
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/LEP-Code-of-Conduct-20-21v1.0.pdf
https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s2860/C%20-%20Audit%20and%20Standards%20Committee.pdf
https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s2861/D%20-%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf


 

22 
 

the Sheffield City Region.  They provide independent scrutiny of initiatives and LEP activities and public 

consultation on draft strategies. 

 
3.96 Membership of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is politically balanced and consists of 10 elected 

Councillors from the four South Yorkshire local authorities (or their nominated substitute); typically, the Chair 

of each local authority’s overarching Scrutiny Committee.  

 
3.97 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee meets on a quarterly basis.  The MCA is required to consider the 

conclusions of any review by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at the next available meeting.  

 
 

Statutory Officers 

3.98 The MCA appoints three Statutory Officers to discharge duties and obligations on their behalf.  The Statutory 

Officers ensure that the MCA is acting in accordance with its legal duties and responsibilities, operating within 

the financial regulations and receiving appropriate advice on policy and governance.  

 
3.99 The Statutory Officer roles are defined in the MCA Constitution and comprise: 

 

 Head of Paid Service – The Chief Executive of the MCA fulfils the role of the Head of Paid Service.  

The Head of Paid Service discharges the functions in relation to the MCA as set out in section 4 of the 

Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and acts as the principal advisor to the LEP. 

 Section 73 Officer – The Group Finance Director fulfils the role of Section 73 Officer in accordance 

with the Local Government Act 1985.  The Section 73 Officer administers the financial affairs of the MCA 

and LEP. 

 Monitoring Officer – The Monitoring Officer discharges the functions in relation to the MCA as set out 

in section 5 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

 
 

Remuneration Panel 
 
3.100 An independent Remuneration Panel convenes to identify the salary and allowances that should be paid to 

the Mayor and Deputy Mayor for their term of office.  The MCA does not currently have a Deputy Mayor.    

 

3.101 The Remuneration Panel reports their recommendations in a report to the MCA Board who decide the salary 

and allowances that will be paid.  

 

 

The MCA Executive Team 
 
3.102 The MCA Board, LEP Board and Thematic Boards are supported by the MCA Executive Team.  The MCA 

Executive Team is a dedicated resource that provides impartial advice and works in collaboration with 

partners and stakeholders.  

 
3.103 The role of the MCA Executive Team is to advise and support the MCA, Mayor and LEP.   

 

3.104 The MCA Executive Team of staff are employed by the MCA and the current functions are shown in Figure 

6 below.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50

https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s2862/E%20-%20Scheme%20of%20Delegation%20of%20Functions%20to%20Officers%20and%20Schedule%20of%20Proper%20Officers.pdf


 

23 
 

Figure 6: The MCA Executive Team Structure 

 

 

 

3.105 The MCA Executive Team supports the following activities: 

 

 Developing Policy - supporting the MCA, Mayor and LEP to draft key policy, including the SEP; 

 Initiating and Encouraging Project Ideas - the team works with officers from local authorities, the 

private sector and project applicants to identify and bring forward viable project ideas that support the 

strategic objectives of the City Region; 

 Advising Funding Applicants on Business Cases and the Appraisal Process – advising project 

applicants on how to develop a robust and comprehensive Business Case; 

 Appraising Business Cases – independently reviewing and appraising business cases and funding 

applications through the Assurance Panel and contracting specialists and subject experts to undertake 

technical reviews as required, prior to making recommendations to the Thematic Boards; 

 Programme and Project Design and Development – designing and developing investment 

programmes and projects to deliver the agreed policy objectives of the Mayor, MCA and LEP, in line 

with the agreed Investment Plan.  This sometimes includes preparing and submitting funding bids to 

Central Government proactively or in response to specific calls and opportunities that may arise; 

 Programme Monitoring - collating and communicating performance on different funding streams to the 

MCA and LEP Boards and MHCLG as per the Government’s requirements; 

 Project Monitoring and Evaluation - managing the monitoring and evaluation framework, and 

providing reports and updates to the Thematic Boards, MCA and LEP; 

 Administration and secretariat function for the Boards – ensuring MCA, LEP and Thematic Board 

meetings are planned and arranged in a timely fashion and communicated;  

 Compiling Papers and Reports - for the Mayor and Board members; 

 Enquiries – dealing with the media and handling general enquiries from the public;  

 Publishing Information – ensuring that minutes, agendas and papers of the meetings of the LEP, MCA 

Board, Audit and Standards Committee and Overview and Scrutiny Committee are published promptly 

on the MCA website and publishing information on MCA and LEP policies and procedures; and 

 Promoting the City Region – to potential investors and the public as a place to invest, work and live. 

 

3.106 The functions of the MCA Executive Team are organised to maintain ‘ethical walls’ and ensure that there are 

no opportunities for conflicts of interest between project and programme commissioning and project 

appraisal. 

Page 51



 

24 
 

 

  

Page 52



 

25 
 

4. Accountability for Public Funds 

 
4.1 Several measures are in place to ensure that the Mayor, MCA and LEP are managing and administering 

public funds in a responsible, efficient, transparent and accountable manner.    

 
 

The Accountable Body 

4.2 The MCA is the legal and Accountable Body for powers and funding devolved by Government.  The MCA is 

also the legal and accountable body for the LEP and is therefore responsible for all decisions and 

expenditure.    

 

4.3 The MCA holds all funding, enters into contractual arrangements and processes payments.  The MCA also 

provides programme management to account for the funding and ensures that the impact of investment is 

assessed.   

 

4.4 The MCA is accountable for: 

 

 Ensuring that its decisions and activities conform with legal requirements regarding equalities, 

environmental and European legislation (such as State Aid), and that records are maintained so that 

this is evidenced; 

 Retaining overall responsibility for the appropriate use of public funds by the MCA, LEP and Thematic 

Boards; 

 Ensuring that the approved Assurance Framework is being adhered to; 

 Ensuring that all contracts entered discharge their duties; and 

 Maintaining and publishing annual accounts (including devolved and other funding sources received 

from Government), in accordance with the relevant regulations, each year in draft form by 31 May and 

finalised in July. 

 

4.5 In accordance with section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972, the MCA delegates certain decisions to 

the Statutory Officers.  The Scheme of Delegation in Part 4. E of the Constitution specifies the delegations 

for funding and decision-making that are available to the Head of Paid Service (the Chief Executive of the 

MCA), the Section 73 Officer (Group Finance Director), and the Monitoring Officer.     

 

 

Section 73 Officer 

4.6 The Section 73 Officer is fully engaged in the operation of the organisation, ensuring that devolved funds are 

managed responsibly and allocated through a robust application process.  

 
4.7 The Section 73 Officer is accountable for: 

 

 Ensuring that devolved funds, including the AEB, are used legally, appropriately and are subject to the 

usual local authority checks and balances, including discharging financial duties under the Financial 

Regulations 2019; 

 Ensuring that the MCA acts in a manner that is lawful, transparent, evidence based, consistent and 

proportionate, including the publication of annual audited accounts; 

 Signing-off Value for Money Statements for all funding applications during the appraisal process as true 

and accurate;  

 Certifying that funding can be released under the appropriate conditions (in line with statutory duties);   

Page 53

https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s2862/E%20-%20Scheme%20of%20Delegation%20of%20Functions%20to%20Officers%20and%20Schedule%20of%20Proper%20Officers.pdf
https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s2876/Appendix%202%20-%20Financial%20Regulations.pdf
https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s2876/Appendix%202%20-%20Financial%20Regulations.pdf


 

26 
 

 Signing-off quarterly reports to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 

on programme performance and expenditure;    

 Ensuring that the established professional codes of practice are applied; and 

 Ensuring that strong governance arrangements and LEP policies are in place to ensure that the LEP is 

operating robustly and transparently (by providing an Annual Assurance Statement and letter to the 

MHCLG Accounting Officer). 

 

Internal and External Audit 

4.8 The MCA has an established process for internal and external audit.  Internal audit is a contracted service 

provided by Grant Thornton.  Ernst and Young are the appointed external auditors.  As the MCA is the 

Accountable Body, the audit arrangements cover both the LEP and the MCA’s funding and activities, 

including devolved monies. 

 
4.9 In conjunction with the internal audit team, the MCA Head of Paid Service, Section 73 Officer and Monitoring 

officer prepare an annual Internal Audit Plan at the start of each financial year, which is reviewed towards 

the end of the financial year.  The Internal Audit Plan includes all aspects of the appraisal, assurance, 

monitoring and evaluation processes.  This provides independent and objective assurance to the MCA.  The 

Plan is approved by the MCA and is considered by the Audit and Standards Committee.  The current plan 

was approved by the Audit and Standards Committee in July 2020.  

 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 

4.10 The independent Overview and Scrutiny Committee holds the MCA, Mayor, LEP and Thematic Boards to 

account on behalf of the public.  They have the authority to review and scrutinise any decisions made 

including the investment of devolved funds, or actions taken.  The Committee can at their discretion, make 

recommendations for change or improvement. 

 
4.11 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has an annual Work Programme of topics that they will scrutinise.  

Committee members are encouraged to propose additional topics for scrutiny.   

 
 

Assurance Panel 

4.12 The Assurance Panel conducts a technical review of all business cases for projects that are seeking funding.  

The Panel currently consists of a LEP Board member who acts as Chair, the MCA’s three Statutory Officers 

or their representatives (Monitoring Officer, Section 73 Officer and Head of Paid Service) and relevant 

officers from the MCA Executive Team.  The Panel makes recommendations to the appropriate decision-

making Board on the value for money and level of risk of a project and whether to endorse, approve, defer 

or reject funding applications.  The Assurance Panel also advises on any conditions that should be placed 

on the funding and advises on the merits of potentially competing funding applications by considering the net 

impact of the overall investment programme. 

 
4.13 The Statutory Officers ensure that the Accountable Body duties are discharged through their representation 

on the Assurance Panel. This embeds the roles and functions of the Statutory Officers in the project appraisal 

process.  All projects seeking funding are reviewed by the Assurance Panel and are subject to independent 

technical scrutiny.   

 

4.14 The Assurance Panel meets every two weeks, or more frequently if necessary, to ensure the pipeline of 

project proposals continues at the required pace.   

 

4.15 The appraisal process is detailed in Section 5. 

 

Page 54

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/OSC-Work-Programme-2018-19-_website.pdf


 

27 
 

 

Ensuring Value for Money 

4.16 All projects and programmes that apply for funding are appraised and assessed for Value for Money (VfM) 

using the HM Treasury Green Book and appraisal guidance published by individual Government departments 

such as the Department for Education and Department for Transport and the Ministry for Housing, 

Community and Local Government. 

 

4.17 The VfM assessment considers the potential costs, benefits, risks, uncertainties and impacts of the project.  

A Benefit Cost Ratio (BCR) is calculated for the project wherever possible but this is just one of the basket 

of metrics considered in the VfM assessment.  All of the wider monetised and non-monetised impacts and 

benefits of a project are quantified wherever possible and non-quantifiable benefits are also assessed 

qualitatively.  Non-monetised costs and disbenefits are also qualitatively assessed.    

 

4.18 A VfM Statement is completed by the Assurance Panel at every stage of the appraisal process (Strategic 

Outline Case, Business Justification Case, Outline Business Case and Full Business Case) and published 

on the MCA website with the business case to enable partners and members of the public to comment.  The 

initial, adjusted and final BCR for transport projects is calculated in accordance with the DfT’s Value for 

Money Advice Note for Local Transport Decision Makers.      

 

4.19 The VfM statements are on a proportionate basis relative to the level of risk, complexity and funding sought. 

 

4.20 The Section 73 Officer is responsible for signing-off VfM Statements and this must be done before a project 

can progress to the next stage of the appraisal process.  The VfM Statement is also signed-off by the MCA 

at each stage of the appraisal process.   

 

4.21 The VfM Statement for each project, is presented to the appropriate Board or Thematic Board.  The 

Statement includes the Assurance Panel’s justification and recommendation on whether the project should 

be approved, deferred or rejected and any conditions that should be put in place. 

 

4.22 The ambition is always to support projects that demonstrate High VfM.  However, projects that are appraised 

as offering lower VfM, may still be funded if there is a strong strategic business case and the project will 

deliver the strategic and economic objectives in the SEP (for economic growth, inclusion and sustainability), 

or where the project is essential to unlock or enable other development to take place.  However, the MCA 

and/or LEP can decide to remove a project from the programme if the appraisal identifies Poor or Low VfM. 

 
 

Managing Risk 

4.23 The approach to risk management is comprehensive and in accordance with HM Treasury’s Orange Book 

principles and other project management guidance.  The Deputy Chief Executive of the MCA is the named 

officer for managing risk on the MCA and LEP activity. 

 

4.24 Robust control measures and a Strategic Risk Management Framework are in place to provide accountability 

and support due diligence.  The Strategic Risk Management Framework guides the identification, 

assessment and management of risks for all activities.     

 
4.25 Risk management controls and mitigation action plans are agreed and added to the programme Risk 

Register.  A plan is then constructed to reduce the likelihood of the risk occurring and/or decrease the impact 

of a risk, should it occur.   

 
4.26 Funding applicants are required to include risk and contingency plans as part of their application for funding.  

Once a project has received funding approval, the MCA Executive Team works with project applicants to 

monitor delivery of the contract and risks.  Quarterly Monitoring reports are compiled for the Thematic Boards 

to identify any issues with delivery, perceived or actual risks to the project, any corrective action and any 

change requests (for example, a reduction in grant or an extension to the timescale for delivering key 

Page 55



 

28 
 

milestones).  Any risks to the delivery of the SEP Programme are reported to, and considered by, the Chairs 

and Vice Chairs of the MCA and LEP respectively. 

 

 

Annual Reviews by Government 

4.27 The MCA holds a review meeting with Government each year to discuss delivery of the Devolution Deal and 

investment of devolved funding.  The meeting is an opportunity to identify achievements and successes and 

any areas for improvement. 

 

4.28 The LEP is reviewed twice a year by Government; a Mid-Year Review and an Annual Performance Review.  

The review considers the governance arrangements that are in place, strategic approach and performance 

against profiled expenditure and outputs on funding awarded to the LEP.  A representative of the MCA 

attends the Annual Performance Review meeting, along with the LEP Chair and/or LEP Deputy Chair.      

 

  

Page 56



 

29 
 

5. Robust and Transparent Decision-Making 

 

5.1 In accordance with the Transparency Code and Government guidance on best practice, the Mayor, MCA 

Board, LEP Board and Thematic Boards are expected to act in the interests of the Sheffield City Region 

when making investment decisions.  All decisions are made via an approved process, free from bias or 

perception of bias.   

 

5.2 To ensure that decision-making is robust and transparent, all meetings of the MCA Board, Audit and 

Standards Committee and Overview and Scrutiny Committee are held in public.  The MCA also publishes a 

monthly Forward Plan of Key Decisions to alert the public to decisions that will be taken, in advance of the 

decision being made.  The decision-making process is detailed below. 

 
 

Budget Setting and Allocation 

5.3 The annual Mayoral Budget is developed by the Mayor, alongside the MCA revenue and capital budget.  The 

budgets are presented to the MCA Board in draft form in November and again for final approval each 

January.  The budgets must be agreed in accordance with the Combined Authorities (Finance) Order 2017 

and the Constitution. 

 

5.4 The budget for the allocation and investment of Gainshare funding for the 2021/22 and 2022/23 financial 

years was agreed by the MCA Board in advance.  The budget was set in accordance with the agreed 

investment priorities identified and agreed by members in the Renewal Action Plan (RAP) that was submitted 

to Government in Summer 2020.  Activities funded with Gainshare are managed and accounted for alongside 

all funding devolved and awarded to the MCA and LEP.    

 

5.5 The MCA, in consultation with the LEP where appropriate, is responsible for setting the annual capital and 

revenue budgets for any funding allocated to the LEP prior to the start of the financial year.   

 

5.6 All approved capital and revenue budgets are published on the MCA website.  Budgets are monitored on a 

quarterly basis with reports submitted to the Boards.  Quarterly financial monitoring reports on individual 

programmes and projects are also submitted. 

 

5.7 The Investment Plan identifies how all devolved funding will be invested to deliver the South Yorkshire 

Devolution Deal and the strategic objectives and investment priorities outlined in the SEP and RAP.  

Individual Delivery Plans identify how budgets will be spent in each of the thematic areas (for example, skills, 

business growth and housing).  The Investment and Delivery Plans are informed by quantitative data and 

qualitative information on the performance and health of the Sheffield City Region economy, and analysis of 

economic, social and environmental needs.  This ensures that the development of new schemes and 

interventions will address weaknesses and opportunities in the economy. 

 

5.8 Investment decisions on the allocation and use of the Adult Education Budget (AEB) in South Yorkshire are 

made with full consideration to the statutory entitlements.  Approximately half of the AEB is allocated to the 

delivery of the following statutory entitlements: 

 

 English and Maths, up to and including Level 2, for individuals aged 19 and over, who have not 

previously attained a GCSE grade A* to C or grade 4, or higher, and/or; 

 First full qualification at Level 2 for individuals aged 19 to 23, and/or; 

 First full qualification at Level 3 for individuals aged 19-23. 

 

5.9 The remainder of the AEB is allocated to non-statutory training and is procured through an open, 

commissioning process.   

Page 57

https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=137&RD=0&bcr=1


 

30 
 

 

5.10 The MCA Board is the final decision-making body for AEB funding awards.   

 

 

 

Commissioning and Open Calls 

5.11 In accordance with the agreed policy, programme and project applications for funding usually originate from 

three sources: 

 

 A Thematic Board – the Thematic Boards will proactively identify potential projects which satisfy the 

policy objectives of the SEP, RAP and thematic Delivery Plan.  These are subject to funding being 

available.   

 MCA Executive Team – the MCA Executive Team may identify a need for a programme or project that 

either meets the policy objectives and strategic outcomes of the SEP, RAP or which will respond to an 

economic shock. These details may be held within an agreed Commissioning Framework or Delivery 

Plan.  

 Via a targeted Open Call for Project Applications – open calls inviting applicants to bid for funding or 

propose a project are published on the MCA website.  Calls have a specific focus, such as delivering an 

investment priority or targets in the SEP.  Project applicants will then submit a response or bid.  

 

5.12 Commissioning for non-statutory AEB delivery began at the end of 2020. Training providers are required to 

submit a Delivery Plan which will be appraised.  Following a moderation process, the MCA will consider and 

then approve all funding allocations.   

 

5.13 The procurement process for non-statutory AEB delivery follows established rules and best practice for 

procurement including the latest HM Treasury Green Book and AEB funding and appraisal guidance and will 

seek best value for money. 

 
 

The Appraisal Process 

5.14 All schemes seeking investment (including projects commissioned by the Thematic Boards, responses to 

Open Calls and projects identified by the MCA Executive Team but excluding AEB), undergo a proportionate 

process and appraisal to assess the merits of the application, its strategic fit and value for money. 

 

5.15 Each project and application for funding is assessed on its own merit, including where there are potentially 

competing applications for funding.   

 

5.16 For transport schemes, central case assessments must be based on forecasts which are consistent with the 

definitive version of NTEM (DfT’s planning dataset). This requirement doesn’t stop MCAs and LEPs 

considering alternative planning assumptions as sensitivity tests and considering the results of these in 

coming to a decision about whether to approve a scheme. 

 

5.17 The steps involved in the appraisal process are detailed and illustrated in Figure 7. The MCA can decide to 

agree a bespoke process for project development and assurance which may omit stages to what is shown 

below, if the circumstances demand this.  This will be in situations where for example, a national funding 

allocation demands such changes in order to meet the eligibility criteria. In any cases where there is a 

departure from the full process, the MCA will agree a revised process based on the existing stages laid out 

in this document. 

 

Page 58



 

31 
 

Figure 7: Business Case Development, Appraisal and Approval Process 

  

P
age 59



 

32 
 

Pre-Submission: Programme and Project Ideas Entry 

5.18 For an investment idea or concept to be considered by the LEP and MCA, a process is required so that the 

basic details can the discussed and assessed.  This acts as a filter and an early check on the expectations 

of all parties, ensuring that scheme promoters do not deploy resources into further project development and 

the production of a more detailed business case until exploratory discussions have taken place with the MCA 

and LEP.  The discussion will be used to confirm that the intended outcomes are likely to contribute to the 

agreed policy objectives and strategic outcomes.  A form is the usual means by which initial ideas, concepts 

and proposals are captured and assessed.  The MCA Executive Team works with the relevant Thematic 

Board to consider this and may then make a proposal to the LEP or MCA Board to accept a proposal onto 

the programme pipeline, or to defer or reject it. 

 

 

Stage 1 Submission: Strategic Business Case 

 

5.19 The purpose of the Strategic Business Case (SBC) is to establish the case for change and should provide a 

first detailed (albeit high level) view of the ‘how, what and when’ the project will deliver.  It is important that 

an SBC can demonstrate its alignment with the SEP and RAP which set the blueprint for how funds will be 

invested.  The SBC is a standard template and requests the following information from the applicant: 

 

 Project objectives and the rationale for investment; 

 Project outputs and outcomes against the SEP and RAP; 

 High level timescales; 

 High level cost estimate of project (a range will suffice at this stage); 

 Initial estimate of funding required; 

 Project sponsor; and 

 Identifying risks, initial options analysis and the preferred way forward.     

 
 
Stage 1 Appraisal: Strategic Business Case 

5.20 The SBC is assessed in line with the five-dimension model in the HM Treasury Green Book and appraisal 

guidance published by individual Government departments.  The SBC is therefore appraised against the 

following criteria: 

 

 Strategic Dimension – contribution to strategic objectives and national policy objectives; 

 Economic Dimension – impact on local and national growth, likely BCR category, the social, 

distributional and environmental impacts, and an assessment of the value the project adds; 

 Financial Dimension – cost estimate and sources of funding e.g. identified scheme promoter, private 

sector and other contributions; 

 Commercial Dimension – proven marketplace for the project, certainty in outcomes, procurement 

processes and commercial viability, consideration of social value; and 

 Management Dimension – demonstration that the project is capable of being delivered successfully, 

including Delivery Plans, statutory processes, programme, risk management (with appropriate mitigation 

plans), State Aid and benefit realisation. 

 
5.21 The biggest emphasis at this stage is on the Strategic Dimension and to an extent the Economic Dimension. 

It is at this stage that a decision is made regarding the strategic fit of the proposed intervention’s objectives, 

outcomes, impact and benefits relative to the SEP and RAP. This needs to be proven and agreed at this 

stage. An early assessment of the potential value for money offered by the preferred way forward, relative to 

the current situation and the do minimum option, informs the programme entry decision. 

Page 60



 

33 
 

  

5.22 To assess complex or transport related schemes, a series of approved and bespoke testing tools and models 

may be used (such as FLUTE 18, SCRTM1) to better understand the potential outcomes and value for money 

of an application.  A proportionate TAG assessment is undertaken, relative to the size of the project, to 

consider aspects such as the quality of the built environment.  The VfM Statement confirms what tools have 

been used in conducting the appraisal at this stage.   

 
5.23 The MCA Executive Team completes a VfM Statement and submits the appraisal report and VfM Statement 

to the Assurance Panel for their assessment.   

 

 

Stage 1 Assurance Panel Recommendation: Strategic Outline Case 

5.24 The Assurance Panel reviews the technical analysis undertaken by the MCA Executive Team and then 

agrees what recommendation will be made to the appropriate Board; either to accept a project to the 

programme pipeline, defer the project for further work or to reject the project.   

 

5.25 Dependent on the source and level of funding, the LEP Board, MCA or a Thematic Board will have ultimate 

oversight of which projects are invited to develop their business cases further.  The MCA has ultimate 

oversight of all TCF projects and projects seeking investment from devolved funding.  A VfM statement is 

submitted to the relevant board alongside other assessment information so that they can make a decision 

on which projects should be selected to further develop their business cases. In cases where the LEP or 

MCA have funding oversight, Thematic Boards may be consulted during the Strategic Business Case 

assessment and selection process. 

 

5.26 Once a project has been accepted onto the programme pipeline, the VfM Statement is published on the MCA 

website alongside a summary of the SBC. This is updated periodically to include links to the key documents 

for each project and a record of progress.  The MCA Executive Team collects any external comments on 

these schemes, and these are considered as part of the appraisal process.  Project sponsors are also 

required to publish their SBC’s on their own websites (or an appropriate summary of the submission) and 

must consider all comments received and reflect this in the next stages of the application process (Outline 

Business Case and Full Business Case). 

 
 
Stage 2 Submission: Outline Business Case 

5.27 Having been accepted onto the programme pipeline, the project applicant or scheme promoter is required to 

develop the project and subsequently the business case further.  The aim of an Outline Business Case (OBC) 

is to: 

 

 Identify the investment option which optimises value for money; 

 Prepare a scheme for procurement; and 

 Put in place the necessary funding and management arrangements for the successful delivery of the 

scheme. 

 

Once an OBC has been developed, there will be a clear understanding of the project plan, project 

management and governance arrangements, benefits realisation and risk management arrangements. 

Project assurance and post-project evaluation details will be fully worked-up. 

 

5.28 The requirements at this stage are dependent on the nature, scale, risk and complexity of the project.  For 

most small value cases (less than £500,000 total project value and offering a low level of risk), a project will 

go through a Business Justification Case (BJC) rather than require an OBC and Full Business Case (FBC).  

Small value projects which are complex, or which present significant risk will still require an OBC and FBC. 

 

Page 61



 

34 
 

5.29 The OBC and FBC build on the foundations of the Strategic Outline Case in that they provide considerably 

more detail on each of the five dimensions outlined in the latest HM Treasury Green Book guidance.  The 

MCA Executive Team will provide guidance to project applicants and scheme promoters to assist them in 

developing an OBC and FBC, including DfT business case guidance for transport projects. 

 

5.30 A series of gateway checks are in place to ensure that projects are developed to the appropriate standard at 

the right time, to enable informed decisions to be made by the appropriate Boards.   

 

5.31 If agreed at programme level by the MCA, individual projects may be supported with their capital development 

costs to assist with timely progression of business cases.  A proportion of total project costs may be released 

early at OBC stage (typically 2% of the total project cost) for capital scheme development, and/or at FBC 

stage (typically around 10% of the total project cost) to support detailed design and other procurement costs 

and fees to progress the scheme.  For TCF and other transport projects, the amount of funding that would 

be available for early release is around 12% of the scheme value (based on a costed fee plan) to mitigate 

risks associated with developing and delivering large schemes.  For all other projects, the amount of funding 

that will potentially be released early is around 10% (based on a costed fee plan).  The full development 

funding awarded is entirely subject to clawback if the application does not result in successful capital delivery 

over an agreed timeframe.  

 

5.32 The five dimensions help to ensure that all impacts of a project (monetised and non-monetised) are presented 

in the OBC and FBC for consideration.  The OBC and FBC templates and guidance set out the basis for 

capturing impacts, including Optimism Bias.  The Optimism Bias for transport projects is calculated in 

accordance with the DfT’s Value for Money Advice Note for Local Transport Decision Makers.      

 

5.33 It is essential that project applicants and scheme promoters agree the scope of costs and benefits before 
any substantive business case development is undertaken.   

 
5.34 Project applicants and scheme promoters must also ensure that the commercial, financial and management 

arrangements are appropriate for effective delivery. 

 

5.35 Once a final version of the OBC is received from an applicant, it is published on the MCA website to enable 

partners, stakeholders and members of the public to comment on the proposed project, and its projected 

costs and outputs.  Any comments received are considered as part of the appraisal. 

 

5.36 A fully developed OBC will have determined the preferred option, potential value for money, ascertained 

affordability and funding requirements and be preparing the potential deal which enables successful delivery.  

Once an OBC is fully developed it is submitted for appraisal.  

 
 
Stage 2 Appraisal: Outline Business Case 

5.37 An independent assessment is undertaken of all OBCs to quality assure and scrutinise the project as well as 

undertaking all necessary due diligence checks.  Any comments received via the MCA website on the 

published business case are considered. 

 

5.38 When technical expertise or specialist advice is required to appraise the project, the MCA Executive Team 

uses experts – the Central Independent Appraisal Team (CIAT) - to assist in appraising the Business Case.  

The MCA Executive Team ensures there is always a clear distinction and adequate separation between the 

scheme promoters and the decision makers.  

 
5.39 Transport projects undergo a proportionate TAG compliant appraisal.  An Appraisal Scoping Report template 

is used to assess such schemes, comprising the: 

 

 Level of analytical detail to be applied to approve a scheme against overarching Government transport 

objectives and the rationale for this; 

Page 62



 

35 
 

 Modelling tools to be applied; 

 Alternative interventions to be considered; and 

 Timescales for business case development. 

 
5.40 The MCA Executive Team completes a Value for Money (VfM) Statement and submits the appraisal report 

and VfM Statement to the Assurance Panel for their assessment. 

 
 

Stage 2 Assurance Panel Recommendation: Outline Business Case 

5.41 The Assurance Panel reviews the technical analysis undertaken by the MCA Executive Team and CIAT 

(where applicable), including the VfM Statement.  The Assurance Panel then agrees what recommendation 

they will make to the Thematic Board; either to approve the project or defer the project for further work.  At 

this stage it is still possible that an application could be recommended for rejection on the grounds of Poor 

VfM (determined as having a BCR rating of below 1, along with other indicators also showing poor levels 

accounting for significant non-monetised impacts and key uncertainties) or presenting significant uncertainty 

or risk.   

 
5.42 The Thematic Board can approve the Outline Business Case if it is within their delegated limit.  Projects 

which exceed the delegation are endorsed by the relevant Thematic Board and then submitted to the MCA 

Board for approval. 

 

5.43 Meeting papers for the MCA or relevant Thematic Board are published on the MCA website a week before 

the meeting, including the project summaries and VfM assessments of applications seeking OBC approval. 

 
5.44 At OBC stage, the funding decision of the MCA (or Thematic Board with delegated authority) will be notionally 

allocated, subject to appropriate conditions being met within an agreed timeframe.  All funding decisions are 

communicated in writing to project applicants. 

 
5.45 Following approval of an OBC, it may be necessary to complete a range of statutory processes to ensure 

the project is actually ready to start.  This could include for example, obtaining planning permission, initiating 

a Compulsory Purchase Order, or satisfying a number of conditions agreed as part of the OBC.  Compliance 

checks on any conditions of funding specified by the MCA, LEP or Thematic Board are then carried out by 

the MCA Executive Team, and updated documents on the project including the VfM Statement is published 

on the MCA website. 

 

 

Stage 3 Submission and Appraisal: Full Business Case 

5.46 Much of the work involved in producing the FBC focuses on revisiting and updating the conclusions of the 

OBC and documenting the outcomes of the procurement.  The purpose of the FBC is to: 

 

 Identify the procurement opportunity which offers optimum value for money; 

 Agree the commercial and contractual arrangements for the successful delivery; and 

 Put in place the detailed management arrangements for successful delivery. 

Any pre-contract conditions which were put in place as part of the OBC approval should be cleared during 

the development of an FBC. 

 

5.47 Once a final version of the FBC is received from an applicant, it is published on the MCA website to enable 

partners, stakeholders and members of the public to comment.  Any comments received are considered 

before the project receives full approval.  

Page 63



 

36 
 

5.48 The Assurance Panel reviews the technical analysis undertaken by the MCA Executive Team and CIAT 

(where applicable), including the VfM Statement.  The Assurance Panel then agrees what recommendation 

they will make to the Thematic Board; either to approve the project or defer the project for further work.   

 

 

Stage 3 Agreement: Full Business Case 

5.49 Meeting papers for the MCA or relevant Thematic Board are published on the MCA website a week before 

the meeting, including the project summaries and VfM assessments of applications seeking FBC approval. 

 

5.50 The Thematic Board can approve the Full Business Case if it is within their delegated limit.  Projects which 

exceed the delegation are endorsed by the relevant Thematic Board and then submitted to the MCA Board 

for approval. 

 

5.51 At this point, the MCA, or Thematic Board if it is within their delegation limits, will be asked to grant authority 

to enter into a Funding Agreement once funding approval is given.  Updated documents on the project 

including the VfM Statement are published on the MCA website. 

 
 

Complaints and Appeals 

5.52 All applicants for funding are made aware of the recommendations made by the Assurance Panel and the 

decision of the relevant approving Board, along with the rationale for the recommendations.  Complaints can 

be made if the applicant deems that due process has not been followed. 

 
5.53 Decisions made by the Mayor, MCA, LEP and Thematic Boards can be scrutinised by the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee.  All decisions on funding must follow the appraisal process outlined above to be valid.   

 

5.54 If a complaint is made, the MCA Chair and Monitoring Officer will convene an independent committee to 

review the issue and make a recommendation to the MCA/LEP Board as appropriate.   

 
5.55 In any case where it is alleged that the MCA, LEP or Thematic Board is (a) acting in breach of the law, (b) 

failing to adhere to the process outlined in this Assurance Framework, or (c) failing to safeguard public funds, 

complaints are directed to the MCA’s Monitoring Officer or their deputy.  This includes complaints from 

stakeholders, members of the public or internal whistleblowers.  

 

5.56 As the MCA is the accountable body for all funding decisions, the Monitoring Officer will address the 

allegation following the protocols set out in the MCA Constitution. 

 

5.57 If the MCA or LEP cannot resolve the issue to the complainant’s satisfaction, and the complaint relates to 

funding allocated to the City Region, the issue may be passed to the relevant Government department (such 

as the MHCLG, or the Department for Transport (DfT). 

 

 

Conflicts of Interest and Decision-Making 

5.58 At all stages of decision-making, the national guidance on registering conflicts of interest is adhered to. This 

includes any interests declared by members of the MCA, LEP and Thematic Boards, the Assurance Panel, 

and Statutory Officers.  This is detailed in the LEP Declarations of Interest Policy.    

 

5.59 Each member of the MCA, LEP and Thematic Boards is required to declare their pecuniary and non-

pecuniary interests (whether they are a member in their individual capacity or representing an organisation).  

Members are also responsible for reviewing and updating their register.  This includes declaring any gifts or 

hospitality received.  Declarations of interest are also sought and recorded in the minutes of each MCA, LEP 

Page 64

https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=181&MId=392&Ver=4&Info=1
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/LEP-Declaration-of-Interests-Policy20-21-V1.0.pdf


 

37 
 

and Thematic Board meeting. The Individual Register of Interest forms and the Register of Declarations 

Made at Meetings are regularly updated and published on the MCA website.   

 
5.60 Senior members of staff within the MCA Executive Team and Statutory Officers also complete and maintain 

an Individual Register of Interest and update it when circumstances change.  These are also published on 

the MCA website.  

  

Page 65

https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/mgMemberIndexGroup.aspx?G=Cmembers&M=SCRCommitteeMembers&bcr=1
https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/mgListDeclarationsOfInterest.aspx?XXR=0&DR=01%2f01%2f2019-12%2f11%2f2019&ACT=Find
https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/mgListDeclarationsOfInterest.aspx?XXR=0&DR=01%2f01%2f2019-12%2f11%2f2019&ACT=Find


 

38 
 

6. Contract Management 
 

 
6.1 Once a project is approved, contracts are issued and regular communication with the project applicant or 

scheme promoter is maintained throughout the project’s lifetime. 

 

 

Contracting  

6.2 A Funding Agreement between the MCA and project applicant/scheme promoter sets out the conditions 

relating to the MCA’s agreement to fund the project and the responsibilities of the MCA and applicant/scheme 

promoter in managing, delivering and monitoring the project.   

 

6.3 The Funding Agreement specifies that grants and loans are capped, and applicants/scheme promoters bear 

the risk for all overspend on the project beyond the approved amount. 

 

6.4 The Funding Agreement also stipulates the expected outputs and outcomes that the project will deliver.    

 

 

Payment Against Claims 

6.5 Payment milestones are agreed with the project applicant/scheme promoter at the point of contract.  The 

milestones depend on the complexity, cost and timescales of the project.  This forms part of the programme 

management role of the MCA, which is subject to external audit. 

 
6.6 Each grant claim is crosschecked against the approved project baseline information as part of the quarterly 

reporting processes. 

 
 

Managing Contract Performance 

6.7 The MCA Executive Team manages the delivery of the contract and works with the applicant/scheme 

promoter to monitor the project’s progress and risks. Monitoring conditions are set out initially in a grant 

determination letter from Government for each funding source, so the MCA Executive Team is required to 

adopt a flexible approach to managing contract performance. This may be dependent on the funding source, 

value or risk of a particular programme or project.  

 

6.8 The MCA Executive Team monitors the delivery of the project, and the progress made in achieving the 

outputs and outcomes, in line with the Monitoring and Evaluation Framework.  

 

6.9 The MCA Executive Team is responsible for immediately addressing any slippages or concerns regarding 

project delivery and taking corrective action, including updating the Risk Register as necessary.   

 

6.10 A change control process is in place to ensure that variations to an approved project are discussed with the 

project applicant and agreed with the MCA Executive Team.  Variations to a project are logged on the 

project’s file and reported to the LEP, MCA and Thematic Boards when appropriate.  Minor changes which 

do not alter the terms of the Funding Agreement can be agreed between the project applicant and MCA 

Executive Team.  The relevant Board is however, notified of any changes that are contrary to the terms of 

the Funding Agreement, such as changes to a project’s income, expenditure or output profile.    

 

6.11 Where there is significant underperformance or cause for concern, a project will be referred to the MCA, LEP 

or Thematic Boards for a decision.  

 
 

Page 66



 

39 
 

Clawback 

6.12 The Funding Agreement includes a mechanism for clawback based on an assessment of risk.  This ensures 

that funding is only spent on the specified project and linked to the delivery of outputs and outcomes, whilst 

giving the MCA and LEP the option of clawing back funds for poor performance or misuse of funds.   

  

Page 67



 

40 
 

7. Measuring Performance and Success 

 
7.1 Monitoring and measuring the performance of projects and programmes provides important lessons which 

are used to improve future decision-making.  This increases the likelihood of successful delivery of future 

projects.   

 
 

Monitoring and Evaluation Framework 

7.2 A comprehensive monitoring and evaluation framework is in place which has been designed in accordance 

with the most recent HM Treasury’s Magenta and Green Book principles and other monitoring and evaluation 

guidance, such as that published by the What Works Centre. 

 

7.3 The Monitoring and Evaluation Framework sets out how projects and programmes including devolved funds 

such as AEB and TCF will be assessed both during their delivery and post-delivery phases, to understand 

the inputs, outputs and impacts of investment made in the Sheffield City Region.  The framework outlines in 

detail the processes in place to enable the MCA Executive Team to gather robust feedback on delivery 

performance and identify the lessons learnt from projects and programmes and any best practice that can 

be applied to future activity, programmes and policy.  The Framework supports the Government’s five-yearly 

Gateway Review process for evaluating investment funds.   

 

7.4 The framework sets out several logic models, and identifies the performance metrics and indicators that are 

used to assess the impact of a project or programme and its contribution to delivering the Devolution Deal, 

and SEP and RAP objectives and output and outcome targets for economic growth.  This includes the specific 

objectives and targets for devolved funding such as AEB and TCF. 

 

7.5 The SEP includes a broad range of economic, social and environmental indicators that new MCA and LEP 

funded schemes and projects will be measured against.  The SEP indicators are also used to regularly track 

the overall performance and health of the Sheffield City Region economy.  This quantitative data helps to 

inform the development of new schemes and interventions to address weaknesses and challenges in the 

local economy.    

 

7.6 The process for monitoring and evaluating project and programme performance is summarised in the 

sections below.  

 
 

Monitoring 

7.7 All project applicants/scheme promoters and AEB delivery partners are required to provide regular financial 

and delivery information, including progress made in achieving the expected outputs and outcomes, to the 

MCA Executive Team.  The Programme and Performance Unit maintain oversight of contract delivery, 

through regular contact with applicants, scheme promoters and delivery partners including site visits where 

appropriate.  The Unit gathers information and data to ensure that a robust audit trail is in place.       

 

7.8 The applicant/scheme promoter and AEB delivery partner submits quarterly reports to MCA Executive Team.  

All quarterly reports are signed-off by the Section 73 Officer and LEP Board.  This enables the MCA and LEP 

to fulfil their duties on reporting and accounting for public monies.  

 

7.9 Site visits to project applicant/scheme promoters and AEB and TCF delivery partners are conducted once 

per year as a minimum. 

 

7.10 Project Applicants/scheme promoters and AEB delivery partners are responsible for informing the MCA 

Executive Team of any changes to the scope, costs and implementation timescales for their project.  The 

Page 68



 

41 
 

MCA Executive Team assesses the impact of any changes on the overall programme, budget and 

expenditure.  Cost increases, financial slippage and significant changes to outputs and outcomes are 

reported to the appropriate Board where necessary.  The MCA does not guarantee that it will meet any cost 

increases either in full or in part. 

 

7.11 The MCA Executive Team presents Quarterly Monitoring Reports on project and programme delivery, 

including AEB, to the MCA, LEP and relevant Thematic Board.  This ensures that LEP members are informed 

of progress on projects and are sighted on any issues that will result in financial slippage or 

underperformance. 

 

7.12 Quarterly reports on project and programme performance are also submitted to the relevant Government 

department, specifically MHCLG, the Department for Education and Department for Transport. 

 

7.13 Following devolution of the AEB in 2021/22 academic year, the MCA will submit an annual report to 

Government each January on the delivery of AEB functions from the previous academic year to date 

including: 

 

 South Yorkshire policies for adult education 

 Expenditure against AEB 

 Data analysis of AEB delivery in South Yorkshire 

 

 

Evaluation 

7.14 The frequency and type of evaluation conducted, depends on the contract value, duration and complexity of 

the project.  The level of evaluation required is determined at Outline Business Case stage so that adequate 

resource can be allocated to fund the cost of evaluation prior to the project’s approval.  This enables 

evaluation to be factored into a project and programme’s design from the outset. 

 
7.15 Pilot projects and major schemes such as AEB and TCF, are subject to more extensive and frequent 

evaluation; typically, annual interim evaluation and a final evaluation after the project has ended. 

 

7.16 As a minimum, all projects are evaluated post-delivery on the project’s impact, to ascertain whether the 

project’s objectives, outputs and outcomes were achieved, the reasons and results of any under or over 

performance, and to identify any lessons or recommendations that should be applied to  future projects. 

 

7.17 The MCA Executive Team procures external and independent evaluation of all MCA and LEP funded 

programmes and projects, including AEB and TCF through an open and competitive process to evaluate the 

impact of specific funding streams, significant investments and pilot projects. 

 

7.18 Research and evaluation consultants are invited to apply to be part of an Evaluation Panel and deliver 

independent evaluation of projects, schemes and programmes.  Experts are contracted based on their 

subject and thematic expertise and evaluation experience.   

 

7.19 The use of external evaluation experts to provide technical expertise and specialist advice on conducting 

project and programme evaluation, ensures that all evaluation conducted on projects and programmes 

funded by the MCA and LEP is as objective and impartial as possible. 

 
7.20 Project evaluation provides accountability for the investment made.  It also provides local evidence on which 

to base future projects and programmes.  The MCA Executive Team reviews the results of the evaluation 

against the objectives of the project as set out in the business case and Funding Agreement and the most 

appropriate counterfactual.  Evaluation results for all projects are published on the MCA website. 

 

Page 69



 

42 
 

7.21 Where there is a variation between a project’s objectives and its outcomes, the MCA Executive Team works 

with the promoter to agree corrective action.  If the corrective action is unsuccessful, clawback clauses in the 

Funding Agreement can be invoked as a final resort and to secure the desired outcomes via alternative 

measures. 

 

7.22 The MCA Executive Team compiles a summary report for the MCA of all projects that have completed during 

the previous quarter.  This report confirms whether the project has delivered against its spending profile and 

achieved the outputs and objectives in the Funding Agreement.  The report also recommends whether each 

project can be closed.   

 

7.23 As part of the annual report to Government on the delivery of AEB functions from the previous academic 

year to date, the MCA will also provide an update on interim evaluation findings on the impact that AEB has 

had in South Yorkshire.  These findings will be derived from qualitative data such as employer and learner 

survey responses and quantitative data on the take-up of AEB funded provision in South Yorkshire and 

improvements in participation, progression and attainment in statutory and non-statutory training.  

 

7.24 In addition, other devolved investment funds to Mayoral Combined Authorities are subject to the 

Government’s Gateway Review process.  An independent panel assesses and evaluates the impact of 

investments on the economy and economic growth every five years.  The first Gateway Review for the MCA 

is expected to take place in 2025.  

  

Page 70



 

43 
 

8. Inclusive and Collaborative Working 

 

8.1 The strength and success of the Sheffield City Region partnership is founded on good governance and 

partner collaboration.  Collaboration and a true partnership approach have been a cornerstone of the MCA 

and LEP achieving what they have to date.  This collaboration is resulting in a focused programme of 

engagement; designed to accelerate the delivery of the SEP and harness the City Region’s latent potential. 

 
 

The LEP Network 

8.2 The LEP is an active member of the national LEP Network and is committed to developing and sharing best 

practice with the LEP Network and its members.  The LEP is also committed to learning and embedding the 

best practice of other LEPs within the Sheffield City Region.  

 
 

Collaboration with Other LEPs, Metro Mayors and the Northern Powerhouse 

8.3 The Mayor, MCA and LEP are committed to working in collaboration with other LEPs, Mayoral Combined 

Authorities and the Northern Powerhouse to pool knowledge and resource and enhance the effectiveness, 

transparency, decision-making and leadership in local economic development. 

 

8.4 The Mayor, MCA and LEP have achieved the following by working across geographical borders:  

 

 Led a trade delegation to India in conjunction with NP11 members (the 11 LEP areas in the Northern 

Powerhouse) and led the NP11’s presence and programme at MIPIM 2020; 

 Collaborated with Transport for the North (TfN) and LEPs across the North of England to inform the 

development of TfN’s Strategic Transport Plan.  TfN also contributed to the development of the Sheffield 

City Region Transport Strategy and Integrated Rail Action Plan; 

 Worked in partnership with the Metro Mayors (M9) on an Air Quality Summit and joint lobbying to 

Government for increased powers and funding;  

 Collaborated on Working Win, the health-led employment trial; 

 Agreed a Collaboration Framework with D2N2 LEP to share data and manage activities, projects and 

communications in the former geographical overlap area;  

 Invested £5m of the Sheffield City Region Growth Deal allocation in upgrading the Midland Main Line at 

Market Harborough, in conjunction with the D2N2 and the Leicester and Leicestershire LEPs; 

 Completed a wave 1 Science and Innovation Audit with the Lancashire Partnership around shared 

sectoral strengths; and 

 Shared intelligence on AEB procurement. 

 

 

Engaging with Other Partners  

8.5 Regular meetings are held with partners to ensure an open and two-way dialogue on activity being 

undertaken across the City Region, and to discuss the development of strategies and progress in delivering 

the SEP priorities and objectives.  These meetings take place with business representative organisations, 

including the Chambers of Commerce, Federation of Small Business, CBI, Institute of Directors and Make 

UK, as well as local authority partners and the universities. 

 

8.6 A programme of engagement events is also held with partners across the City Region.  Typically, these 

events are thematic based, and are used to obtain input and feedback from partners to inform the City 

Region’s policies, strategies and project formulation.  These engagement events are advertised on the MCA 

website and social media channels and through partners such as the business representative organisations. 

Page 71



 

44 
 

8.7 Examples of collaboration with partners and agencies have included: 

 

 Establishing a Sheffield City Region Policy Advisory Group to share and pool economic evidence and 

data to inform the development of the new SEP;    

 Establishing a Local Resilience Forum to collaborate on the response to the COVID-19 pandemic; 

 Development of a Renewal Action Plan to direct investment towards economic recovery and growth;  

 Having representation on the Northern Powerhouse Investment Fund Board;  

 Playing an active role in the north of England Growth Hub network, which is designed to share best 

practice; 

 Playing an active part of the national network established for the devolution of the Adult Education 

Budget (AEB).  The LEP has led the work around data analysis/labour market intelligence and the 

contractual arrangements for the operation of the AEB in a devolved model; and 

 Developing a strong working relationship with Department for International Trade (DIT) on the Northern 

Powerhouse agenda, including trade missions and having three exciting investment propositions 

showcased through the Northern Powerhouse Investment portfolio/pitchbook. 

 

8.8 Local and national partners have been, and will continue to be, fully engaged throughout the development 

phase of AEB devolution.  A Skills Advisory Network brings together employers and further and higher 

education institutions from the Sheffield City Region with representatives from the Department for Education 

and the Department for Work and Pensions.  The Network will assist in the identification and setting of the 

processes and priorities for AEB funding awards and monitoring and evaluation of AEB delivery. 

 
 

Engaging with the Public 

8.9 The MCA publishes a plan on key decisions that will be taken at least 28 days before the decision is due to 

be made.  The Forward Plan of Key Decisions includes decisions that have a financial implication (such as 

projects that are seeking investment from the MCA and LEP, new programmes or schemes that would be 

delivered across the city region, or new strategies) and non-financial decisions which impact on two or more 

local authority areas.  The plan is refreshed and published on the MCA website every month and it enables 

members of the public to view information on decisions before they are made so that they can comment on 

them. 

 
8.10 The plan provides brief information on the project, programme or strategy, the date the decision will be taken, 

the lead officer’s contact details and information on how to access any relevant reports (subject to restrictions 

on their disclosure). 

 

8.11 In addition to publishing information on potential investment decisions in the Forward Plan of Key Decisions, 

the VfM Statement and business case for each project is published and publicised on the MCA website at 

every stage of the appraisal process.  This enables members of the public and stakeholders to comment on 

proposed projects before funding decisions are made.  All comments received are considered by the 

Assurance Panel in deciding whether to recommend a project for approval, deferment or rejection, and are 

made available to the MCA, LEP and Thematic Boards.  

 
8.12 The MCA website also explains how members of the public can request information as well as providing 

feedback and submitting questions for MCA meetings.   

 
8.13 The LEP holds an Annual General Meeting (AGM) each year which is open to the public and publicised 

through the Sheffield City Region website and social media networks and press.  

 

8.14 The MCA holds its AGM in June each year. 

 

 

 

Formal and Public Consultation  

Page 72

https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=137&RD=0&bcr=1


 

45 
 

8.15 In accordance with the MCA’s statutory obligations, the MCA Executive Team undertakes a public 

consultation exercise when revising or developing a new strategic document.  The consultation period runs 

for between 6 and 12 weeks.  Information on the consultation is posted on the homepage of the MCA website 

with a draft document and details of how to submit views, comments and supporting evidence electronically 

and by post.  Information on any scheduled consultation events are also displayed. 

 
8.16 Comments and evidence submitted by partners and individuals during the public consultation period are 

logged, analysed and categorised, with records kept on how the final draft of the strategy has been amended 

to reflect the comments and evidence received. 

 
8.17 In 2018, the public were consulted on the draft South Yorkshire Transport Strategy and in 2020, the public 

were consulted on the draft Strategic Economic Plan. 

 
 
  

Page 73



 

46 
 

9. Publishing Information 

 
9.1 The MCA is subject to the same Transparency Code that applies to local authorities.  To deliver the 

responsibilities under the code, the MCA and LEP has developed a robust, but proportionate, approach to 

sharing and publishing information so that it is accessible to the public.   

 

 

Access to Information 

9.2 The MCA Constitution includes a publication scheme which sets out how and when agendas, minutes, 

papers and other documents produced by the MCA, LEP and MCA Executive Team will be made available 

to the public.  It also sets out any exceptions to publishing information, such as not disclosing information 

that is prohibited by law or which is exempt under the Local Government Act 1972 Schedule 12A or Freedom 

of Information Act 2000.   

 

9.3 The Publication Scheme, which applies to both the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) and MCA, is published 

on the MCA website.  MCA, LEP and Thematic Board papers clearly state whether the paper will be published 

under the Publication Scheme and whether any exemptions apply. 

 

9.4 The MCA is subject to the Local Government Act 1972, Freedom of Information Act 2000, Data Protection 

Acts of 1998 and 2018, the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) and the Environmental Impact 

Regulations 2004.  As Accountable Body, the MCA fulfils these functions on behalf of the LEP.   

 

9.5 The public are made aware of their right to access information through the MCA website.  Requests for 

information are dealt with in accordance with the relevant legislation and information is not unreasonably 

withheld.  The MCA Executive Team elects to publish more information on activities and decisions than is 

stipulated in Government guidance, so that Freedom of Information requests are less necessary.   

 

9.6 All data supplied to the MCA, LEP and MCA Executive Team, including personal, financial, confidential and 

sensitive information is processed and handled in line with data protection legislation.  Personal information 

is stored securely to maintain privacy.  This process is detailed in the Privacy Policy. 

 

 

MCA Website 

9.7 Core information regarding activity being undertaken by the MCA, LEP and Mayor is available on the MCA 

website.   

 
9.8 The MCA website is structured into the following sections: 

 

 Investors – this section is targeted at potential inward investors and contains information on the portfolio 

of land available for investment and the Enterprise Zone locations in the City Region;   

 Business – this section is aimed primarily at indigenous businesses and explains the schemes and 

initiatives available to support businesses to start-up, thrive and grow, including the Sheffield City Region 

Growth Hub;  

 Governance – this is a dedicated section on how the City Region functions, including sub-sections on 

the Board structure and Board membership (Who We Are), LEP and MCA policies, procedures, 

processes, decision-making and expenditure (How We Make Decisions), agendas and papers for 

meetings of the different Boards (Meetings), statutory notices on the Mayoral Election (Democracy and 

Elections) and the LEP Board Recruitment process and vacancies;   

Page 74

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/requests-for-information/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/terms-and-privacy/


 

47 
 

 What We Do – this section provides information on the SEP, thematic priorities, public consultations on 

draft strategies, mini-portfolios on LEP funded projects and initiatives and a resources library of key 

documents and policies; and 

 Mayor – this section contains information on the elected Mayor including the Mayor’s role, powers, 

priorities and plans. 

 

 

Meeting Papers 

9.9 The schedule of MCA Board, LEP Board, Audit and Standards Committee and Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee meetings for the year ahead are published on the MCA website. 

 
9.10 The notice of the meeting, the agenda and accompanying papers are published five clear working days in 

advance of the meeting.  Where papers contain commercially sensitive information or are subject to one of 

the exemptions under the Local Government Act 1972 Schedule 12A or Freedom of Information Act 2000, 

they are not published and are categorised as a private item.  Decisions on whether individual agenda items 

are private items are made by the LEP Chair in consultation with the Head of Paid Service and Monitoring 

Officer using existing local authority regulations. 

 
9.11 Draft minutes of meetings are published no more than ten working days after the meetings on the MCA 

website.  All MCA minutes are signed at the same or next suitable meeting of the Authority and published 

within ten clear working days.   

 
 

Notice of Decisions 

9.12 As stated in previous sections, the MCA publishes a Forward Plan of Key Decisions that will be taken by the 

MCA, LEP or Thematic Boards at least 28 days before the decision is made to enable members of the public 

to view and comment on them.   

 

9.13 Details of all project approvals made by the MCA, LEP and Thematic Boards are recorded in the Minutes of 

the meetings.  In addition, the MCA Executive Team maintains and publishes a Grants and Contracts 

Register on the MCA website which provides details of all contracts and agreements signed, a brief summary 

of the project, and the value of the contract. 

 
9.14 A Delegated Authority Report for decisions taken by each Thematic Board is produced for the MCA which 

documents all decisions that the Board has taken, including any approval they have given to projects within 

their delegated authority limit (up to £2 million) and any endorsement, deferment or rejection of projects that 

exceed their delegation.  Delegated Authority Reports is a standing agenda item for discussion at each MCA 

meeting and they are published in the meeting paper pack on the MCA website.    

 
 

Information on Board Members 

9.15 The following information on LEP and MCA Board Members is published on the MCA website: 

 

 Biography – including name, job title, organisation represented, membership of Committees and any 

lead roles; 

 Individual Register of Interests; 

 Declarations at Meetings; 

 Attendance Record; 

 Gifts and Hospitalities Record; and 

 Term of Office 

 

Page 75

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/our-decisions-expenditure/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/our-decisions-expenditure/


 

48 
 

9.16 LEP Board members are not remunerated.  Members are entitled to claim back travel and subsistence costs 

incurred whilst undertaking duties and responsibilities on behalf of the LEP.  The MCA Executive Team 

publishes details of all expenses and subsistence claimed by LEP Board Members and authorised by the 

Head of Paid Service in Quarterly Expenses Reports.   

 
9.17 The MCA Executive Team also publishes Quarterly Gifts and Hospitality Reports which summarise any gifts 

or hospitality accepted and received by LEP Board members with a notional or actual value that exceeds 

£50.  Gifts and hospitality are also recorded in each LEP Board Members’ Individual Register of Interest.   

 
 

Financial Information 

9.18 A range of budgetary and financial information is published on the MCA website so that it is transparent and 

accessible to the public. 

 
9.19 MCA, Mayoral and LEP budgets are set prior to the start of the financial year within the Budget and Policy 

Framework.  As the Accountable Body, the MCA is responsible for setting and approving the annual budgets 

for the organisations within the MCA governance structure.  This includes approving the transport revenue 

budget for the South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive (SYPTE), setting the transport levy and 

approving the LEP’s capital and revenue budget.   

 
9.20 The MCA is also responsible for agreeing an annual programme of capital expenditure, together with 

proposals for the financing of that programme.  This includes projects promoted by both the MCA and those 

directly managed by SYPTE. 

 
9.21 Quarterly updates on the performance of the LEP capital and revenue programmes are provided to the MCA 

and LEP Boards and these are published in meeting papers. 

 
9.22 As stated previously in this section, funding decisions are also published on the MCA website in the Grants 

and Contracts Register.  Payments to general suppliers that have a value of more than £250 are published 

every month in the Payments Made to Suppliers register.  

 
9.23 The LEP’s finalised capital and revenue income and expenditure is published every year as part of the  Group 

Accounts (incorporating the MCA, LEP and SYPTE).  The draft accounts are considered by the MCA and 

LEP Boards in June/July each year.  The finalised accounts which include the Annual Governance 

Statement, are published alongside the Independent Audit Certificate for the financial year.  

 

9.24 The roles and salary bands of all staff employed in the MCA Executive Team which exceed £50,000 per 

annum are also published on the MCA website. 

 
 

Procurement and Funding Opportunities  

9.25 The MCA Executive Team publishes calls for projects on a regular basis on the MCA website and social 

media feeds.  The application templates and guidance documents for each commissioning call are available 

via the MCA website. Calls for ESIF funded activity are also advertised on the www.gov.uk website. 

 

9.26 An open and competitive procurement process is in operation.  When undertaking any procurement, all 

Boards, officers and staff must comply with the Contract Procurement Rules.  Opportunities to supply goods 

and services are advertised on the YORtender website with a link from the MCA website.  

 

9.27 Information on how businesses can access advice and support services, including applying for grant-funded 

programmes, is advertised in the Business section of the MCA website. 

 

 

Page 76

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/expenses/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/local-enterprise-partnership-procedures/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/our-decisions-expenditure/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/our-decisions-expenditure/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/items-of-combined-authority-expenditure-over-250/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/monitoring/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/monitoring/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/06/09ii-AGS-Annex-A-v3-clean.pdf
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/06/09ii-AGS-Annex-A-v3-clean.pdf
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/monitoring/
http://www.gov.uk/
https://www.yortender.co.uk/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/business


 

49 
 

Branding 

9.28 In accordance with branding guidance on awarded and devolved funding, the MCA Executive Team ensures 

that the correct logos and wording are displayed in all promotional materials for MCA and LEP funded 

projects and programmes.  Promotional materials include the MCA website, websites of project 

applicants/scheme promoters, signage, social media posts, press notices and marketing literature. 

 

 

LEP Delivery Plan 

9.29 The LEP publishes an Annual Delivery Plan and End of Year report in May each year.   

 
9.30 The Annual Delivery Plan outlines the LEP’s priorities and planned activities for the coming year including 

developmental work and any public consultation that is expected to take place.   

 

9.31 The End of Year report provides an assessment of the LEP’s activity and achievements against the Annual 

Delivery Plan and an assessment of how the South Yorkshire economy has changed over the course of the 

year.  This sets the baseline economic position to measure future performance against. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 77

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/our-decisions-expenditure/


 

50 
 

Glossary of Terms 

 

AEB Adult Education Budget 

AGM Annual General Meeting 

BCR Benefit Cost Ratio 

BMBC Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council 

CIAT Central Independent Appraisal Team 

D2N2 Derby, Derbyshire, Nottingham and Nottinghamshire Local Enterprise Partnership 

DfE Department for Education 

DfT Department for Transport 

DIT Department for International Trade 

DMBC Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council 

FLUTE Forecasting the interactions of Land-Use, Transport and Economy 

LEP Local Enterprise Partnership 

LGF Local Growth Fund 

LTA Local Transport Authority 

MCA Mayoral Combined Authority 

MHCLG Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 

OBC Outline Business Case 

R&D Research and Development 

RMBC Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council 

SBC Strategic Business Case 

SCC Sheffield City Council 

SCR Sheffield City Region 

SCRTM1 Sheffield City Region Transport Model 1 

Section 73 Equivalent to a Section 151 Officer 

SEP Strategic Economic Plan 

SYPTE South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive 

TAG Transport Appraisal Guide (formerly known as WebTAG) 

TCF Transforming Cities Fund 

  

Page 78



 

51 
 

Appendix A: Summary of LEP Policies 

 
The Sheffield City Region MCA and LEP are strongly committed to putting in place robust decision-making and 

financial management policies and procedures to ensure that public money is being spent responsibly and is 

accounted for.   

 
Each year, the suite of LEP policies are reviewed and refined in an effort to continually improve governance and 

accountability.  The LEP’s policies are listed below and published on the MCA website at 

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/about-us-governance-policy/how-we-make-decisions-2/. 

 
 

LEP Terms of Reference 

The LEP Terms of Reference outlines the role and aims of the LEP Board and the duties of LEP Board members.  It 

also details the LEP’s Board member recruitment and appointment process, the roles of the Chair and Deputy Chair, 

and the decision-making process.    

 
 

LEP Board Recruitment 

The LEP Board Appointment Process explains how vacancies on the LEP Board will be openly advertised, and how 

Board appointments will be made by a LEP Appointments Panel in a transparent, competitive and non-discriminatory 

way.   

 
 

Equality and Diversity 

The LEP’s commitment and approach to ensuring equality and diversity is detailed in the LEP Diversity Policy.  The 

policy covers recruitment and selection and all engagement with individuals and organisations.  The policy also 

outlines the LEP Board’s commitment to nominating a LEP Board member to act as Diversity Champion. The policy 

applies to LEP Board members, the MCA Executive Team and any Thematic Board members. 

 
 

Code of Conduct 

All LEP Board members proactively sign-up to the LEP Code of Conduct when they are appointed to the Board, as 

a condition of their appointment.  The Code of Conduct explicitly requires LEP Board members to conform with the 

Seven Principles of Public Life (Nolan principles) – selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, 

honesty and leadership.  MCA Executive Team staff are required to sign the employee’s Code of Conduct as a 

condition of their employment which requires them to carry out their duties in accordance with the Nolan principles. 

 
 

Remuneration and Expenses 

LEP Board members are not remunerated.  Members are entitled to claim back travel and subsistence costs incurred 

whilst undertaking duties and responsibilities on behalf of the LEP.  The LEP Expenses Policy explains the 

requirement for travel and subsistence to be pre-approved by the Head of Paid Service prior to being incurred and 

the process for claiming expenses.  

 
 

Gifts and Hospitality 

LEP Board members are required to notify the Head of Paid Service in writing of all offers of hospitality and gifts 

received with a value of more than £50.  The LEP Gifts and Hospitality Policy aligns with Local Authority systems 

Page 79

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/about-us-governance-policy/how-we-make-decisions-2/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/LEP-Terms-of-Reference-20-21v1.0.pdf
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/lep-board-recruitment-process/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/LEP-Diversity-Policy-2020-21v1.0.pdf
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/LEP-Code-of-Conduct-20-21v1.0.pdf
https://d2xjf5riab8wu0.cloudfront.net/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/LEP-Expenses-Policy-19-20.pdf
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/LEP-Gifts-and-Hospitality-Policy-20-21V1.0.pdf


 

52 
 

and standards on accepting and declaring gifts.  The policy also applies to the MCA Executive Team and any Sub-

groups involved in advising on or making decisions. 

 
 

Conflicts of Interest 

The LEP Declarations of Interest Policy requires all LEP Board members and senior officers to complete and maintain 

an up to date Register of Declarations to avoid any conflicts of interest when advising on, or making decisions.   

 
 

Whistleblowing 

The LEP Whistleblowing Policy provides information on how concerns about the LEP, LEP Board members and the 

MCA Executive Team should be raised, how the concerns will be handled and how concerns will be dealt with 

sensitively and in confidence. 

 
 

Complaints 

The LEP Confidential Complaints Policy explains how complaints about the LEP, LEP Board members and the MCA 

Executive Team should be submitted and how complaints will be dealt with and responded to. 

 

 

Data Management 

The Privacy Policy explains how and why information provided by service users and members of the public is 

collected and used.  This includes data that is provided to the MCA Executive Team via the MCA website, information 

provided to funded services and projects (e.g. Growth Hub, Skills Bank, Working Win) and data provided over the 

telephone.  The policy ensures that the LEP and MCA Executive Team will only process data in a legally compliant 

way, and that personal information will be handled in confidence and stored securely to maintain privacy. 

 
 
 

 

  

Page 80

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/LEP-Declaration-of-Interests-Policy20-21-V1.0.pdf
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/LEP-Whistleblowing-Policy-20-21V1.0.pdf
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/LEP-Confidential-Complaints-Policy-20-21-V1.0.pdf


 

53 
 

Appendix B: Joint Statement from LEP and MCA 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) sets out the respective roles and responsibilities of the Sheffield City 

Region Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) and the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP).  It has been produced to 

provide clarity on how decisions on public funds are made within the Sheffield City Region. 

 
 

Roles 

The MCA is the legal and Accountable Body for funding devolved by Government to the MCA and LEP, including the 

Growth Deal.  The MCA is also the Local Transport Authority for South Yorkshire. 

 

The LEP is a voluntary business-led partnership which drives economic growth and advises how LEP funding should 

be invested in developing and growing the Sheffield City Region economy.    

 

The Mayor is directly elected by the electorate in South Yorkshire to lead the Sheffield City Region and to promote it 

as a place to live, work and invest in.  The Mayor is Chair of the MCA and is a member of the LEP Board.  

 
 

Responsibilities 

The Mayoral Combined Authority is required to: 

 

 Approve all annual capital and revenue budgets prior to the start of the financial year;   

 Accept proposed projects onto the programme pipeline;  

 Ensure that decisions on proposed projects are aligned with the objectives of the SEP and RAP; 

 Test the value for money of proposed projects;  

 Ensure that the legal duties of the MCA as the LEP’s Accountable Body, operate in a responsible and 

transparent manner; and 

 Inform the LEP of any operational decisions made.  

 
 

The Local Enterprise Partnership is required to: 

 

 Produce and publish the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP); 

 Support the Mayor in producing the Local Industrial Strategy; 

 Advise the MCA on decisions of how any capital and revenue budgets allocated to the LEP are prioritised 

and spent; and 

 Oversee the delivery of any LEP funded programmes and projects. 

 
 

Operating Practices and Policies 

The MCA and LEP will be served by a central team of impartial staff (the MCA Executive Team) who will provide 

advice and report on financial information and programme delivery to both the MCA and LEP Boards.   

 

The MCA and LEP agree to conform with the Seven Principles of Public Life (Nolan principles) – selflessness, 

integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership. 

 

Page 81



 

54 
 

The MCA and LEP are opposed to all forms of unlawful, unfair and inappropriate discrimination, and commit to 

provide equality and fairness to all those who wish to work with them and to not act less favourably on the grounds 

of any protected characteristic. 

 
 

Amendments 

This MoU can be amended at any time with agreement of both the MCA and LEP. 

 
 
 
 
The Mayoral Combined Authority and Local Enterprise Partnership affirm to know, understand and agree to this 

Memorandum of Understanding as negotiated together. 

 
 

Signed on Behalf of the Sheffield City Region 

Mayoral Combined Authority: 

 

Signed on Behalf of the Sheffield City Region Local 

Enterprise Partnership: 

 

 
 
Signature: 

  
 
Signature: 

 

 
Name: 

 
Mayor Dan Jarvis MP MBE 

 
Name: 

 
James Muir 

 
Position: 

 
Sheffield City Region Mayor and Chair 

of the Mayoral Combined Authority 

 
Position: 

 
LEP Chair 

 
Date: 

  
Date: 

 

  

Page 82



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 
 

Sheffield City Region 

11 Broad Street West 

Sheffield 

S1 2BQ 

 

+44 (0)114 220 3400 

enquiries@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 

 

www.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 

Page 83

mailto:enquiries@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
http://www.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



   

 

 

 

 

Monitoring & Evaluation Framework 

Appendix 2 

Page 85



2 
 

Contents 

 
 

1 Introduction 3 

2 About the Monitoring & Evaluation Framework 4 

3 The Monitoring Process 9 

4 The Evaluation Process 11 

5 Appendix A: Metrics, Measures, Outputs & Outcomes 15 

6 Appendix B: Logic Chains for the Thematic Areas 23 

7 Appendix C: Transforming Cities Fund (TCF) Monitoring and Evaluation Plan – Benefits, Outputs & Outcomes 28 

 
 
 
List of Tables and Figures 

Figure 1 The ROAMEF Cycle - The Magenta Book: Guidance for Evaluation, UK Government  

Figure 2 SCR Strategic Economic Plan 2021-2041  

Figure 3 SCR Renewal Action Plan  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
 
Version Control 

V1 First draft based on the framework commissioned in 2017 L Whitaker 

V2 Second draft R Adams 

V3 Inclusion of RAP, Getting Building Fund and Brownfield Fund L Whitaker 

V4 Minor amends to third draft R Adams 

V5 Inclusion of logic models L Whitaker 

 

  

Page 86



3 
 

1. Introduction 

 

Purpose of the Monitoring and Evaluation Framework 

1.1 The Monitoring and Evaluation Framework is a requirement of national government and requires agreement 

by both the MCA and HMG. The framework is the primary mechanism for how the Mayoral Combined 

Authority (MCA) will assess progress towards the delivery of the South Yorkshire Devolution Deal and 

delivery of the strategic vision, objectives and output and outcome targets of the Strategic Economic Plan 

(SEP) and the Renewal Action Plan (RAP). 

 

1.2 The Framework outlines the level of monitoring and evaluation activity that is considered appropriate and 

proportional for each programme and project funded by the MCA and Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP).  

The requirement set by HMG is that the framework  includes programmes and projects funded through 

devolved monies such as Gainshare and the Adult Education Budget (AEB), as well as funding awarded to 

the MCA and LEP; specifically Transforming Cities Fund (TCF) and funds for local growth such as the UK 

Shared Prosperity Fund, Get Britain Building and Brownfield Housing Funds, for example.     

 

1.3 As well as the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) and the Renewal Action Plan (RAP), the Monitoring and 

Evaluation Framework sits alongside key governance and policy documents – most notably the Assurance 

Framework, the MCA Constitution, the Financial Regulations and the LEP Terms of Reference.   

 

1.4 The Monitoring and Evaluation Framework has been designed in accordance with HM Treasury’s Magenta 

(Guidance for Evaluation) and Green (Guidance on Appraisal and Evaluation) Books, and with reference to 

specific evaluation guidance on programme funds including AEB and TCF.  

 

1.5 The Monitoring and Evaluation Framework, subject to approval, takes effect from 1 April 2021. 

 

 

Updating the Monitoring and Evaluation Framework 

1.6 The MCA is required to reviewed and update its Monitoring and Evaluation Framework at the end of each 

year as part of the annual review of assurance processes and procedures.  The Framework is then 

submitted to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) for review and 

approval before being finalised and published. The next annual review of this document is scheduled to 

commence in November 2021.   

 

 

The Structure of this Document 

1.7 The remainder of this document is structured into the following sections: 

 

 Section 2 sets out the importance of monitoring and evaluating project and programme performance, 

the programmes and activities covered by this framework and how the framework relates to the City 

Region’s plan for economic growth; 

 Section 3 outlines the monitoring process for all programmes and projects and the roles and 

responsibilities of the MCA, the MCA Executive, scheme promoters and project applicants in accounting 

for and reporting performance; 

 Section 4 explains the processes and options for evaluating the impact and value of programmes and 

projects and how evaluation informs decision-making by the MCA and LEP; and 

 Appendix A lists the nationally and locally defined metrics, measures, outputs and outcomes that 

programmes and projects funded by the MCA and LEP are assessed against. 

Page 87



4 
 

2. About the Monitoring & Evaluation Framework 

 

Why Monitor and Evaluate Programmes and Projects 

2.1 As a recipient and distributor of public funding, the MCA has a duty to ensure that all funding devolved and 

awarded to the MCA and LEP is accounted for and invested appropriately and effectively.  Due to pressures 

on public funding, the MCA and LEP also need to ensure that investment is directed in the areas where it 

will have the greatest impact. 

   

2.2 Regular and consistent monitoring of programmes, schemes and projects during their delivery phase, 

enables the MCA as the legally Accountable Body to fulfil its obligations for accountability and transparency 

over the use and application of public funding.  Monitoring also ensures that any risks associated with a 

programme, scheme or project are appropriately controlled and managed, and enables the MCA and LEP to 

mitigate any risks by taking corrective action in a prompt and timely manner.  

 

2.3 Evaluation enables the MCA to determine how effective the investment of public funding has been, and the 

impact that programmes, schemes and projects are having, or have had, on the economy.  Evaluation also 

provides the MCA and LEP with an assessment of how well programmes, schemes and projects are 

delivering against their plan for economic growth and the economic, social and environmental output and 

outcome targets. 

 

2.4 Regular monitoring and evaluation provides an indication of how the investment of devolved and awarded 

funding can be continually improved and it therefore supports better policy making, investment planning and 

project development and delivery.  It also provides quantitative and qualitative information and evidence on 

what happens once a policy or intervention is implemented, and the impact that it has had on the local 

economy which can then inform future policy and strategy direction and programme and project 

development.  This is illustrated in Figure 1 below: 

 
Figure 1:  The ROAMEF Cycle - The Magenta Book: Guidance for Evaluation, UK Government 

 

    

Page 88



5 
 

Plan for Economic Growth 

2.5 The Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) is a twenty-year economic strategy which sets out the vision and policy 

objectives for growing the economy at pace; ensuring that all people and places have a fair opportunity to 

benefit from prosperity whilst protecting and enhancing our environment. 

 

2.6 The SEP is built on a broad range of socio-economic data and is the result of extensive consultation with 

business representatives, local industry leaders, local authorities, residents and stakeholder organisations.  

The vision and policy objectives for future economic growth across the City Region, are set out in Figure 2 

below. 

 
Figure 2: SCR Strategic Economic Plan 2021-2041  

 

 

 
 

2.7 The SEP will be reviewed and updated on a regular basis to ensure a sound strategic basis for investment 

and action. 

 

2.8 The Renewal Action Plan (RAP) is a jobs-led plan that was developed in response to the significant impact 

of Covid-19 on South Yorkshire’s economy and residents.  It outlines £1.7bn of priority interventions for 

supporting our Employers, People and Places over the immediate, medium and longer-term.  The priorities 

are set out in Figure 3 below: 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 89



6 
 

 

Figure 3: SCR Renewal Action Plan  

 
 

2.9 Together, with the Transport Strategy, the Net Zero Work Programme, and the local authority Leaders’ 

priorities for Gainshare, the SEP and the RAP set the blueprint for how devolved and awarded funding from 

Government will be invested.  The SEP and RAP also set the criteria that all programmes, schemes and 

projects will be measured and assessed against; from application stage through to contracting and delivery.    

 

 

Programmes and Activities Covered by the Monitoring and Evaluation Framework 

2.10 This Monitoring and Evaluation Framework applies to all funding awarded to the MCA and LEP. This includes 

Transforming Cities Fund, Get Britain Building Funding, Brownfield Housing Funding and local growth 

monies (for example, UK Shared Prosperity Fund) where award of the funds carries obligations for the MCA 

or LEP to deliver pre-determined outputs and outcomes. The framework also needs to cover devolved funds, 

where the strategic intent and outputs and outcomes are determined and agreed locally by the MCA.  This 

includes Gainshare, Adult Education Budget, and the future devolved consolidated transport budgets. 

 

 

Gainshare 

2.11 The Gainshare (grant-based investment funding) allocation for South Yorkshire through the Devolution Deal 

is £30m per annum for a period of 30 years.  This consists of 60% capital and 40% revenue funding and is 

to be invested in the delivery of the MCAs strategic and economic priorities. 

 

 

Adult Education Budget (AEB) 

2.12 From the start of the 2021/22 academic year, the MCA will assume responsibility for adult education budget 

(AEB). Devolution of AEB will support high quality adult education across South Yorkshire. This equates to 

around £35m per annum. 

 

 

 

 

Page 90



7 
 

Transport Settlement 

2.13 The MCA is responsible for the consolidated devolved capital transport budget.  This consists of the 

Integrated Transport Block, the Highways Maintenance Block (excluding PFI), and Highways Maintenance 

incentive funding. 

 

 

Transforming Cities Fund (TCF) 

2.14 Following a successful bidding process, in March 2020, the Government awarded £166m from the 

Transforming Cities Fund (TCF) to the Sheffield City Region for a period of three years. 

 

 

Getting Building Fund (GBF) 

2.15 In June 2020 the MCA was awarded £33.6m for a prioritised programme of Major Capital Infrastructure 

Schemes under the Government’s Getting Building Fund.  The fund is to be used to accelerate ‘shovel ready’ 

infrastructure schemes. 

 

 

Brownfield Fund (BF) 

2.16 The MCA was awarded £40m in June 2020 to deliver a programme of housing schemes on brownfield sites 

over the next 5 years through the Government’s Brownfield Fund. 

 

 
Emergency Active Travel Fund 

2.17 During 2020, the MCA was awarded £8.7m in two tranches to support investment in active travel 

infrastructure in order to accelerate modal shift from car journeys, improve decongestion, safety for non-

motorised road users and air quality, and promote healthier lifestyles. 

 

 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) 

2.18 In November 2014, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced that a UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) 

pilot programme in 2021-22 to help UK regions to prepare for a longer-term UKSPF from 2023.  The UKSPF 

will replace the previous six-year Local Growth Fund (LGF) programme and EU Structural Funds.  

 

2.19 More detailed information on the UKSPF pilot will be published in early 2021 but it is expected to be focussed 

on supporting infrastructure improvements and regeneration in areas of deprivation, tailored employment 

and skills development and supporting businesses with innovation and green technology adoption. 

 

 

Approach to Monitoring and Evaluation 

 

2.20 This Monitoring and Evaluation Framework will provide transparency to partners, Government and the 

general public, on the MCA and LEP’s activities, intended outputs, outcomes and impacts on the local 

economy, people and the environment.  

 

2.21 The MCA’s approach to monitoring and evaluation is based on: 

  

 Incorporating Good Practice - this Monitoring and Evaluation Framework is based on recognised good 

practice and guidance including HM Government’s Magenta Book and research conducted by the What 

Works Centre for Local Economic Growth.  Additional evaluation guidance from Government 

Page 91



8 
 

departments has also been used; specifically, guidance on AEB from the Department for Education and 

TCF from the Department for Transport.   

 Ensuring that it is Proportional and Supports Transparency - ensuring that monitoring and 

evaluation activity is proportional to the level of investment, complexity and risk of each programme and 

project.  Pilot programmes and projects are subjected to more intensive and in-depth evaluation, with 

evaluation results published on the MCA/LEP website. 

 

 

Principles of Monitoring and Evaluation  

2.22 This Monitoring and Evaluation Framework: 

 

 Focuses on Understanding Results, Outcomes and Impacts – the Framework has a strong focus 

on understanding and demonstrating the impacts of the MCA and LEP investments on the economy, 

and the extent to which programmes and projects are addressing the challenges and opportunities 

outlined in the SEP and the RAP.   

 Represents a Single Approach to Monitoring and Evaluation for the MCA and LEP - the Framework 

provides a strategic tool for monitoring and evaluating the delivery of the outcomes and impacts desired 

through the Devolution Deal, SEP, and the RAP in addition to the impact of all funding devolved and 

awarded to the MCA and LEP.  

 Adopts a Thematic Approach to Monitoring and Evaluation - the Framework reflects the strategic 

objectives and overarching ambitions of the SEP and the RAP, which have been agreed by partners, 

and to which all MCA and LEP funded activity must contribute.  It will capture the contribution and 

impacts of the portfolio of programme and project investments across the thematic areas of Business 

Growth, Employment and Skills, Housing and Infrastructure and Transport and the Environment, using 

a series of logic chains,  which disaggregate strategic objectives into the outputs, outcomes and impacts 

sought from investment.  

 Incorporates all Contractual Commitments – the Framework supports the MCA in complying with the 

legal and contractual requirements agreed with the Government on monitoring and evaluating the 

delivery of awarded funds and associated outputs and locally agreed outcomes aligned to the Devolution 

Deal, and programme funding, including but not limited to, AEB and TCF. 

 Supports the Gateway Review Process - the Framework will support the national evaluation panel to 

conduct the five-yearly Gateway Reviews on the impact of projects and schemes that are funded with 

Gainshare.  

  

Page 92



9 
 

3. The Monitoring Process 

 

Introduction to Monitoring 

3.1 Once a project or programme is approved, a contract is issued to the project applicant/scheme promoter or 

AEB and TCF delivery partner.  The contract forms the basis of the monitoring that will take place during the 

project’s or programme’s lifetime. 

 

3.2 The contract specifies the milestones for the project or programme (these are dependent on complexity, cost, 

timescales and risks) and confirms the financial profile for income and expenditure, and the payment 

schedule for the grant and/or loan that the MCA will issue.   

 

3.3 The contract also stipulates the outputs and outcomes that are expected to be delivered, including, but not 

limited to, jobs created or safeguarded, the level of qualification that will be achieved by any learner or other 

transport or infrastructure-based outputs.  This enables decision makers to receive reports on progress of 

delivering against the SEP, RAP or a programme specific set of target performance indicators and outputs 

and outcomes.  

 
 

Roles and Responsibilities of Scheme Promoters, Project Applicants and Delivery Partners 

3.4 All project applicants/scheme promoters and AEB and TCF delivery partners, are required to submit a report 

outlining timely financial and delivery information. This information will be collated by the MCA Executive for 

onward reporting to the MCA, LEP and Thematic Boards, as relevant.  

 

3.5 The project applicants/scheme promoters and AEB and TCF delivery partners are responsible for informing 

the MCA Executive of any changes to the scope, costs and implementation timescales for their project.   

 

 

Role and Responsibilities of the MCA 

3.6 The MCA, and its Thematic Boards, is responsible for all investment decisions and is ultimately responsible 

for overseeing the monitoring of financial, output and outcome performance against all devolved and 

awarded funding to the MCA and LEP. 

 

3.7 On behalf of the MCA and LEP, the Section 73 Officer, in conjunction with the other Statutory Officers, will 

sign-off returns on delivery and financial spend before being submitted to the appropriate Government 

department.  This enables the MCA and LEP to fulfil their duties on reporting and accounting for public 

monies.  

 

3.8 Information, as a result of Monitoring activity, is collated and reported to Decision Making Boards by the MCA 

Executive. Reporting of monitoring information will be derived from a number of sources; the submitted 

reports received from Scheme Promotors and deliverers of AEB and TCF schemes, maintaining regular 

contact with applicants, scheme promoters and delivery partners including conducting site visits where 

appropriate and, if required internal and/or external audit reporting.  The Executive will support the MCA to 

discharge its duties on reporting and accounting for public monies by gathers information and data to ensure 

that a robust audit trail is in place and escalating any issues or risks to performance. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 93



10 
 

Level, Frequency and Format of Monitoring 

3.9 All projects and programmes are subject to quarterly monitoring.  This is supplemented by regular contact 

between the MCA Executive and project applicants/scheme promoters and AEB and TCF delivery partners. 

 

3.10 Site visits to project applicant/scheme promoters and AEB and TCF delivery partners are conducted once 

per year as a minimum. 

 

3.11 The delivery information required in the quarterly monitoring report from project applicants/scheme promoters 

and AEB and TCF delivery partners, combines qualitative narrative on progress made in delivering the project 

or programme, as well as quantitative data on outputs and outcomes delivered during the monitoring period: 

 

 Information on whether the project has encountered issues or problems affecting delivery 

 Confirmation of project milestones that have been met 

 Information on project achievements and successes 

 An indication of any risks or issues that will affect the timescale, cost or scope of the project 

 Confirmation of project income and expenditure 

 Confirmation of outputs and outcomes delivered   

 

3.12 Quarterly reports on project and programme performance for Gainshare and local growth funds (UKSPF) are 

submitted by the MCA Executive to Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG). 

 

3.13 Quarterly reports on AEB project and programme performance are submitted by the MCA Executive to the 

Department for Education.   

 

3.14 Quarterly reports on TCF project and programme performance are submitted by the MCA Executive to the 

Department for Transport.   

 

3.15 In addition, the MCA will submit an annual report to Government each January on the delivery of AEB 

functions from the previous academic year to date including: 

 

 South Yorkshire policies for adult education 

 Expenditure against AEB 

 Data analysis of AEB delivery in South Yorkshire 

 

  

Page 94



11 
 

4. The Evaluation Process 

 

Introduction to Evaluation 

4.1 The level of evaluation required on a project or programme is an integral part of the decision-making process 

of the MCA and Thematic Boards. Strategies for evaluation will be identified and fully worked-up at the 

Outline Business Case stage of a project application.  This enables evaluation to be factored into a project 

and programme’s design from the outset. 

 

4.2 The frequency and type of evaluation conducted, depends on the contract value, duration and complexity of 

each project and programme.   

 

4.3 Pilot projects and major schemes are subject to more extensive evaluation.  As a minimum, all projects are 

expected to be evaluated on impact to ascertain whether the project’s objectives, outputs and outcomes 

were achieved and the reasons and results of any under or over performance 

 
 

Objectives for Evaluation 

4.4 Evaluation will determine the effectiveness of the MCA and LEP’s investments.  It enables the MCA and its 

Boards, to understand what works, why and who benefits from the investment, and provides evidence to 

inform future investment planning and improve the delivery and management of projects and programmes.  

It also adds depth and understanding to quantitative monitoring data and provides insight into: 

 

 The effectiveness of new, innovative approaches and the factors which have supported or hindered their 

success 

 Levels of satisfaction with products and services and the value of the project or programme to the target 

market/audience 

 Non-quantifiable benefits, the development of intangible assets, and longer-term impacts 

 Attribution and the refinement of additionality calculations 

 Opportunities for product/process improvements 

 Cost effectiveness and value for money of the project or programme  
 
 

Roles and Responsibilities for Evaluation  

4.5 The MCA Board is ultimately responsible for overseeing the evaluation of projects and programmes funding 

with devolved and awarded monies, to ensure that there is a process for assurance to be gained on the 

impact of activity and spend.  

 

4.6 The MCA Executive will support the Board decision making process through the development and 

commissioning of evaluation and the dissemination of results and lessons learned, collating findings and 

presenting them to the relevant Thematic Board. To ensure transparency and impartiality, evaluation 

management will be independent of programme delivery.  

 

4.7 Evaluation reports on programmes and major projects will be presented to the MCA and LEP Boards, and 

reports published on the website to fulfil the MCA’s and LEP’s responsibilities on accounting for public 

monies.  All evaluation reports are published on the SCR website.  

 

 

 

Page 95



12 
 

Level and Frequency of Evaluation 

4.8 The level and frequency of evaluation will depend on the project value, level of risk and complexity. A 

suggested benchmark for evaluation strategy based upon value, to ensure proportionality, is suggested 

below: 

 

A Project of Less than One Year and with a Total 

Project Value of Less than £500,000  

Summative final ex-post evaluation  

A Project of One Year or More and a Total 

Project Value of Less than £500,000 

One interim evaluation plus a summative final ex-

post evaluation 

A Project with a Total Project Value of more than 

£500,000 

One interim evaluation plus a summative final ex-

post evaluation 

A Pilot Project of More than One Year of any 

Value 

One interim evaluation for every year of the pilot 

plus a summative final ex-post evaluation 

 

4.9 Interim evaluation will assess process, and the effectiveness and efficiency of projects and programmes 

during the delivery phase.  These interim evaluation reports will capture early lessons learned to inform any 

improvements in process or delivery models.  

 

4.10 Final evaluations will be conducted ex-post (after delivery has ceased) and will assess overall performance 

and net impact of the project or programme and the impact that the MCA and LEP’s investment has had on 

the economy.  It will particularly identify the following: 

 

 Good practice and policy/delivery lessons 

 The contribution and added value of the intervention, it’s effectiveness in tackling the problem or 

market failure it was designed to address 

 The extent to which the project or programme represents good value for money 

 

Approach to Evaluation  

4.11 Evaluation for projects and programmes will follow the logic chains outlined in Appendix B for each thematic 
area.  
 

4.12 The evaluation will give consideration to the following: 
 

 Consideration of the Counterfactual and Additionality - consideration of the counterfactual is 

acknowledged as a key feature of policy impact evaluation i.e. what would have occurred in the absence 

of the policy. Determining the counterfactual allows analysis of the changes (impacts) resulting from an 

intervention, over and above those which would have occurred anyway and is therefore a key feature in 

understanding additionality. 

 The Use of Randomised Control Groups – where possible, this provides one of the most robust 

methodological solutions to assessing additionality as it enables comparison of impacts in a policy on 

and policy off situation.  There are however several challenges to the use of control groups particularly 

where the rationale for intervention is to support communities already disadvantaged and/or 

underperforming against national trends and expectations. Only in some cases will it be possible to 

identify a similar population or group not receiving support. It is anticipated therefore that the majority of 

evaluation activity will explore the counterfactual position through primary research with beneficiaries to 

determine what would have happened in the absence of support; whether the same outcomes would 

have been achieved; and whether these would have been achieved over the same timescale and to the 

same intensity/scale/quality. Where relevant to do so, national datasets will be drawn upon to provide a 

comparison group. The counterfactual position will also be considered at appraisal through the 

presentation of ‘do nothing’ and ‘do something’ scenarios, with transport schemes’ options appraisal 

expected to be TAG compliant. 

Page 96



13 
 

 Attribution - the scope and scale of impacts generated by an intervention will be influenced by a range 

of factors including the duration/intensity of the intervention and its quality/appropriateness for the 

challenges being addressed. These variables will also be influenced by variables including the quality 

of delivery teams and project management processes. Primary research with beneficiaries is therefore 

important to help understand how/the extent to which interventions contributed to change and the types 

of interventions that generate the most economic impact.  

 Capturing Soft Impacts - in contrast to quantitative performance monitoring, evaluation will provide an 

opportunity to capture the full range of qualitative impacts that interventions support. In addition to 

assessing contribution to the City Region’s strategic overarching objectives and ambitions, evaluation 

will assess the development of intangible assets such as relationship building; knowledge creation; 

leadership and communication; culture and values; and effective processes and systems. 

 

 

Evaluation Methods 

4.13 The key evaluation questions and methods used will be bespoke to each project and programme.  Evaluations 

are expected to include consideration of some or all of the following areas of investigation: 

 

 Contextual - the contribution of the intervention at a strategic level; complementarity and integration 

with any associated themes/activities; and whether activity is fit for purpose/required given the prevailing 

policy/operating context and demand. 

 Design - the suitability of the intervention and delivery model given the rationale for intervention and 
theory of change. 

 Progress and Performance - assessment of the baseline position, progress against contracted targets 

and whether implementation has progressed as planned. Any areas of under or over-performance and 

the factors influencing this. 

 Process - the effectiveness of the delivery model and the factors which have supported/hindered 

delivery. 

 Management - an assessment of whether management and governance processes are fit for purpose; 

their strengths, weaknesses and contribution to effective delivery. 

 Impact - the type and quality of strategic and beneficiary level outcomes, the net impacts taking account 

of adjustment factors; evidence of unintended benefits/impacts; additionality and the factors which have 

supported/hindered the achievement of positive impacts. 

 Financial - whether value for money has been achieved given unit costs (cost per output) and likely 

return on investment (GVA per £1 invested); the financial sustainability of the intervention. 

 Sustainability - an assessment of long-term sustainability given demand, needs and market failures.  

 

 

Evaluation Panel 

4.14 The use of external evaluation experts to provide technical expertise and specialist advice on conducting 

project and programme evaluation, ensures that all evaluation conducted on projects and programmes 

funded by the MCA and LEP is as objective and impartial as possible. 

 

4.15 Research and evaluation consultants are invited to apply to be part of the Evaluation Panel and deliver 

independent evaluation of projects, schemes and programmes.  This is an open and competitive process 

and experts will be contracted based on their subject and thematic expertise and evaluation experience.   

 

4.16 When evaluation is required, a pre-approved member of the Evaluation Panel with specific expertise or 

experience in the type of project or programme being evaluated, will be contracted to deliver the evaluation.      

 

Page 97



14 
 

Compliance with Government Requirements for Evaluation  

4.17 There are additional evaluation requirements for specific devolved and awarded funds that the MCA will 

comply with: 

 

 Adult Education Budget - as part of the annual report to Government on the delivery of AEB 

functions from the previous academic year to date, the MCA will is required to provide an update on 

interim evaluation findings on the impact that AEB has had in South Yorkshire.  These findings will 

be derived from qualitative data such as employer and learner survey responses and quantitative 

data on the take-up of AEB funded provision in South Yorkshire and improvements in participation, 

progression and attainment in statutory and non-statutory training. 

 Gainshare – evaluation of the devolved investment funds to the MCA will be subject to the 

Government’s Gateway Review process.  An independent panel assesses and evaluates the impact 

of investments on the economy and economic growth every five years.  The first Gateway Review 

for the MCA is expected to take place in 2025. 

 Transforming Cities Fund – a Monitoring and Evaluation Plan has been produced by AECOM in 

consultation with the MCA, SYPTE and local authorities.  This plan details how the TCF programme 

and the individual projects and schemes which contribute to the TCF programme will be monitored 

and evaluated.  The plan will ensure that a Theory of Change is established for interventions, a 

counterfactual is established and that baseline data is collected and analysed to assess the 

effectiveness of TCF in South Yorkshire and as a contribution to the TCF national programme.  A 

Benefits Realisation Plan was also produced.  Extracts of the benefits, outputs, outcomes and 

impacts are included at Appendix C. 

 

 

Applying Evaluation Findings to Future Policy, Strategy and Delivery 

4.18 A review of the evaluation reports for all projects and programmes funded by the MCA and LEP will be 

conducted to analyse delivery and impact, as well as capturing the lessons learnt on what has worked well, 

where there have been issues, constraints or risks to delivery and the extent to which projects and 

programmes have achieved the expected outputs, outcomes and impact on the economy anticipated in the 

original project or programme Business Case. 

 

4.19 The lessons learnt will then be applied to future socio-economic policy, the MCA’s internal processes for 

managing the delivery of devolved and awarded funding and project and programme appraisal and 

monitoring, and the design and management of future MCA and LEP funded projects and programmes.   

 

4.20 This will ensure that the MCA and LEP builds-on successful pilots and continues to fund interventions that 

yield higher value outputs and outcomes, whilst also tackling any identified blockages or weaknesses in the 

MCA’s application, appraisal or project management processes.  It will also deliver against the Government’s 

ROAMEF cycle (Rationale, Objectives, Appraisal, Monitoring, Evaluation, Feedback) by ensuring that 

feedback from projects and programmes is applied to policy, strategy and project development.  

 
 

Page 98



15 
 

 

Appendix A: Metrics, Measures, Outputs & Outcomes 

There are a suite of outputs, outcomes and metrics that the MCA and LEP will measure programme and project performance against.  These include standard outputs and 

outcomes that are reported to Government in the Quarterly Returns, the statutory entitlements for the Adult Education Budget and the targeted outputs and outcomes outlined 

in the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) and Renewal Action Plan (RAP).  These are specified in the sections below:   

 

Standard Outputs and Outcomes for MCA and LEP Funded Projects 

Businesses 

 Number of enterprises/businesses receiving grant support 

 Number of enterprises/businesses receiving financial support other than grants 

 Number of enterprises/businesses receiving non-financial support (eg. advice, information, guidance, training) 

Employment 
 Number of jobs created 

 Number of apprenticeships created 

Skills 
 Number of new learners assisted (in courses leading to a full qualification) 

 Area of new or improved learning and training floorspace (square metres) 

Transport 

 Length of newly-built road (metres) 

 Length of road resurfaced (metres) 

 Length of new cycle ways (metres) 

Housing 
 Number of houses/new dwellings completed 

 Number of homes with new or improved fibre-optic provision  

Commercial Infrastructure 

 Area of commercial floorspace created (square metres) 

 Area of commercial floorspace refurbished (square metres) 

 Area of commercial floorspace occupied (square metres) 

 Number of businesses with access to new or improved broadband services 

Flood Risk Prevention 

 Area of land with reduced likelihood of flooding as a result of the project (square metres) 

 Number of homes with reduced flood risk 

 Number of commercial properties with reduced flood risk 

P
age 99



16 
 

Adult Education Budget (AEB) Statutory Entitlements 

Level 1 Qualifications 

 Number of individuals aged 19 and over, who have not previously attained a GCSE grade A* to C or grade 4 or higher, attaining 

Level 1 in English 

 Number of individuals aged 19 and over, who have not previously attained a GCSE grade A* to C or grade 4 or higher, attaining 

Level 1 in Maths 

Level 2 Qualifications 

 Number of individuals aged 19 and over, who have not previously attained a GCSE grade A* to C or grade 4 or higher, attaining 

Level 2 in English 

 Number of individuals aged 19 and over, who have not previously attained a GCSE grade A* to C or grade 4 or higher, attaining 

Level 2 in Maths 

 Number of individuals aged 19 - 23 years obtaining a first full qualification at Level 2 

Level 3 Qualifications  Number of individuals aged 19 - 23 years obtaining a first full qualification at Level 3 

 

  P
age 100



17 
 

SCR Strategic Economic Plan – Targets and Indicators 

 Indicator Desired Outcome Data 2040 

Target 

B
u

si
n

es
s 

G
ro

w
th

 

Productivity Our workforce’s productivity will increase, positively 
benefitting the prosperity of our residents. 

Labour productivity measured in Gross Value Added (GVA) per 
employee. Annual Population Survey. 
 
82% of UK average (2017) 

100% of UK 
average 
 

Economic output 

per capita 
The size of our economy relative to our population will 
increase. 

GVA per capita, rather than employee as above. Annual Population 
Survey. 
 
68% of UK average (2017) 

100% of UK 
average 

R&D expenditure  A greater investment in R&D (relative to our economy) 
indicates an innovative economy.  

R&D expenditure as a proportion of economy using ONS and 
EUROSTAT data. 
SCR approx. 1% 

UK 
Government 
target of 
2.4% 

Enterprise Higher density and growing business base. Enterprise growth rate is approximately 15-16% using ONS 
Business Demography data. 

Target birth 
rate of 16% 

Tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

 &
 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 

Car usage Car usage falls, indicating mode share and lower pollution 
due to transport. 

Car usage measured by vehicle miles. Annual road traffic statistics 
by Department for Transport. 
 
4,960 million vehicle miles (2018) 

To be 
developed. 

Digital 

connectivity 
A higher proportion of our region is covered by both full 
fibre & 5G broadband. 

Percentage of full fibre coverage of residential and business 
premises. Weekly network rollouts modelled by Think Broadband 
based on Openreach data. 
 
8.4% (2020) 

Equal to UK 
level 

Housing costs The housing system and wider economy means that 
earning power is not being eroded by inflating house 
prices. 

Lower quartile house price to earnings ratio. MHCLG ‘House price 
(existing dwellings) to residence-based earnings ratio’. 
 
 

No increase 
in ratio 

P
age 101



18 
 

 Indicator Desired Outcome Data 2040 

Target 

S
ki

lls
 &

 e
m

p
lo

ym
en

t 

School leavers More children leave secondary school with better 
attainment to boost their prospects entering further 
education and employment. 

Attainment 8 scores average, Department for Education 
administration data. 
 
BMBC – 42.5, DMBC – 42.7, RMBC – 43.6, SCC – 44.6 
England – 46.1 
(2018) 
 

Equal to 
England 
level 

Education A higher proportion of working-age population possess 
higher qualifications, indicating progression in education 
and employment. 

NVQ level 3 and above included. Annual Population Survey. 
 
SCR – 54.2%  
GB – 57.8% 
(2018) 
 

Equal to UK 
level 

Wage levels A lower proportion of employees on low earnings 
(defined as 20th percentile of earnings distribution). 

Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings. 
£8.92 per hour 
3% below UK level 
(2019) 
 

Equal to UK 
level 

Higher-level 

occupations 
Higher proportion of employees in managerial, technical 
& professional occupations. 

Standard Occupation Classifications 1-3 represent higher-level 
occupations. Annual Population Survey. 
 
SCR – 43.4% 
UK – 47.0% 
(2019) 
 

Equal to UK 
level 

Unemployment More working-age people are in employment. Annual Population Survey. 
 
SCR – 5.2%  
UK – 4.0% 
 (2019) 
 

Equal to UK 
level 

P
age 102



19 
 

 Indicator Desired Outcome Data 2040 

Target 

S
u

st
a

in
a

b
ili

ty
 &

 P
la

ce
s 

Air quality Improvement in air quality, as measured by relevant 
different particulate matter. 
 

To be developed based on public health agreements and available 
data. 

Equal to 
England 
level 

Health Our population live increasingly long, healthy lives. Healthy life expectancy at birth. 
SCR – male 60.2 years, SCR – female 60.2 years 
UK – male 63.1 years, UK – female 63.6 years 

Equal to UK 
level 

Fuel poverty Fewer households living in fuel poverty. BEIS Sub-Regional Fuel Poverty Estimates. 
SCR – 10.6% 
England – 10.9% 
(2017) 

Equal to UK 
level 

Cultural 

participation 
Gap for overall participation in cultural activity between 
SCR and national average closes. 

To be developed awaiting regular updates and reliable data. Equal to UK 
level 

Deprivation Lower share of local areas in deprivation. MHCLG Index of Multiple Deprivation – a composite of indicators 
including income, employment, education, health, crime, barriers 
to housings and services, living environment deprivation. 
 
BMBC – 22%, DMBC – 24%, RMBC – 22%, SCC – 22% 
(2019) 
 

Equal to UK 
level 

Climate and 

environment 
Improving ‘value’ of natural environment measured by 
ecosystem service provision. 

To be developed awaiting regular updates and reliable data.  

 
 
 

  

P
age 103



20 
 

SCR Renewal Action Plan – Targets and Indicators 

 Objective Intervention Desired Outcome 

 

Target 
P

eo
p

le
 

Help people find 

jobs and adapt to 

the new economy. 

Train to work Increase of 3,000 apprentices and over 17,000 other education, training, and 
paid work experience positions in 18 months leading to sustainable employment.   
 
The programme will also be structured to help fill skills gaps that hold back our 
tech companies, placing people in sustained employment. 

Approximately 20,000 people 
supported.  
 
The programme is targeted towards 
young people (and apprentices, 
graduates and leavers), women, 
disabled, people from BAME 
background and people from 
disadvantaged backgrounds. 
 

Back to Work This will contribute to SCR’s unemployment rate returning to pre COVID-19 
levels (5% or lower). It will also contribute to a rise in economically active people 
in SCR. 

10,000 unemployed people supported. 
 
The programme is targeted towards 
vulnerable cohorts and communities. 

Young People’s 

Skills Guarantee 

(Post-16) 

Young job seekers will be supported to secure and remain in employment 
commensurate with their skills and ambition.  
 
Additionally, learners who have fallen behind will be supported to catch up. It will 
ensure that NEET levels are below the national average. Success will be 
measured by a greater share of young people staying in employment or in 
education after 6 and 12 months. Targets will be developed through current 
graduate and leaver surveys. Data will be confirmed with longitudinal data on 
outcomes. 

4,500 people supported with a specific 
focus on the most ‘at-risk’ young 
people. 

Overcome barriers Unemployment benefit claimant counts have risen due to COVID-19. 
 
Specific targets will be dependent on nature of eventual support (e.g. caring 
responsibilities or digital skills). Empowering individuals to work (e.g. at home) 
and/or stay in education or training will allow them to support their families and 
re-engage with the labour market. Addressing challenges and the provision of 
digital assets and/or childcare could help people embrace job opportunities. This 
will result in numerous positive outputs for the City Region, such as lower UC 
claimants, higher levels of wellbeing, inclusion, productivity and income tax. In 
addition to direct benefits to the exchequer, this will result in avoided costs for 
the NHS on physical and mental health, and local economic multiplier effects. 
 

At least 15,000 people supported to re-
engage with the labour market.  
 
 

P
age 104



21 
 

 Objective Intervention Desired Outcome 
 

Target 
E

m
p

lo
ye

rs
 

Support 

employers to 

adapt, survive and 

thrive despite 

COVID-19. 

Services and 

knowledge 

support for 

COVID-19 

adaptation 

 

Arrest any decline in business stock and survival rates will improve.  Anticipated 
impacts will include direct jobs created and safeguarded, and eventual sustained 
GVA and productivity rise. 

22,727 businesses  
Based on £110 per employer 

Digital adoption 

and upskilling for 

our organisations 

Arrest any decline in business stock and survival rates will improve. Anticipated 
impacts will include direct jobs created and safeguarded, and eventual sustained 
GVA and productivity rise. 
 

Support up to 10,000 SMEs 

Flexible 

investment and 

recapitalisation 

Business stock will begin to grow. Increase business birth rate over the next 12 
months. Significant contributions to reducing carbon footprint and improving 
social inclusion. Equity investments will seek competitive rates of return and 
induce local economic multiplier effects. 

3,765 
businesses 
Based on £850,000 per employer 

Employer 

leadership 

support 

 

Arrest any decline in business stock. Longer term impacts such as GVA and 
productivity rises will be quantified in accordance with timeframe and scope. 

Support up to 1,000 businesses 

Supply chain and 

procurement 

support 

 

The programme will utilise baseline figures on local spend and supply chains to 
identify improvements. The MCA will work with Department for International 
Trade to exploit re-shoring potential. 

Support 300 businesses initially  
Protect 15,000 jobs 

  

P
age 105



22 
 

 Objective Intervention Desired Outcome 
 

Target 
P

la
ce

s 

Infrastructure 

investment to 

level up our 

economy, create 

jobs, and 

transform our 

communities. 

Covid-19 spatial 

adaptation 
Baseline information for all urban centres to allow targets to be established 
based on support offered. This would include: 

 Footfall and vacant units – e.g. no increase in empty retail premises by Q3 
2021 

 Day time/evening economy spend 

 Independent shops (ratio to national chains) 

 Density of businesses 
 

To be developed. 

Sustainable travel Capital projects which contribute to 620 miles of accessible walking and cycling 
routes across SCR to enable people to leave their cars at home and support 
multi modal travel. Improvements to bus network coverage and patronage.  
 
Delivery will also have an indirect impact upon footfall and spend. Lastly, health 
and wellbeing data from PHE will be utilised to understand direct and indirect 
health outputs. 

Maintaining COVID-19 lockdown active 
travel levels. As of the end of May 
2020, 64% of adults walked, and 14% 
cycled – representing an extra 100,000 
cyclists.  
Increased public transport patronage 
(baseline increasing but targets linked 
to pre-COVID-19 levels). 
 

Shovel-ready 

investment (de-

carbonisation) 

Key development indicators across all programmes include employment, GVA 
and other wide indicators including indirect employment, social value delivery 
and biodiversity enhancement. Benefits will be specific to capital investment 
project, and additionally will induce local economic multiplier effects. 
 
This will enable SCR to progress against ambitions for a net zero City Region by 
2040. Benefits will depend on which capital investment project are delivered, but 
will include reduced pollution, enhanced biodiversity, and health improvements. 

Creation of 2,000 new jobs across all 
programmes and carbon emissions 
outputs in line with SCR’s Net Zero by 
2040 target. 

Shovel-ready 

investment 

(infrastructure) 

Key development indicators across all programmes include employment, GVA 
and other wide indicators including indirect employment, social value delivery 
and biodiversity enhancement. Benefits will be specific to capital investment 
project, and additionally will induce local economic multiplier effects. 
 
This will begin to level up South Yorkshire and accelerate the renewal of the 
economy. The investment will enhance existing world class assets and enable 
underperforming parts of the City Region to become catalysts for growth, 
inclusion and sustainability. 

Creation or safeguarding of 4,000 new 
jobs across all programmes and 
programme indicators. 

 

 

P
age 106



23 
 

Appendix B: Logic Chains for the Thematic Areas 

P
age 107



24 
 

 
 
 
  

P
age 108



25 
 

 

 

 

P
age 109



26 
 

 

 

 

P
age 110



27 
 

 

P
age 111



28 
 

Appendix C: Transforming Cities Fund (TCF) Monitoring and Evaluation Plan – Benefits, Outputs & Outcomes 

 

TCF - Benefits Realisation Plan Objectives, Outputs, Outcomes and Impacts 

TCF Programme Objective  Desired Outputs  Desired Outcomes  Desired Impacts  

To better connect the areas of transport poverty with 
areas of opportunity in a safe and sustainable way 

To affect a mode shift away from the private car on 
those corridors where new opportunities are likely to 
see an increase in demand or where growth could be 
stifled 

To create a cultural shift towards making cycling and 
walking the natural choice for shorter journeys 

To achieve the above in ways that address current 
health issues and improve air quality across the SCR 

Over 25km of improved 
walking and cycling 
infrastructure 

Over 90km of new walking and 
cycling infrastructure 

10km of new bus lanes 

11 junction improvements to 
benefit non-car modes, with 7 
bus gates 

100 bus stop improvements 

New tram-train stop at Magna 

Two new tram-train park and 
ride sites, offering 450 spaces 

Improvements to the facilities 
at 11 local rail stations 

More walking and cycling 

journeys across the SCR 

Reduced bus journey times 

Improved bus journey time 

reliability 

Increased bus patronage 

Increased tram patronage 

Increased rail patronage 

Reduced car commuting 

Improved air quality 

More active people 

Support inclusive growth 

Enhanced opportunities to 

access new employment 

sites 

Create healthy streets where 

people feel safe 

Improve the quality of our 

outdoors 

More people being physical 

activity  

 

 

 

P
age 112



29 
 

 

TCF Key outcome and impact metrics 

Outcome Metrics – Data Required  

Outcome Objective Data to be Used Data Source Collected/ funded by  

Real and perceived active 
travel safety improved 1 2 3 4 

Perception of safety amongst pedestrians and cyclists Pedestrian and Cyclist Intercept Survey 

Telephone surveys for non-users 

Sponsors (larger schemes)  

SCR (countywide)  

Reduction in no. and severity 
of accidents and casualties 
(involving pedestrians / 
cyclists) 

1 2 3 4 
Accident and casualty numbers (pedestrians and 
cyclists) and cause of accidents 

STATS19 data 

Sponsors  

Improved perceived quality of 
active travel 

1 2 3 4 
Perception of walking and cycling provision in the area 
(e.g. desire lines, quality, signage) 

Pedestrian and Cyclist Intercept Survey 

Telephone surveys for non-users 

Sponsors (larger schemes)  

SCR (countywide)  

Address severance barrier for 
active travel 

1 2 3 4 

Mapped isochrones of before and after connectivity – 
especially from areas of transport poverty to areas of 
opportunity 

TRACC 
PTE (Countywide) 

 

Perception of severance barrier - especially from areas 
of transport poverty to areas of opportunity 

Pedestrian and Cyclist Intercept Survey Sponsors  

SCR (countywide) 

Improved local active travel 
connectivity 

1 2 3 4 
Mapped isochrones of before and after connectivity, 
number of people within defined travel time 

TRACC 
PTE (Countywide) 

 

Enhanced active travel 
accessibility to stations 

1 2 3 4 

Passenger / public perception regarding ease of 
getting to station 

Pedestrian and Cyclist Intercept Survey 

Telephone surveys for non-users 

Sponsors  

SCR (countywide) 

Mapped isochrones of before and after connectivity, 
number of people within defined walking time of station 

TRACC 
PTE (Countywide) 

 

Improved perception of active 
travel 

1 2 3 4 
Perceptions of active travel improved (e.g. willing to 
consider walking and cycling) 

Pedestrian and Cyclist Intercept Survey 

Telephone surveys for non-users 

Sponsors (larger schemes)  

SCR (countywide) 

P
age 113



30 
 

Outcome Objective Data to be Used Data Source Collected/ funded by  

Uptake of active travel 1 2 3 4 

Number of people walking or cycling Pedestrian and Cycle Counts Sponsors 

Frequency of walking and cycling per person Active Lives Adult Survey  Sponsors 

Perceptions of amount walking / cycling Pedestrian and Cyclist Intercept Survey Sponsors 

Improved quality of station 
environment 

1 2 3 4 Facilities at station Station Audit (see Table 4.1) 
PTE (Countywide) 

Greater availability of secure 
cycle parking 

1 2 3 4 Cycle parking occupancy Cycle Parking Count 
Sponsors 

Access for all at rail stations 

1 2 3 4 

Compliance with accessibility requirements Station Audit (see Table 4.1) PTE (Countywide) 

Perceptions of station users User survey PTE (Countywide) 

Improved perception of rail 
station 

1 2 3 4 
Perceptions of station users of quality of station (e.g. 
information, safety / security, accessibility) 

Rail Passenger Survey  
PTE (Countywide) 

Increased rail patronage 
1 2 3 4 Annual station entries / exits 

Office of Rail and Road (ORR) Estimates of 
Station Usage 

PTE (Countywide) 

Widened catchment for tram-
train services 

1 2 3 4 
Mapped isochrones of before and after connectivity, 
number of people within defined travel time 

TRACC 
PTE (Countywide) 

 

Alternative mode for those 
accessing key destinations 

1 2 3 4 

Perception amongst employees at key destinations, 
particularly Magna Business Park, Magna Science 
Adventure Centre, AMID, Town centres, Dearne Valley   
and iPort 

Employee Survey 

PTE (Countywide) 

Sponsors – depending on the 
outcome of STAF investment 

Improved perception of tram-
train services 

1 2 3 4 

Perception of tram-train service  Transport Focus Tram Passenger Survey PTE (Countywide) 

Perception of the new Magna stop and service 
available  

Magna Stop Passenger Survey 
PTE (Countywide) 

Improved access to tram-train 
services 

1 2 3 4 Use of P&R facility 
P&R Count Data (Magna and Parkgate 
Stops) 

PTE (Countywide) 

Increased tram-train patronage 1 2 3 4 Tram-train boarding and alighting data Operator Records PTE (Countywide) 

P
age 114



31 
 

Outcome Objective Data to be Used Data Source Collected/ funded by  

Perceptions of amount of travel by tram-train and any 
change in the stop used 

Magna Stop Passenger Survey 
PTE (Countywide) 

Reduced bus journey times 
1 2 3 4 Bus journey times along defined routes / services 

Operator Records / SYPTE Transport 
Corridor Data 

PTE (Countywide) 

Improved bus journey time 
reliability and punctuality 

1 2 3 4 
Standard deviation from planned journey time (for 
journey and at stops) 

Operator Records / SYPTE Transport 
Corridor Data 

PTE (Countywide) 

Greater bus frequency 1 2 3 4 Number of services operating along route / corridor 
Operator Records / SYPTE Timetable 
Database 

PTE (Countywide) 

Improved perception of bus 1 2 3 4 

Passenger perception of bus reliability, punctuality, 
satisfaction etc 

Bus Passenger Survey 
PTE (Countywide) 

Number of complaints regarding the services along the 
corridor 

SYPTE Customer Relationship Management 
(CRM) System Complaints 

PTE (Countywide) 

Increased bus patronage 1 2 3 4 Bus patronage data Operator Records PTE (Countywide) 

1 2 3 4 Perceptions of amount travel by the bus Bus Passenger Survey PTE (Countywide) 

Broaden public transport 
connectivity 

1 2 3 4 
Mapped isochrones of before and after connectivity, 
number of people within defined travel time 

TRACC 
PTE (Countywide) 

Reduced emissions per bus 1 2 3 4 Bus fleet composition Operator Records PTE (Countywide) 

Reduced emissions 
associated with buses 

1 2 3 4 Bus fleet composition Operator Records 
PTE (Countywide) 

Re-routing of highway traffic 1 2 3 4 Change in traffic volume through links - traffic counts 
Highway Data - Automatic Traffic Counts 
(ATCs) 

Sponsors 

SCR (countywide, working with 
sponsors to develop 
comparative/control routes) 

Increased proportion of 
sustainable journeys 

1 2 3 4 

Stated mode of travel  Bus, Rail and Magna Stop Passenger Survey PTE (Countywide) 

Stated mode to work Household Travel Survey PTE (Countywide) 

Frequency of walking and cycling per person Active Lives Adult Survey  Sponsors 

P
age 115



32 
 

Outcome Objective Data to be Used Data Source Collected/ funded by  

Modal shift from private car 

1 2 3 4 

Stated mode of travel Bus, Rail and Magna Stop Passenger Survey PTE (Countywide) 

Stated mode to work Household Travel Survey PTE (Countywide) 

ATC cordon count 
Count data/ Cordon count data (Weekday, 
0700-1900) 

Sponsors  

Greater connectivity between 
settlements 1 2 3 4 

Public transport journey time between key settlements Public Transport Timetable Information PTE (Countywide) 

Perceptions of stakeholders Interview PTE (Countywide) 

Access to opportunities / key 
destinations 

1 2 3 4 

Perceptions of stakeholders Interview PTE (Countywide) 

Perceived change in accessibility  Employee Survey  

PTE (Countywide) 

Sponsors – depending on the 
outcome of STAF investment 

Mapped isochrones of before and after connectivity 
contrasted with deprivation, employment and business 
growth data from Office of National Statistics (ONS) 

TRACC 
PTE (Countywide) 

 

Enhanced perception of ‘place’ 1 2 3 4 

Perceptions of stakeholders  Interview PTE (Countywide) 

Perceptions of those walking and cycling in the area Pedestrian and Cyclist Intercept Survey 
Sponsors (larger schemes)  

SCR (countywide) 

Improved highway journey 
time reliability (all vehicles) 

1 2 3 4 Trafficmaster – but investigating other data sources too Standard deviation to average journey time 

Sponsors 

SCR (countywide, working with 
sponsors to develop 
comparative/control routes) 

Reduced highway journey 
times (all vehicles) 

1 2 3 4 Trafficmaster – but investigating other data sources too Average journey times for defined routes 

Sponsors 

SCR (countywide, working with 
sponsors to develop 
comparative/control routes) 

Enhanced traffic flow 
characteristics 

1 2 3 4 Traffic volumes through links Highway Data - ATCs 
Sponsors 

 

P
age 116



33 
 

Outcome Objective Data to be Used Data Source Collected/ funded by  

Average speed through links 

Highway Data – ATCs 
Sponsors 

 

DfT Congestion Statistics  
Sponsors 

 

 

Impact Metrics – Data Required 

Impact Objective Data to be Used Data Collection Collected/funded by  

Health benefits 
1 2 3 4 

Perceptions of stakeholders Pedestrian and Cyclist Intercept Survey1 

ONS Wellbeing survey 

Sponsors (larger schemes)  

SCR (countywide) 

Mitigate congestion 1 2 3 4 Levels of delay along corridors 
Trafficmaster – but investigating other data 
sources too 

Sponsors 

Improved local air quality 1 2 3 4 Nitrogen dioxide (NO2) levels 
Diffusion Tubes (new if appropriate) or 
existing 

Sponsors – but reported by SCR at a 
Countywide level 

Reduced deprivation levels and 
improved social inclusion 

1 2 3 4 

Proportion of Lower-layer Super Output 
Areas (LSOAs) within 20% most deprived  

Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) SCR (countywide) 

Perceptions of stakeholders Interview 

PTE (Countywide) 

Sponsors – depending on the 
outcome of STAF investment 

Reduced unemployment 1 2 3 4 Claimant Count numbers Claimant Count data SCR (countywide)  

Support retention / growth 1 2 3 4 

Perceptions of stakeholders Interview 

PTE (countywide) 

Sponsors – depending on the 
outcome of STAF investment 

Number of employees   
Business Register and Employment Survey 
(BRES) 

SCR (countywide)  

Business counts ONS – UK Business Counts SCR (countywide)  

                                                      
1 Include questions linked to Active Lives Survey, specifically ‘ how many days exercise jn the last week where you have done 30 minutes exercise where heart rate has increased’ and local data based on ONS’ 

‘Life satisfaction’ questions in their wellbeing survey 

P
age 117



34 
 

Impact Objective Data to be Used Data Collection Collected/funded by  

Sites more attractive to investors / 
business 

1 2 3 4 
Perceptions of stakeholders Interview SCR (countywide)  

Business counts ONS – UK Business Counts SCR (countywide 

P
age 118



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 
 

Sheffield City Region 

11 Broad Street West 

Sheffield 

S1 2BQ 

 

+44 (0)114 220 3400 

enquiries@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 

 

www.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 

Page 119

mailto:enquiries@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
http://www.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Purpose 

This report provides an update on the progress of the 2020/21 Group Internal Audit Plan.  

Freedom of Information & Section 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 

Under the Freedom of Information Act this paper and any appendices will be made available under 
the Mayoral Combined Authority Publication Scheme. This scheme commits the Authority to make 
information about how decisions are made available to the public as part of its normal business 
activities. 

Recommendations 

The Audit and Standards Committee are asked to note the progress of 2020/21 audit activity 
undertaken by Grant Thornton for:  

 Joint MCA & SYPTE audits 

 MCA audits 

 SYPTE audits  

Audit & Standards Committee  

18th March 2021 

Group Internal Audit Plan Progress Report 

Page 121

Agenda Item 14



This page is intentionally left blank



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Commercial in confidence

Internal Audit Progress 

Report

Sheffield City Region Mayoral Combined Authority
March 2021

P
age 123



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Progress Report  |  March 2021

Commercial in confidence

Resourcing 

We confirm that we have sufficient internal audit team members available to deliver the 
internal audit plan on time. We will flex the plan where needed for emerging priorities and 
to accommodate timescales requested by management.  

Changes to the audit plan since the last meeting

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 and the uncertainty of its impact, we have continued to 
keep the audit plan under review. Subsequently a number of changes have been made 
resulting in an additional 38 days being moved to the Contingency budget, increasing the 
total balance to 63 days. 

It is proposed to utilise these days to carry out the following reviews:

▪ The scope of the AEB review has now been discussed and agreed. The scope is 
wider than the original readiness checklist review and will therefore require additional 
resource. It is proposed to transfer 10 days from the contingency budget to cover this 
additional work.   

▪ In light of Covid-19, the Department for Transport have made available additional 
grant funding. We propose to transfer five days from the contingency budget to carry 
out sample testing in respect of the LTA CBSSG restart grant.

▪ To carry out an advisory review of the organisations’ IT service and systems. This 
review will also incorporate the review of Back Office Systems. Scoping around the 
arrangements, work requirements and allocation of days are being discussed with 
management.

▪ To carry out a high level review of the design effectiveness of the Project 
Management Governance arrangements in place to support the integration of the 
MCA and the PTE. Scoping around the arrangements, work requirements and 
allocation of days are being discussed with management.

Head of Internal Audit opinion

In the Head of Internal Audit opinion, we comment on the implementation of audit 
recommendations.  This year we have observed greater delays in the implementation of 
audit recommendations, which can be seen from the recommendation tracker.  In many 
cases, this is due to the impact of Covid-19 on management capacity.  This observation 
will be reflected in our annual opinion this year.  We will consider the impact of this issue 
on our overall conclusion on the Authority’s system of internal control later in the year.

Introduction & headlines

Purpose

This report provides an update on progress to date against the 2020/21 internal audit plan. 
We have delivered 39 of the 55 days in respect of the MCA reviews, this is equivalent to 
71%. We have delivered a total of 160 days of the 272 days in the joint audit plan which is 
equivalent to 59% overall. A breakdown can be found at pages 3 and 4. There are a 
number of proposed changes to the plan for Audit and Standard’s Committee 
consideration, including the re-allocation of contingency days.

Final reports issued

We have finalised one audit report since the last Audit Committee meeting. A copy of the 
report is attached with the agenda papers:

Our assurance levels are shown at appendix 1.

Work in progress

The fieldwork in respect of the high level review of compliance with contract standing 
orders is now complete and the findings discussed with the Deputy Chief Executive.

Fieldwork is in progress in respect of the following reviews:

▪ Core Financial Controls

▪ Risk Management

▪ Governance

▪ Procurement

▪ Adult Education Budget (AEB)

▪ Travel and Expense Claims

Audit Completed Overall Assurance Level

AMP Technology Centre Partial assurance with improvement 
required

P
age 124



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Progress Report  |  March 2021

Commercial in confidence

Progress against 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan

Audit
Planned
days

Start date
Scope 

meeting 
held 

APB
agreed

Fieldwork
started

Fieldwork 
completed

Debrief
held

Draft 
report 
sent

Mgt
response 
received

Final
report 
sent

Days
used

Annual Reviews for HOIA opinion and Joint Authority Audits

Core financial controls 30 Quarter 3 21

Risk Management 12 Quarter 4 2

Governance 12 Quarter 4 2

Procurement 18 Quarter 4 9

Public Engagement and 
Consultation

12 Quarter 1 12

IT Advisory Review, incorporating 
Back Office Systems

Currently 
Scoping

Quarter 4 2

Integration - Project Management 
Governance 

Currently 
Scoping

Quarter 4 0

Follow up of recommendations 10 Ongoing 10

Attendance at Audit Committee & 
other client meetings

25 Ongoing 23

Sub-total 119 81

P
age 125



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Progress Report  |  March 2021

Commercial in confidence

Progress against 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan

Audit
Planned
days

Start date
Scope 

meeting 
held 

APB
agreed

Fieldwork
started

Fieldwork 
completed

Debrief
held

Draft 
report 
sent

Mgt
response 
received

Final
report 
sent

Days
used

Sheffield City Region Mayoral Combined Authority 

Grant Claims:
• Growth Hub
• Local Transport Capital 

Funding 

8
Quarter 

1/2
8

Adult Education Budget 18 Quarter 4 6

AMP Technology Centre 13 Quarter 2 13

Programme Management – Follow 
up

4 Quarter 2 4

Travel and Expense Claims 12 Quarter 3 8

Sub-total 55 39

South Yorkshire Passenger 
Transport Executive

50 40

Contingency 48 0

Total Plan 272 160

P
age 126



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  

Appendix 1 - Our assurance levels

Rating Description

Significant 
assurance

Overall, we have concluded that, in the areas examined, the risk management activities and controls are suitably designed to achieve the risk 
management objectives required by management.

These activities and controls were operating with sufficient effectiveness to provide significant assurance that the related risk management 
objectives were achieved during the period under review.

Might be indicated by no weaknesses in design or operation of controls and only IMPROVEMENT recommendations.

Significant 
assurance with 
some 
improvement 
required

Overall, we have concluded that in the areas examined, there are only minor weaknesses in the risk management activities and controls 
designed to achieve the risk management objectives required by management.

Those activities and controls that we examined were operating with sufficient effectiveness to provide reasonable assurance that the related 
risk management objectives were achieved during the period under review.

Might be indicated by minor weaknesses in design or operation of controls and only LOW rated recommendations.

Partial assurance 
with improvement 
required

Overall, we have concluded that, in the areas examined, there are some moderate weaknesses in the risk management activities and controls 
designed to achieve the risk management objectives required by management. 

Those activities and controls that we examined were operating with sufficient effectiveness to provide partial assurance thatthe related risk 
management objectives were achieved during the period under review.

Might be indicated by moderate weaknesses in design or operation of controls and one or more MEDIUM or HIGH rated recommendations.

No assurance Overall, we have concluded that, in the areas examined, the risk management activities and controls are not suitably designedto achieve the 
risk management objectives required by management. 

Those activities and controls that we examined were not operating with sufficient effectiveness to provide reasonable assurance that the related 
risk management objectives were achieved during the period under review

Might be indicated by significant weaknesses in design or operation of controls and several HIGH rated recommendations.

The table below shows the levels of assurance we provide and guidelines for how these are arrived at. We always exercise professional judgement in determining 
assignment assurance levels, reflective of the circumstances of each individual assignment. 

5

P
age 127



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).  GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement 
and signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly 
for the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 128



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Purpose 

This report presents the Internal Audit Report for the AMP Technology Centre. 

Freedom of Information & Section 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 

Under the Freedom of Information Act this paper and any appendices will be made available under 
the Mayoral Combined Authority Publication Scheme. This scheme commits the Authority to make 
information about how decisions are made available to the public as part of its normal business 
activities. 

Recommendations 

The Audit and Standards Committee are asked to consider the findings and recommendations of the 
internal audits on:  

 AMP Technology Centre (Appendix 1) 

Audit & Standards Committee  

18th March 2021 

Internal Audit Reports 

Page 129

Agenda Item 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Sheffield City Region Mayoral 
Combined Authority

AMP Technology Centre

January 2021

Final Report

Andrew Smith 

Director 

T: 0161 953 6900

E: andrew.j.smith@uk.gt.com

Lisa MacKenzie

Internal Audit Manager

T: 0121 232 5157

E: lisa.p.mackenzie@uk.gt.com

Emma Tilley

Internal Auditor

T: 0141 223 0774

E: emma.j.tilley@uk.gt.com

Appendix 1

P
age 131

mailto:isa.p.mackenzie@uk.gt.com
mailto:emma.j.tilley@uk.gt.com


Confidential

Contents

This report is confidential and is intended for use by the management and directors of 

Sheffield City Region Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) It forms part of our continuing 

dialogue with you. It should not be made available, in whole or in part, to any third party 

without our prior written consent. We do not accept responsibility for any reliance that third 

parties may place upon this report. Any third party relying on this report does so entirely at 

its own risk. We accept no liability to any third party for any loss or damage suffered or 

costs incurred, arising out of or in connection with the use of this report, however such loss 

or damage is caused. 

It is the responsibility solely of the Authority’s management and directors to ensure there 

are adequate arrangements in place in relation to risk management, governance, control 

and value for money.  

Report distribution:

Responsible Executive:

▪ Gareth Sutton, Group Chief Financial Officer

For Information:

▪ Dave Smith, Chief Executive

▪ Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive

▪ Mike Thomas, Deputy Section 73 Officer

▪ Claire James, Senior Governance and Compliance Officer

▪ Paul Taylor, Director Creative Space Management

▪ Simon Walton, Management Accountant, Creative Space Management

For action:

▪ Charli Taylor, Senior Programme and Performance Unit Manager

▪ Colin Blackburn, Assistant Director of Infrastructure and Housing

▪ Steve Davenport, Monitoring Officer

▪ Simon Tompkins, Finance Manager

▪ Lynne Sutton, Health & Safety Advisor / Jayne Hampshire, Business

Operations Manager

▪ Jonathan Griffin, AMP Centre Manager

1  Executive Summary         3

3 Appendices 17

2 Action Plan         6

P
age 132



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Final Report

.

Background

The Advanced Manufacturing Park Technology Centre (the Centre) is 

located within the Advanced Manufacturing Park (AMP), Rotherham and 

provides a combination of office space, workshop facilities and conferencing 

& meeting room resources. There are 3 buildings within the Centre, 

buildings 1 & 2 are serviced office spaces and workshops which are rented 

to the occupiers. Building 3 has office spaces and workshops but are leased 

to the clients.

The main source of income is rent (Licenses) and additional services are 

catered to upon request. These are internet, rack space, phone line, call 

charges, event space, franking, cleaning and catering. Currently these 

services are charged by BACS on a monthly basis to clients, however, ad 

hoc space requirements are also available where clients pay-as-they-go. An 

on-site café also generates additional income for the Centre through its 

operations and conference catering.  

A third part managing agent, Creative Space Management (CSM), has 

been contracted to operate the site on behalf on the MCA for over a 

decade. The current contract commenced in 2018 and is to last 5 years 

(with an additional 2 years extension). Their key role is to obtain maximal 

occupancy and have facilitated long-term client leases for the centre. The 

MCA Executive manages the AMP; Commissioning leading strategic 

activity, Programme and Performance leading contractual performance, 

Finance leading financial overview and tenancy agreements led by legal.

As a key priority for the MCA, it is essential then that there is appropriate 

management and oversight of internal and financial controls within the 

Centre, and that reporting to the MCA is up to date and accurate. 

Assurance over these controls is especially important during the current 

global COVID-19 pandemic where the risks increases around potential 

financial fraud.

Objectives

The objective of the review was to provide an independent and objective 

assessment of the design of MCA controls and the effectiveness of those 

controls relating to the internal and financial reporting arrangements within 

the Centre and the accuracy around financial reports received.

Executive Summary

3

Objectives (continued)

Our review focused on the following potential risk areas to the MCA:

• Inadequate Governance arrangements:

– Roles and responsibilities relating to the contractual performance management of the

AMP Centre are not clearly defined,

– Ineffective contract monitoring arrangements in place, leading to non-compliance with

contract terms and conditions,

– Lack of robust monitoring, reporting and management oversight arrangements.

• Inadequate or ineffective internal and financial control increasing the risk of loss, error or

fraud:

– The MCA is unable to place reliance on the bank reconciliation process. The MCA

does not receive assurance that Bank accounts are reconciled on a regular and timely

basis; that the methodology used is robust and that bank reconciliations are accurate.

– Inadequate or inconsistent arrangements for receiving and managing income from

clients,

– Inadequate or ineffective expenditure controls, including lack of segregation of duties.

– Client licenses and lease agreements are not reviewed on a timely basis to ensure

that they remain fit for purpose,

• The Centre does not meet the requirements arising from COVID-19 within its service

delivery or for its employees, or changes to internal and financial controls in response to

the pandemic have not been documented or approved by the MCA.

Limitation of scope

Our findings and conclusions were limited to the risks identified above. The scope of this 

audit does not allow us to provide an independent assessment of all risks and controls 

associated with the AMP Technology Centre.

Where sample testing is undertaken, our findings and conclusions will be limited to the 

sample tested only. Please note that there is a risk that our findings and conclusions based 

on the sample may differ from the findings and conclusions we would reach if we tested the 

entire population from which the sample is taken.

This report does not constitute an assurance engagement as set out under ISAE 3000.

P
age 133



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Final Report

Areas requiring improvement (continued)

The MCA Executive recognises, and has begun work, to define how operational 

risks arising from the Centre fit into the MCA's risk management framework but 

these, along with the asset register management and backlog maintenance 

arrangements require defining and embedding across the asset management.

Management noted appetite for developing an Asset Management Framework, 

however, work has been postponed during 2020 due to the MCA’s COVID response. 

We therefore recommend that this action is progressed through a workshop with key 

stakeholders and an action plan developed for monitoring purposes by the 

Management Board. 

We also identified other areas where controls could be improved to ensure that 

arrangements are in line with good practice and the MCA’s Constitution and 

Management Agreement with CSM, such as:

• Segregation of duties during the monthly reconciliation process could be made

clearer through documented procedures and auditing completed by CSM on

income and expenditure recorded. Checks on the cash balance held in the

Project Bank Account should tightened to ensure that the amount attributable to

MCA is below the pre-determined threshold of £500,000.

• An informal agenda was in place for monthly monitoring meetings in the form of

the Monitoring Report containing different reports from CSM. However, meetings

notes and actions were documented informally via email between parties. Since

the audit, the process has been enhanced to incorporate a formal Review Note,

Agenda, Meeting Note, and Actions Log.

• The debt recovery process requires formalising and documented. CSM currently

have informal arrangements for chasing debt and report any issues of concern

through the performance meetings with the MCA so that they can be escalated to

MCA Management Board for decision on what action to take where necessary.

Arrangements to when interest is to be added to debt owed (as noted in licence

and lease agreements) should also be formalised in procedure by management.

• Current procurement controls are not robust or mitigate against the risk of fraud.

Controls are currently manual and there is absence of an automated system that

ensures there is clear segregation of duties and clear audit trail of expenditure.

• Final tenancy agreements should be held electronically and centrally to allow

access by both MCA and CSM management ensuring both have timely access to

up to date arrangements.

Conclusion

We have reviewed the processes and controls around the MCA’s Financial and 

Internal Control management arrangements at the AMP Technology Centre. The 

controls tested are set out in our Audit Planning Brief.

We have concluded that the processes provide PARTIAL ASSURANCE WITH 

IMPROVEMENT REQUIRED to the Committee. 

We have provided this opinion based on the fundamentals and key elements 

expected as part of good practice to be in place as part of an organisation’s financial 

and internal control framework and contract performance management. 

Good practice

It is clear that there is an open and transparent relationship between CSM and the 

MCA management, supported by monthly management meetings between parties. 

MCA senior management charged with the responsibility for the Centre have a good 

understanding of issues arising and actions underway, such as to support tenants 

during the global COVID-19 pandemic. 

From our work, however, there is now opportunity for both parties to build on their 

existing arrangements to further enhance processes and controls.

The findings of our review and subsequent recommended action is designed to 

assist the MCA in working towards this goal.

Areas requiring improvement 

The AMP Technology Centre is managed as a stand alone asset and there is 

absence of a wider Asset Management Framework and Strategy for which its 

performance can be aligned. As a consequence, our review of key performance 

indicators noted they were for contractual performance monitoring rather than its 

performance against any wider strategic goals of the MCA. 

In addition, roles and responsibilities around governance and operational oversight 

are not clear to management outside of the immediate contract management team, 

that consists of the Contract Manager, the Assistant Director of Infrastructure and 

Housing, Principal Solicitor/Monitoring Officer, and the Senior Finance Manager. 

Partial assurance with improvement required

Executive Summary

4

P
age 134



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Final Report

Areas requiring improvement (continued)

• The AMP Technology Centre COVID-19 Risk Assessment details an increased

risk around fire due to internal doors being wedged open. The impact of internal

fire doors being wedged open to the Centre's fire certification and building

insurance was discussed between the MCA Health & Safety Advisor and CSM in

March 2020 and advice confirmed via email and adjustments made based on that

advice. A formal process should be established to ensure any risk to the MCA is

also assessed and documented.

• The Centre’s Business Continuity plan also requires to adopt good version

control practices and ensure that contact numbers provided are correct and staff

are aware of arrangements.

Recommendations

Based on our findings, we have raised 8 recommendations. The grading of these 

recommendations is shown below: 

Acknowledgement

We would like to take this opportunity to thank your staff and CSM for their co-

operation during this internal audit.

Executive Summary

5

High Medium Low Improvement

Detailed findings 1 2 5 -

P
age 135



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Final Report

Action Plan – MCA

6

In this section we set out the detailed findings arising from our work. Details of what each of the ratings represents can be found in Appendix 2.

Risk Findings and Recommendation Action Plan

Roles and 

responsibilities relating 

to the contractual 

performance 

management of the 

AMP Centre are not 

clearly defined.

Ineffective contract 

monitoring 

arrangements in place, 

leading to non-

compliance with 

contract terms and 

conditions.

The AMP Technology Centre is a significant income stream for the MCA and has potential to impact the 

underlying budget of the Combined Authority group. However, while the asset is managed through 

contractual performance monitoring, there is no asset management framework that defines the role of the 

AMP Technology Centre in the wider portfolio of assets and arrangements around the following:

(i) Governance oversight requirements: AMP Financial performance is monitored and reported on to

the MCA at a high level through in year finance reports on the overall performance of the MCA

against budget. However, there is currently no formal annual performance or business plan reporting

to the MCA Theme Board (responsible for financial decisions under £2 Million), or Management

Board or Combined Authority Meetings to allow their oversight and scrutiny.

(ii) Operational framework: it is not currently clear to all management who is ultimately responsible for

the performance of the asset and Creative Space Management noted difficulty in timely decision

making when the MCA’s contract manager was absent.

(iii) Performance management: AMP Technology Centre performance is not formally measured against

the wider MCA Corporate Strategy, for example, there is no Asset Management Strategy for the

MCA and therefore the AMP Technology Centre documented. Monthly Key Performance Indicators

(KPIs) reviewed are related to contractual management arrangements only.

(iv) Risk management: the AMP Technology Centre risk register does not align to the wider risk

management framework and asset management framework. Issues are escalated through monthly

monitoring meetings and escalated to Management Board, where necessary.

(v) Asset register and backlog management policy: management are aware there is no asset

register for the Centre, and wider management policy for any backlog maintenance and asset

management requires to be documented.

Management Response: 

(i) The annual Business Plan is to

go to the Management Board for

formal approval from March 2021.

(ii) Gareth Sutton is Senior

Responsible Owner. CSM are

aware to engage with the AD for

Infrastructure and Housing and the

Senior Finance Manager as well as

the MCA’s Contract Manager.

(iii) AMP is to be integrated into the

wider Asset Management Strategy.

(iv) Integration of the risk register

into the wider MCA risk

management framework will

commence now corporate strategy

has been approved.

(v) An enhanced assets register is

currently being commissioned

alongside annual review of the

planned preventative maintenance.

P
age 136



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Final Report

Action Plan – MCA

7

In this section we set out the detailed findings arising from our work. Details of what each of the ratings represents can be found in Appendix 2.

Risk Findings and Recommendation Action Plan

Roles and 

responsibilities relating 

to the contractual 

performance 

management of the 

AMP Centre are not 

clearly defined.

Ineffective contract 

monitoring 

arrangements in place, 

leading to non-

compliance with 

contract terms and 

conditions.

Issues identified: There is no formal asset management framework and strategy impacting on the AMP 

Technology Centre being managed as a stand alone asset and lack of clarity over performance 

management arrangements.

Risk: Operational issues are not formally considered against the impact to the wider MCA or mitigation 

made through timely decision making. 

Recommendations: 

Management noted planning around a Combined Authority asset management framework has been 

postponed during 2020. An action plan for its completion should be agreed through a workshop with key 

stakeholders and documented for Management Board review and scrutiny. 

The asset management framework should allow for Theme Board scrutiny of the AMP Technology Centre 

business planning and performance through annual reporting and consider noting of arrangements by the 

Management Board and / or Combined Authority in line with good governance practices. 

It should also be supported by policy and a strategy where the impact of asset performance, such as AMP 

Technology Centre, can be monitored through KPIs that align to that strategy.

Operational risks raised from the AMP Technology Centre and associated risk registers should align and 

be embedded into the wider MCA risk management and asset management framework.   

Similarly, the asset register for the AMP Technology Centre should be completed and policy documented 

around backlog maintenance planning. 

Actions:

1. AMPTC Business Plan to go to

Management Board annually for

approval.

Responsible Officer: Charli 

Taylor, Senior Programme and 

Performance Unit Manager 

2. Risk register to align to recently

approved corporate strategy.

Responsible Officer: Charli 

Taylor, Senior Programme and 

Performance Unit Manager 

3. Asset register to be

commissioned and aligned to the

planned preventative maintenance.

Once in place it is to be reviewed

annually in accordance with the

Business Plan.

Responsible Officer: Colin 

Blackburn, Assistant Director of 

Infrastructure and Housing 

Executive Lead: Gareth Sutton, 

Group Finance Director

Due date: 31/12/2021

P
age 137



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Final Report

Action Plan – MCA

8

In this section we set out the detailed findings arising from our work. Details of what each of the ratings represents can be found in Appendix 2.

Risk Findings and Recommendation Action Plan

Lack of robust 

monitoring, reporting 

and management 

oversight 

arrangements. 

The MCA have established Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for its contract with CSM within their 2018 

Management Agreement and annual business plans, that also detail the target baselines agreed. KPIs are 

reported in monthly reports to the Contract Manager. 

However, the format of minutes made of monthly performance reviews were inconsistent. In practice, an 

informal agenda was followed for monitoring meetings using the Monitoring Report and supporting reports 

supplied by the CSM.  Meetings notes were circulated and actions documented via email between parties 

during resolution. As a consequence, the MCA were unable to evidence formal review of key performance 

indicators. 

The reporting frequency of two “Specific Performance Measures” KPIs in the business plan is inaccurate 

to current practice and requires updating. It was noted as quarterly but in practice is completed annually 

as agreed with the MCA. 

Actions stemming from monthly discussions were also not centrally documented for tracking and 

monitoring of timely completion, and enhancements agreed in business plans are not monitored for 

completion. In practice, annual performance allows the reconciliation of outcomes against Business Plan 

objectives.

Management Response: 

KPI’s are a standing agenda point. 

KPI review is completed but only 

formally noted during the review 

meetings by exception, such as if 

issues/queries were raised by the 

MCA in response to the return. 

The process has now been 

enhanced and rolled out to 

incorporate a formal Review Note, 

Agenda, Meeting Note and Actions 

Log. Actions stemming from 

monthly meetings are noted on the 

Actions Log and resolution formally 

documented on file.

Actions:

1. Business Plan to be updated as

part of the 2020/21 review process.

Responsible Officer: Charli 

Taylor, Senior Programme and 

Performance Unit Manager 

2. Embed COVID-19 reviews into

standard MCA H&S management.

Responsible Officers: Lynne 

Sutton, Health & Safety Advisor / 

Jayne Hampshire, 

Business Operations Manager

Executive Lead: Gareth Sutton, 

Group Finance Director

Due date:  31/12/2021

Issues identified: Outcomes from monthly performance meetings are not captured to allow for effective 

monitoring of the status of actions.

Risk: Performance trends are not used to identify contract issues impacting timely decision making. 

Recommendations: 

Monthly performance review meetings should follow a set agenda that includes a review of KPIs and 

actions/ outcomes tracked within an action log for monitoring purposes. 

The Business Plan should be updated to ensure that reporting of the two Specific Performance Measures 

is documented as annual in line with current reporting practices.

A review of the agreed enhancements and mitigations brought by the COVID-19 pandemic be brought into 

future performance monitoring. 

P
age 138



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Final Report

Action Plan – MCA & CSM 

9

In this section we set out the detailed findings arising from our work. Details of what each of the ratings represents can be found in Appendix 2.

Risk Findings and Recommendation Action Plan

The MCA is unable to 

place reliance on the 

bank reconciliation 

process. 

The MCA does not 

receive assurance that 

Bank accounts are 

reconciled on a regular 

and timely basis; that 

the methodology used 

is robust, that bank 

reconciliations are 

accurate. 

Management note assurance around the monthly bank reconciliation process and our review noted no 

significant transaction errors through our sampling work. However, we were unable to evidence that  

segregation of duties were appropriate and in line with the Authority’s Constitution as the procedure is not 

documented to clearly identify roles and responsibilities of checks and balances completed.  

In practice, the process is completed by two finance teams within the MCA and CSM. The Project Bank 

Account reconciliation is prepared by CSM's management accountant and provided to MCA Finance for 

review on a monthly basis. Monthly VAT reports are used by the MCA to update journal entries for 

management reporting. Invoices sent to the MCA are checked against management reports for VAT value 

and number only.  

There is also no formal check on the Project Account by the MCA to ensure that the amount attributable to 

the MCA does not exceed £500,000. There were several months noted during sampling where opening 

and closing balances exceeded £700,000 over the period reviewed. Management reported this was part 

due to retention of £175,000 due to the previous owner on resolution of the Ground Heat Source issue 

and the account only exceed the limit in June and July 2020. 

Issues identified: End of month reconciliation duties are not documented to give clarity around roles and 

responsibilities and assurance that segregation of duties are in line with the Constitution. 

Risk: While we did not identify any issues in the sample of transactions tested, without robust 

segregations of duties, there is risk of fraudulent activity not being detected.

Recommendations: 

The procedure for completing month end reconciliations process by CSM and MCA should be 

documented with clarity around segregation of duties at the AMP Technology Centre to ensure it is in line 

with the Authority’s Constitution. 

The following monitoring enhancements should also be made to ensure that the opening and closing 

balances of the Project Bank account limit should be reviewed monthly by the MCA to ensure that credit 

limits remain below the £500,000.

Actions:

The review of Project bank 

account reconciliations by the 

MCA Finance will be evidenced 

with immediate effect. MCA will 

also with immediate effect 

assume responsibility for 

monitoring the cash held on 

behalf of the MCA and taking 

proactive action to ensure tat it 

does not exceed the pre-

determined threshold.  

Responsible Officer: Simon 

Tompkins, Finance Manager 

Executive Lead: Gareth Sutton, 

Group Finance Director

Due date:  Immediate effect

P
age 139



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Final Report

Action Plan – MCA & CSM 

10

In this section we set out the detailed findings arising from our work. Details of what each of the ratings represents can be found in Appendix 2.

Risk Findings and Recommendation Action Plan

Inadequate or 

inconsistent 

arrangements for 

receiving and 

managing income from 

clients.

There is no documented process for managing aged debt and recovery that would clearly differentiate the 

role of CSM and when the MCA should be involved as the landlord. Both the MCA and CSM are in 

agreement that it is the CSM responsibility to chase bad debt, however, the process currently adopted is 

informal.

For example, while CSM have aged debt letters, they are not routinely used. CSM adopt a process that 

involves meeting with tenants informally onsite. When they are office based this process works well and 

maintains relationships with tenants. However, during periods where they are not onsite, bad debt was 

noted to increase over Christmas and during the COVID-19 lockdown period.

Licenses and leases reviewed also detail that 4% above base rate should also be added to debt over 7 

days. However, in practice this is not added. Without a documented procedure, it was difficult to ascertain 

when interest should be added or under which circumstances it should not be added. 

Our sampling noted that at August 2020, only one tenant debt being written off as bad debt (£2,090) and 

aged debt reported was at £113,345. This was due to a conscious decision made by the MCA 

Management Board to support AMP tenants by allowing them to defer the June payment of rent less 50% 

and pay over the following two quarters. As at October 2020, arrears were at £51,000 with £12,000 being 

over 2 months old as a consequence of the deferment period unwinding. 

Issues identified: Debt recovery is inefficient when management are not onsite and tenants are not being 

held to account on aged debt. 

Risk: The MCA relies on CSM chasing debt owed to them. 

Recommendations: 

The joint process around Bad Debt Management at the AMP Technology Centre should be documented to 

allow clarity around roles and responsbilities, and when aged debt letters should or should not be used.

During periods where management are offsite, aged debt letters should be used and actions recorded for 

monitoring.

The procedures and letters should also be clear around the application of the 4% base interest charge on 

overdue rental. 

Actions:

Debt recovery procedures will be 

formalised. This will include 

clarifying the respective roles and 

responsibilities of CSM and the 

MCA and escalation procedures 

where tenants fall into arrears.

Responsible Officer: Simon 

Tompkins, Finance Manager 

Executive Lead: Gareth Sutton, 

Group Finance Director

Due date:  31/01/2021

P
age 140



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Final Report

Action Plan – MCA & CSM 

11

In this section we set out the detailed findings arising from our work. Details of what each of the ratings represents can be found in Appendix 2.

Risk Findings and Recommendation Action Plan

Inadequate or 

ineffective expenditure 

controls, including lack 

of segregation of 

duties. 

We were unable to demonstrate that expenditure related controls at the AMP Technology Centre are 

operating as expected and in line with public procurement good practice as follows:

(i) Procedure and segregation of duties:  The process for raising AMP Technology Centre expenditure

and approving spend is not documented to provide clarity to roles and responsibilities of management and

the checks and balances completed. In practice, the Centre Manager raises Purchase Orders and

approves expenditure under £2,500. The Centre Manager raises and approves expenditure on hardcopy

purchase order forms, monitor goods and services received, and approves the payment of supplier

invoices.

Checks on expenditure during the month end reconciliation process by CSM Finance team are not 

documented. There is therefore reliance on management that expenditure reported is appropriate.

(ii) Evidence of approvals: We were unable to evidence a robust audit trail of procurement expenditure

approvals by the Centre Manager and CSM Director. Purchase orders are approved on hard copy forms

by the Centre Manager, with expenses over £2,500 and £10,000 approved by the CSM Director and MCA,

respectively. However, we were not able to evidence documented approval in our sample tested. Due to

remote working at the time of the audit, management were unable to provide us with purchase order forms

to demonstrate documented approvals and noted that director approval is often verbal or through emails

as part of business as usual activity. We noted instances of costs over £2,500 that did not have CSM

Director approval and that only through discussion were noted to be services completed on separate dates

but logged on one PO therefore not requiring senior management approval.

(iii) Purchase order management: Purchase orders are listed on an Excel spreadsheet detailing the PO

reference, date, amount, supplier, and high level goods description. However, it does not document when

approval by CSM Director or MCA were made, when goods/ services were received, invoice amounts, or

when payment to suppliers were made, or if the cost was assigned to a tenant lease agreement.

Inspection of the tracker also noted the following inconsistencies:

• It was not routinely used using the COVID-19 lockdown and information on expenses made at that time

is incomplete,

• Some cells relating to purchase order reference numbers and costs were blank, and

• On reconciliation of purchase orders tested listed against expense reports provided to the MCA, there

were seven instances of typos on reference numbers or amounts.

P
age 141



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Final Report

Action Plan – MCA & CSM 

12

In this section we set out the detailed findings arising from our work. Details of what each of the ratings represents can be found in Appendix 2.

Risk Findings and Recommendation Action Plan

Inadequate or 

ineffective expenditure 

controls, including lack 

of segregation of 

duties. 

(iv) Recording checks on goods or services received: There is no process to record that three way

checks on the original purchase order, receipts of goods/ services, and invoiced amount are made prior to

making supplier payments. The process is informal and completed by the Centre Manager.

(v) Status of supplier invoice payments: There is reliance on the Centre Manager to understand the

status of supplier payments. For example, from our testing of the 39 purchase orders recorded over the

five months sampled, 22 could not be easily reconciled from the Purchase Order tracker to MCA

management reports as item descriptions and reference numbers often did not align. On further

discussion, this was due to:

• 15 invoiced later in the year (invoice reference numbers and dates provided),

• 5 had different final amounts invoiced to that on the PO tracker. Discussions noted that the final cost of

services can differ to that originally quoted and often suppliers will not start would unless there is a PO

in place, and

• 2 invoices that had not yet been provided by the supplier despite work being completed months prior to

the time of audit.

(vi) Frequent procurement and supplier trend analysis: There is no supplier trend analysis undertaken

to ensure appropriateness of spend is in line with public procurement requirements. We noted one

supplier, SCM Services, for example, had nine separate purchase orders amounting to over £10,000 for

the 5 months tested. Annual spend should be reviewed to ensure public procurement limits requiring

tender are monitored.

P
age 142



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Final Report

Action Plan – MCA & CSM 

13

In this section we set out the detailed findings arising from our work. Details of what each of the ratings represents can be found in Appendix 2.

Risk Findings and Recommendation Action Plan

Inadequate or 

ineffective expenditure 

controls, including lack 

of segregation of 

duties. 

Issues identified: Procurement controls at the AMP Technology Centre are not in line with public 

procurement good practice requirements 

Risk: Risk of fraudulent or inappropriate purchases if authorisation processes and checks and balances 

are not robust.

Recommendations: 

Good procurement practices should be adopted to ensure that requirements as set in the MCA 

management agreement are being followed. Management should consider the following:

• Documenting the procurement procedure at the AMP Technology Centre and ensuring clear

segregation of duties between the management involved so that those raising purchase orders are not

approving payment to suppliers.

• Develop a process that provides a robust audit trail of all procurement and expenses including

documented authorisation, documented purchase orders, POs approval in line with the Management

Agreement, receipt of goods/ services, supplier invoices, deviations from original values on purchase

orders to that then invoiced, and when payments are finally made. Management should consider

implementing an electronic module to their finance system, SAGE, to support this process.

• Checks on total supplier spend to ensure that the predicted annual spend does not exceed national

public sector procurement limits.

• The MCA should seek assurance through monthly reporting that the CSM Finance Team have

completed the necessary checks on expenses are in line with their Management Agreement.

Actions:

In the short term, the MCA will 

enhance the checks currently in 

place on expenditure incurred by 

CSM in running the AMP to obtain 

assurance that CSM are complying 

with the procurement standards 

specified in the contract. 

Longer term, a systems based 

solution will be sought which seeks 

to apply the same level of financial 

discipline on purchases made in 

connection with the running of the 

AMP as with expenditure incurred 

directly by the MCA.

Responsible Officer: Charli 

Taylor, Senior Programme and 

Performance Unit Manager 

Executive Lead: Gareth Sutton, 

Group Finance Director

Due date:  

Short term: 31/01/2021 

Long term: 30/04/2021 

P
age 143



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Final Report

Action Plan – MCA & CSM 

14

In this section we set out the detailed findings arising from our work. Details of what each of the ratings represents can be found in Appendix 2.

Risk Findings and Recommendation Action Plan

Client licenses and 

lease agreements are 

not reviewed on a 

timely basis to ensure 

that they remain fit for 

purpose

There is absence of centralised, electronic retention of AMP Technology Centre tenant agreements by the 

MCA. Instead agreements are retained in hard copy by the MCA Legal department impacting the 

efficiency to which information can be retrieved. Our sample testing of 10 agreements noted only one was 

held electronically. 

Reporting on the current status of licence agreements is raised by exception during monthly review 

meetings. MCA legal hold a license/lease tracker for new contracts and renewals that reflect start/end 

dates. Details of review dates. are held by CSM as the managing agent. While we evidenced no specific 

issues in the timeliness of tenancy renewal, the method of tracking reviews is through the use of 

reminders in Microsoft Outlook calendars. 

Management Response:

Implement a single register of 

signed licences and Leases, 

hopefully in share point, to be 

maintained by the Managing 

Agents and accessible for SCR 

Officers. Investigate whether 

register can have a link to an 

electronic copy of the signed 

Agreement. Register to contain 

tenancy details including expiry 

date. Investigate whether licences 

can be granted on a roiling basis at 

end of initial term e.g. 12 months 

and then from month to month until 

terminated on [4] weeks’ notice. 

This would simplify renewal 

process.

Issues identified: Unable to access signed agreements on a timely basis.

Risk: Timeliness of decision making around tenant agreements.

Recommendations: 

Management should consider developing centralised electronic filing to allow the retention of electronic, 

signed copies of tenant lease and licence agreements. 

The spreadsheet used to track licences should be updated to provide start and end dates of licences and 

narrative against each tenant to their current arrangements. The MCA should be provided with an action 

plan against each tenant to ensure awareness of those agreements due to expire and next steps by CSM.

Actions

1. Create SharePoint access for

SCR/CSM

2. Confirm whether licenses can be

granted on a rolling basis

Responsible Officer: Steve 

Davenport, Monitoring Officer

Executive Lead: Steve Davenport, 

Monitoring Officer

Due date: 31/08/2021

P
age 144



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Final Report

Action Plan – MCA & CSM 

15

In this section we set out the detailed findings arising from our work. Details of what each of the ratings represents can be found in Appendix 2.

Risk Findings and Recommendation Action Plan

The Centre does not 

meet the requirements 

arising from COVID-19 

within its service 

delivery or for its 

employees (Business 

Continuity 

Arrangements).

We reviewed the current business continuity plan and emergency plans supplied to the MCA as part of the 

annual Business Planning for 2020/21. We noted there were multiple dates throughout the documents 

impacting on clarity to whether they had been reviewed and three supplier contact numbers presented in 

the Emergency Plan that had typos. This could risk efficiency to staff contacting key suppliers.

We also noted that the documents did not document their testing arrangements with relevant staff in line 

with good practice. This should include any wider stakeholders involved, such as MCA management.

Issues identified: Business Continuity plans reviewed have inaccuracies.

Risk: Staff are not fully aware of roles and responsibilities should there be a business continuity event 

impacting the timeliness of decisions made.

Recommendations: 

Business continuity documents should adopt good version control practices, and all contact details be 

checked for inaccuracies. 

Testing arrangements of the Business Continuity plans should also be included in documents to ensure 

that staff involved are fully aware of their roles and responsibilities during an event. 

Actions:

1. MCA to review with CSM as part

of the annual Business Plan

process to ensure enhancements

are made.

2. CSM to implement version

control and testing arrangements

of the Business Continuity Plan.

Responsible Officer: Charli 

Taylor, Senior Programme and 

Performance Unit Manager / 

Jonathan Griffin, AMP Centre 

Manager

Executive Lead: Gareth Sutton, 

Group Finance Director

Due date: 31/12/2021

P
age 145



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Final Report

Action Plan – MCA & CSM 

16

In this section we set out the detailed findings arising from our work. Details of what each of the ratings represents can be found in Appendix 2.

Risk Findings and Recommendation Action Plan

The Centre does not 

meet the requirements 

arising from COVID-19 

within its service 

delivery or for its 

employees (COVID-19 

Risk Assessment)

CSM completed a COVID-19 Health and Safety Risk Assessment for the AMP Technology Centre in May 

2020 and was updated in June 2020. The Centre Manager has implemented a number of changes to 

maintain safety of their employees and tenants and documented changes made. 

The COVID-19 Risk Assessment provided to us did not evidence that the MCA Health & Safety Advisor 

had been involved in the assessment to ensure risks associated with the MCA had been considered. In 

practice, the COVID-19 Risk Assessment was discussed between the MCA Health & Safety Advisor and 

CSM in March 2020 with advice confirmed informally via email. CSM review the Risk Assessment monthly 

but the form itself is only adjusted if changes are required with the updated form submitted to the MCA.   

We also noted risk around an increase risk of fire had been documented due to internal corridor doors 

being wedged open. On review, we noted some are fire doors which could risk the fire certification and 

building insurance should their be a fire on those premises.    

Management Response: 

It is recognised that a formalised 

process should be in place. In the 

interim CSM have agreed to more 

formally review and update the 

Risk Assessments monthly, 

providing to the MCA H&S Advisor 

to ensure that advice is provided in 

a direct, consistent and auditable 

manner. The current MCA H&S 

review is underway and as part of 

the 2020/21 Business Plan 

development, a H&S Strategy was 

noted to embed direct MCA H&S 

engagement, stronger governance 

and 6-monthly audits. 

Actions:

MCA H&S Advisor to engage 

directly with CSM to ensure 

measures on site and Risk 

Assessments are in accordance 

with H&S regulations.

Responsible Officer: Lynne 

Sutton, Health & Safety Advisor / 

Jayne Hampshire, 

Business Operations Manager

Executive Lead: Gareth Sutton, 

Group Finance Director

Due date: 31/12/2020

Issue identified: MCA related risks have not been identified and documented on AMP Technology Centre 

COVID-19 Risk Assessments

Risk: The MCA may not meet fire safety requirements increasing its reputational risk should there be a 

fire.

Recommendations: 

The impact of wedging doors on the buildings’ fire certification and insurances should be considered and 

actions agreed with the MCA.

Management should ensure that any future changes to the COVID-19 Risk Assessment be highlighted to 

MCA Health and Safety teams for their awareness and consultation. 

P
age 146



Appendices

P
age 147



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Final Report

Appendix 1 – Staff involved and documents reviewed

Documents reviewed

• AMP Technology Centre Management Agreement (March 2018)

• SRCMCA Constitution containing scheme of delegation and segregation of

duties instructions

• SRC Meeting minutes from July 2019 and 2020 containing additional scheme

of delegation for the AMP Technology Centre

• Creative Space Management Annual Plans for 2019/20 and 2020/21

For December 2019, January 2020, April 2020, June 2020, and August 2020, 

we reviewed: 

• Creative Space Management Monthly Performance reports to SRCMCA

• Creative Space Management Purchase Order spreadsheet

• Clarity Core extract for tenant invoices

• Management financial reports and reconciliation workings by Creative Space

Management

• Audit checks on VAT by MCA finance team

• Sample of tenant lease and license agreements

Staff involved

MCA

• Steve Davenport, Monitoring Officer

• Kerry Willers, Executive Legal/Governance Administration Officer

• Richard Howard, Finance Manager

• Charli Taylor, Senior Programme and Performance Unit Manager

• Colin Blackburn, Assistant Director of Infrastructure and Housing

• Gareth Sutton, Group Finance Director

• Mike Thomas, Deputy Section 73 Officer

• Simon Tompkins, Finance Manager

Creative Space Management

• Paul Taylor, Director, Creative Space Management

• Simon Walton, Management Accountant, Creative Space Management

• Jonathan Griffin, AMP Centre Manager

18

P
age 148



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Final Report

Appendix 2 - Our assurance levels

Rating Description

Significant 
assurance

Overall, we have concluded that, in the areas examined, the risk management activities and controls are suitably designed to achieve the risk 
management objectives required by management.

These activities and controls were operating with sufficient effectiveness to provide significant assurance that the related risk management 
objectives were achieved during the period under review.

Might be indicated by no weaknesses in design or operation of controls and only IMPROVEMENT recommendations.

Significant 

assurance with 

some 

improvement 
required

Overall, we have concluded that in the areas examined, there are only minor weaknesses in the risk management activities and controls 
designed to achieve the risk management objectives required by management.

Those activities and controls that we examined were operating with sufficient effectiveness to provide reasonable assurance that the related 
risk management objectives were achieved during the period under review.

Might be indicated by minor weaknesses in design or operation of controls and only LOW rated recommendations.

Partial assurance 

with improvement 
required

Overall, we have concluded that, in the areas examined, there are some moderate weaknesses in the risk management activities and controls 
designed to achieve the risk management objectives required by management. 

Those activities and controls that we examined were operating with sufficient effectiveness to provide partial assurance that the related risk 
management objectives were achieved during the period under review.

Might be indicated by moderate weaknesses in design or operation of controls and one or more MEDIUM or HIGH rated recommendations.

No assurance Overall, we have concluded that, in the areas examined, the risk management activities and controls are not suitably designed to achieve the 
risk management objectives required by management. 

Those activities and controls that we examined were not operating with sufficient effectiveness to provide reasonable assurance that the related 
risk management objectives were achieved during the period under review

Might be indicated by significant weaknesses in design or operation of controls and several HIGH rated recommendations.

The table below shows the levels of assurance we provide and guidelines for how these are arrived at.  We always exercise professional judgement in determining 

assignment assurance levels, reflective of the circumstances of each individual assignment. 

19

P
age 149



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Final Report

Appendix 2 - Our assurance levels (cont’d)

The table below describes how we grade our audit recommendations. 

Rating Description Possible features

High Findings that are fundamental to the management of risk in the business area, 

representing a weakness in the design or application of activities or control that 
requires the immediate attention of management

▪ Key activity or control not designed or operating

effectively

▪ Potential for fraud identified

▪ Non-compliance with key procedures /

standards
▪ Non-compliance with regulation

Medium Findings that are important to the management of risk in the business area, 

representing a moderate weakness in the design or application of activities or control 

that requires the immediate attention of management

▪ Important activity or control not designed or

operating effectively

▪ Impact is contained within the department and

compensating controls would detect errors

▪ Possibility for fraud exists

▪ Control failures identified but not in key controls

▪ Non-compliance with procedures / standards
(but not resulting in key control failure)

Low Findings that identify non-compliance with established procedures, or which identify 

changes that could improve the efficiency and/or effectiveness of the activity or 
control but which are not vital to the management of risk in the business area. 

▪ Minor control design or operational weakness

▪ Minor non-compliance with procedures /
standards

Improvement Items requiring no action but which may be of interest to management or which 
represent best practice advice

▪ Information for management

▪ Control operating but not necessarily in
accordance with best practice

20

P
age 150



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. |

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 

as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 

obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 151



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. Introduction 

 
 1.1 Following a full internal Management Board review and an Internal Audit Report in 2020, the 

risk management framework of the MCA was revised and refreshed. The Audit and Standards 
Committee endorsed the revised policy and process in October and, following their 
recommendation, it was approved and adopted by the MCA at their meeting in November. The 
workplan for the Committee sets out that strategic risk will be a standing item at each meeting.  
 

 1.2 This report informs the Committee on the progress made embed the revised approach across 
the organisation and provides an update on strategic risk. 
 
 
 

Purpose of Report 

This paper reports on the progress of embedding the revised approach to risk management and 
provides an update on strategic risks. 

Thematic Priority 

Cross cutting. 

Freedom of Information  

Under the Freedom of Information Act this paper and any appendices will be made available under 
the Mayoral Combined Authority Publication Scheme. This scheme commits the Authority to make 
information about how decisions are made available to the public as part of its normal business 
activities. 

Recommendations 

Audit and Standards Committee Members are asked to: 

• Note the progress of embedding the revised risk management approach across the 
organisation. 

• Note the update on strategic risks and identify any issues. 

Audit & Standards Committee 

18th March 2021 

Strategic Risk Monitoring  

Page 153

Agenda Item 16



 

2. Proposal and justification  
 

 2.1 Operationalising the Risk Management Policy and Process 
 
Since the last report to the Committee in January a number of actions have been progressed 
to embed the revised risk management approach including: 
 

 Risk Champions have continued to work with ‘Business Planners’ to ensure consideration of 
risk is embedded into the corporate and business planning process and, that at the conclusion 
of the process risk registers will become the operation risk register for the relevant area. These 
registers will then be reviewed as part of the quarterly business plan review cycle. 
 
The new Programme Management system which will be used for recording and monitoring risk 
for all projects and programmes has been aligned to the agreed risk management approach 
and is scheduled to go live w/c 22nd March. A Risk Management Strategy template has been 
designed and will be completed for each Programme. This will act as a communication tool to 
ensure all participants understand the risk process to be adopted for the Programme including 
the measure of probability and impact to be employed, how risks will be recorded, the timing of 
risk management activity and the responsibilities of each party. The strategy document will be 
produced conjunction with the MCA Risk Management Policy and Process.  
 
A dedicated area on the staff intranet has been developed. 

  
Next steps 
 

 Seeking feedback on the new MCA board paper template which has been re-developed to 
encourage better consideration of risk and scheduling training and roll out across the 
organisation. 
 

 Risk sections of Business Case documentation will be reviewed to ensure alignment to the 
agreed approach. 

  
 A staff training/induction module will be developed. 
  

 2.2 Strategic Risk Update 
The table below provides a summary of the five strategic risk categories. Revised Risk 
Management Actions Plans are provided at appendix A-E. 
 

  
Strategy 
Focus 

Org 
M'Mt 

Budget 
& Fin 
M'Mt 

Prog 
M'Mt 

Gov & 
Comp 
M'Mt Total 

              
No. of risks in category 5 5 9 7 9 35 
Overall/average mitigated probability score P4 2.2 3.375  2.1111   
Overall/average mitigated impact score 3 2.5 3.4286 3 2.3333   
Overall/average mitigated risk score 14.667 5.5  9.6 4.9259   
No. of highly probable risks 1 0 2 0 0 3 
No. of new risks added since last report 0  0 1 0 1 2 
No. of risks closed since last report 0 0 0 0 1 1 
No. of open actions 6 1 3 3 6 19 
No. of actions overdue 2 1 0 2 2 7 

 

Page 154



 

  
2.3 

 
Heat map 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Key 
SF – Strategy Focus 
BM – Budget Management 
OM – Organisational Management 
PM – Programme Management 
G&CM – Governance & Compliance Management 
 
 

 
Risk Score Key 
Low 
Medium 
Medium-High 
High 

  
2.4 

 
Risk Category – Strategy Focus (appendix A) 
 
The risk score for the category ‘Strategy Focus’ remains at ‘Medium-High’ and continues to 
have a ‘highly probable’ risk linked to the strategy for the long-term sustainability of public 
transport. 
 
Actions  
 
The completion date for the action relating to lobbying for future funding linked to the CSR and 
future Shared Prosperity Funds has been revised to reflect the ongoing nature of the activity. 
Submissions were made to the one-year CSR process and the budget. The Strategic 
Economic Plan has been approved in the last quarter by both the LEP and MCA and so has 
set out the future regional growth strategy. 
 
The completion date for the action relating to agreeing with Members a plan for gainshare has 
been revised to encompass the work underway to agree an Investment Strategy for Gainshare 
which will be considered at the MCA meeting 22nd March. 
 
Movement 
 
Probability and impact scores for risks within this category have not altered since the previous 
report. 
 

 2.5 Risk Category – Organisational Management (appendix B) 
 
The risk score for the category ‘Organisational Management’ remains at ‘Medium’.  
 
Actions  
 

SF  
OM  

BM 

 

PM 

 G&CM 

 

Page 155



 

The completion dates for the action relating to the adoption of the Corporate Plan and the 
action relating to a full review of the establishment structure have both been revised to align 
with the conclusion of business planning activity and are on target. The new corporate plan 
and business plans will ensure clarity over priorities that will feed individual team and personal 
objectives.  
 
One action is overdue. This relates to the consideration of an employee forum. A revised 
completion date will be agreed as part of integration work. 
 
Movement 
 
The score level for the impact of increased resignations and absenteeism has increased 
during the last period from minor to moderate this is due to churn, particularly in positions on 
fixed term contracts due to future budget uncertainty and loss of income in year as a result of a 
drop in rental income.  
 

 2.6 Risk Category – Budget and Financial Management (appendix C) 
 
Since the last Risk reporting the MCA has concluded its Budget and Business Planning 
exercise for the new financial year. The budget is accompanied by a reserve strategy and a 
treasury management strategy. 
 
The budget and accompanying financial strategies represent the MCA’s defined approach to 
mitigating risk in its financial operating environment. The budget report notes that the Business 
Planning process has provided a useful tool to test, re-test, and define existing and emerging 
risks.  
 
The most prominent of these risks remains around the future commercial viability of the public 
transport network (risk #4 rated ‘highly probable’) as the country moves out of the current 
pandemic phase. At the time of writing, both future demand for services and government’s 
intentions for future support to the network remains unclear. The MCA’s ability to influence 
both variables remains limited.  
 
Since the last reporting-date it has, however, become clear that government’s response may 
include regulatory change to the relationship between bus operators and local public bodies. 
Whilst this may give the MCA greater leverage in the design and provision of future services, it 
does represent a major change in the potential relationship and may expose the MCA to future 
risk. 
 
The budget report notes the MCA’s intention to mitigate some of this risk through the freezing 
of the transport levy and the creation of earmarked reserves to both protect priority services 
wherever possible, and provide resource to effectively manage the potential regulatory change 
around bus. 
 
However, the report notes that despite mitigations adopted, should fare-paying patronage not 
recover across the network the sustainment of the network in its form will require adequate 
government intervention.  
 
Since the last reporting date progress has been made in a number of other areas. Clarity 
around the availability and quantum of grants has been received following the Spending 
Review, whilst future commercial income generation has been tested as part of the Business 
Planning exercise. The proposed budget and reserves strategy has also allowed for the 
planned mitigation of risk in line with broader financial strategies, moving the MCA away from 
reactive to planned management. Finally, engagement with the elected members of the MCA 
has allowed for agreement to be reached on the deployment of next year’s gainshare funding, 
and for progress to be made on the development of a longer-term investment strategy. 
 
Actions  

Page 156



 

Budget re-baselining and presentation of a revised budget to MCA: a Budget Revision 
process has now been firmly embedded. The budget re-baselining and revision process has 
allowed for the budget pressures reported earlier in the year to be addressed. It is 
recommended that this action now be removed from regular monitoring, with budget reports 
instead shared with the Committee. 
 
Development of exit strategies from the current public-subsidy model for the public 
transport network, and continued lobbying of government for sustained support to the 
network during Covid disruption: significant progress has been made on this action since 
the last reporting date with the submission of a Light Rail Recovery Plan to government and 
the creation of a Bus-Steering Group chaired by the Chief Executive and drawing on officer 
expertise from across the Group. A Bus Project Director has also been recruited to provide the 
necessary focus and leadership on this activity. 
 
Movement 
Risk #2: Loss of Income from Covid 19 and higher reactionary expenditure 
The mitigated probability of this risk has been moved to unlikely, recognising greater near-term 
certainty and the creation of new earmarked reserves to mitigate financial shock. 
 
Risk #3: Ending of major funding streams 
The probability of this has been revised down to ‘possible’ to reflect the greater certainty we 
have over funding for the next financial year. Longer-term funding remains at risk 
 
Risk #8: Consensus on use of Gainshare funding 
The mitigated probability of this risk has been revised down to reflect the productive work that 
has been undertaken with and between members around the deployment of near-term 
resource and future investment strategies. 
 
Risk #9: Regulatory change - NEW 
This is a new risk reflecting the possibility that the government may look to change the current 
regulatory environment that governs the relationships between bus operators and local public 
bodies. 
 
Despite these changes and the addition of a new risk the overall risk score for this category 
remains at ‘Medium’.  
 

 2.7 Risk Category – Programme Management (appendix D) 
 
Since the last report a number of proposals have been put forward that affect the risk register. 
 
A Business Process Redesign tender has been put into the market to seek an independent 
expert to review the MCA’s programme management processes. This review will seek to test 
the process flows and interfaces between scheme promoters and the MCA, with a view to 
identifying potential efficiencies.  
 
This work may lead to the faster and better delivery of schemes, and mitigate some of the 
issues noted around managing the challenges of government funding deadlines. 
 
The action plan in the risk register also notes the proposal taken forward as part of the Budget 
report for 2021/22 to create a ‘Project Feasibility Fund’. This Fund is designed to provide 
revenue resource to facilitate the early stage development of schemes. This will, in turn, allow 

Page 157



 

for the creation of a sustainable pipeline of investable propositions that can be matched to 
government funding cycles as they arise. 
 
It is hoped that the creation of such a pipeline of schemes will allow the MCA and partners to 
get ahead of problems and take pressure out of the development stage of activity. In turn this 
should allow for the design of better schemes at a faster pace. This action is detailed below. 
 
 
Actions  
NEW - The resourcing, design, and implementation of a Project Feasibility Fund: Subject 
to Member agreement the Fund will be resourced as part of the Budget setting process, with a 
further report to be taken to Members in June with recommendations on the implementation of 
the Fund. 
 
Movement 
Risk #4: Bus Review 
The mitigated probability of this risk has been revised down from ‘Probable to ‘Possibly’ 
following the budget’s proposal to create an earmarked resource to fund this activity. This 
reduces the overall mitigated probability score from ‘Possible’ to ‘Unlikely’ 
 
The overall risk score for the category remains unchanged at ‘Medium’ 
 

 2.8 Risk Category – Governance & Compliance Management (appendix E) 
 
The risk score for the category ‘Governance and Compliance Management’ remains at ‘Low’. 
 
Since the last report risk #6 relating to failure to implement a Mayoral Remuneration Panel and 
agree an outcome has been closed. The MCA meeting in January considered a report from 
the panel and agree the Mayoral remuneration. 
 
A new risk (#10) has been added relating to a potential lack of resource and expertise to 
deliver the 2022 Mayoral Election. 
 
Actions  
 
Two new actions have been added that relate to resourcing for the Mayoral Election and 
resourcing information governance activity. 
 
Movement 
 
Risk #3: governance and compliance issues as a result of ineffective planning for the 
integration of the PTE and MCA. The probability score for this risk has been revised down from 
‘Probable’ to ‘Possible’ and the mitigated probability score revised from ‘Possible’ to ‘Unlikely’ 
this is due to the progress made towards scoping an assured process. 
 
Risk #4: failure to have an effective approach to legislative, regulatory and statutory 
compliance. The probability score for this risk has been revised down from ‘Probable’ to 
‘Possible’ and the mitigated probability score revised from ‘Possible’ to ‘Unlikely’ this reflects 
that there is an in-house legal function that is integrated into the organisation. 
 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1  The approach to risk management has been endorsed by the Audit and Standards Committee 
and approved by the MCA however, the style and content of reporting will continue to evolve.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 158



 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Finance 
 
Failure to adequately manage risk could have significant financial implications for the MCA. 
 

 4.2 Legal 
 
There are no legal implications as a result of this report. 
 

 4.3 Risk Management 
 
Risk is one of the fundamental controls that IA consider and that forms a fundamental aspect of 
the work of the ASC work.  
 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion 
 
Any risks relating to equality and diversity will be captured in the new risk category of 
Organisational Management. 
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 Risk reporting is in line with the agreed policy and process. 
 

6. Appendices 
 

 6.1 Appendix A – Strategy Focus Risk Management Action Plan 
Appendix B – Organisational Management Risk Management Action Plan 
Appendix C – Budget & Financial Management Risk Management Action Plan 
Appendix D – Programme Management Risk Management Action Plan 
Appendix E – Governance & Compliance Management Risk Management Action Plan 

 
 
 

REPORT AUTHOR  Claire James 
POST  Senior Governance & Compliance Officer 

Officer responsible Ruth Adams 
Organisation MCA Executive 

Email Ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 
Telephone  

 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad Street 
West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
Other sources and references: 
 

 
 

Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank



DATE Mar 21

Risk Category

Probability
Mitigated 
probabilty 

Risk Description 3 2

4 4

5 5

3 2
4

4

Impact Mitigated impact

4 3
4 4
4 4
5 5
3 2

4 4

3.66666667

14.67

Status update
Interim date completion date

The RAP needs supplementing with detailed and costed 
Implementation Plans, currently in development led by 
Thematic Boards.

This work is underway and has been discussed at each meeting of a relevant Thematic Board. A few elements are in delivery and others continue to be developed eg kickstart 25+ and 
apprenticeships. 

Oct-20 Dec-20

Corporate Plan to be drafted to clarify the Mayoral, MCA and 
LEP priorities to be progressed.

The Corporate Plan is in a near complete draft, and is due to be adopted by the Management Board early March 21, work on the business plans has been completed and has informed the MCA 
budget paper seeking approval in March . 

Oct-20 Dec-20

Sustained lobbying for future funding for light rail and bus 
services.

Officer engagement with the Department for Transport is going, both bilaterally and in concert with peer authorities. Members and the Mayor have been kept apprised of the situation. The 
Department have made commitments to support both bus and tram to the end of the financial year, and further funding was made available in the Spending Review for bus support in the new 
financial year. It is understood that government support for bus is likely to be accompanied by changes to the current relationship between LTAs and bus operators, though at this stage it is not yet 
clear what form that will take. At this stage we expect that bus funding will continue until the proposed end of restrictions in June. The MCA has submitted a Light Rail Recovery Plan to HM Treasury, 
and is in bilateral discussions with government around the level of support required. At the time of writing there was no firm commitment to light rail support beyond the end of March, but a 
funding announcement is expected on the 15th March.

Ongoing

Planning for an agreement to the implementation of the 7 
Point Bus Review Plan.

MCA Board agreed in outline the plan. Work has commenced to mobilise a detailed programme plan and the appointment of an independent strategic partner is underway. An Interim Senior Officer 
to lead the bus service areas of the 7 point plan commences w/c 8th March 

Jul-20 Ongoing

Sustained lobbying for future funding linked to CSR and the 
future Shared Prosperity Funds.

The MCA submitted a detailed submission to the Government’s Comprehensive Spending Review process and has made private and public representations setting out the importance of the 
Government putting regional economic development funding on a long-term sustainable footing. A submission into the Government’s March Budget was submitted. The Mayor also continues to 
work directly with MHCLG and the Government along with the other 7 MCAs and the Mayor of London for future funding and SPF allocations through the M9 Group. Given the short term focus of 
the Spending Review efforts will continue in 2021 therefore the original completion date of Nov 20 for this action has been revised to reflect the ongoing nature of this activity.

Ongoing

Agreement with Members of the plan for gainshare. Members have agreed their priorities for the first two years of gainshare to be focused on the RAP implementation plans (MCA Board 16 November). Further work is now underway to develop an 
Investment Strategy for Gainshare, this has been developed with the Mayor and the Leaders and is due for formal agreement at the MCA 22nd March 2021 therefore the original completion date 
for this action has been revised from Nov 20 to Mar 21.

Nov-20 Mar-21

Risk / Mitigation Owner Dr Dave Smith

High level of uncertainty re future sources of central government investment to support the delivery of the SEP and RAP and to mitigate some major service transport challenges as a result of COVID-19. MCA has some influence to lobby and challenge but decision making to address the 
weakness is external 

Corporate Plan, consolidating the priorities of the Mayor, the MCA and the LEP as documented in the various strategic documents drafted, and associated business delivery plans developed. MCA has full influence over decision making to address the weakness. 

Strategy Focus

1 A lack of a clearly articulated set of strategic priorities and implementation plans could mean that we will fail to respond effectively to the economic downturn predicted by the global pandemic.
2 Failure to engage government and other national and local stakeholders in the Renewal Action Plan / Implementation Plans could mean that there is a lack of buy-in and commitment to funding the interventions required to address the economic challenges 
of the region.
3 Failure to respond effectively, as a Group, to the challenges brought about by the pandemic, for the public transport network and services for which the MCA Group are responsible could mean that transport ambitions for the region are not realised.

4 A lack of defined organisational priorities and deliverable activity in the form of a Corporate Plan could mean that focus and resource is not aligned to strategic objectives.

Overall/average mitigated probability score

1 a lack of focus in priorities leading to a widening of the gap in KPIs of the SY economy with other northern regions, a sustained economic recession, high levels of unemployment, high levels of business insolvancy and significant risks to our places.

2 a lack of investment to deliver the locally agreed interventions with an over reliance on untargeted national solutions. 
3 a significant loss of income for the MCA.
4 a significant reduction in public transport services.
5 a lack of focus, unclear outcomes and resource plans not aligned to priorities.

Overall/average mitigated impact score

Action Plan

5 A lack of capacity across all aspects of the system (not simply the MCA) to develop and deliver the activity required to respond effectively to the economic downturn predicted by the global pandemic 

6 reputational damage to the Mayor and the MCA and the Management Board of the MCA Exec.

Potential Impact / 
Consequence if risk 
materialises

Mitigated/Residual risk score

Detailed Corporate and associated business plans capturing the priorities of the Transport Strategy (2019), SEP (2020), Renewal Action Plan (RAP) (2020), Devolution Deal (2020) will be formalised by March 2021, establishing the 21/22  work programme 

Focus activity on local investment (gainshare), local discretionary grants and delivering out the agreed national programmes which address locally specified priorities (£390m). Continue to lobby for flexibility in future Shared Prosperity Funding (SPF) from the pilot to full roll out in 
subsequent years.
Detailed analysis and risk monitoring of income and patronage and risk associated with light rail and bus services.

Existing mitigation 
strategies / controls 
weaknesses

Existing mitigation 
strategies / controls for 
the risk category

Key
1 - Immaterial
2 - Minor
3 - Moderate
4 - Major/Serious
5 - Extreme

Key
1-4 Low
5-10 Medium
11-16 Medium-High
17-25 High

Key
1 - Remote
2 - Unlikely
3 - Possible
4 - Probable
5 - Highly Probable

Appendix A

P
age 161



T
his page is intentionally left blank



DATE Mar 21

Risk Category

Probability
Mitigated 
probabilty 

Risk Description
3 2

3 2

4 3

4 3

3 1

2.2

Impact Mitigated impact

4 3
4 3
4 3
3 2
3 2
3 3

2.66666667

5.87

Status update Interim date completion date

Corporate Plan to clarify the Mayoral, MCA and LEP 
priorities developed in draft and imminently to be adopted 
by the Management Board. 

Draft completed - finessing KPI linked to business planning work therefore original completion date of Dec 20 revised to align with conclusion of business planning. 

Dec-20 Mar-21
Review of establishment structure, monitoring of HR 
statistics for recruitment, absenteeism and performance 
issues, to become part of quarterly  HR Monitoring Report.

Full review undertaken of establishment data undertaken as part of the Corporate and Business Planning process, requirement for a HR KPI report included as part 
of corporate plan monitoring - baseline report due end of Q4 therefore original completion date of Dec 20 revised to align with Corporate and Business Planning 
process.

Dec-20 Mar-21
Review of non-establishment postitions to be undertaken 
and to become part of quarterly HR Monitoring Report.

as above completed
Sep-20

Consider options for an employee voice forum. Incomplete for MCA but in place for PTE. New approaches in place during pandemic for staff engagement - but will look at formal approaches aligned to integration 
work and revise current completion date as appropriate. Sep-20 Nov-20

Risk / Mitigation Owner Ruth Adams

1 Failure of the leadership of the MCA Executive to respond and adapt to the priorities of the Mayor, MCA and the LEP resulting in organisational priorities and team / individuals objectives that are are poorly articulated and 
communicated are poorly articulated and communicated that could mean outcomes are not achieved.
2 Due to the rate and pace of change, due to the pandemic, devolution and new priorities, the MCA Executive does not have the capacity or capability to deliver the emerging priorities and programmes. That could mean a loss 
of funding, failure to deliver outcomes, reputational damage, and the potential for an increase in staff absenteeism due to stress.
3 Failure to agree a sustainable budget for the MCA Executive, continued dependence on short-term and temporary funding streams, creating a reliance on short-term fixed term contracts and the use of short term consultancy 
contracts or agency workers.

5 Disruption to payments, operations, services
6 Reputational damage to the Mayor and the MCA and the Management Board of the MCA Executive

4 Divertion of resources as a result of COVID-19, and remote working, leading to delays in progressing new business priorities or increased inefficiencies in progressing core operations that could mean increased errors and / or 
costs.

Organisational Management

5 Failure to have in place an adequate and effective approach to business continuity management, which due to  technical, health or operational disruption could mean the operations, programmes and services of the MCA 
Executive are significantly disrupted.

Overall/average mitigated probability score

Potential Impact / 
Consequence if risk 
materialises

1 Increasing resignations and staff absenteeism 
2 Difficulties in recruiting, leading to higher costs
3 High level of establishment vacancies, higher levels of off-establishment appointments 
4 Outcomes and resource plans not aligned to priorities 

Action Plan

Overall/average mitigated impact score

Weekly Group Management Board meetings, to facilitate planning for policy and delivery priorities and to agree organisational communication.

Weekly meeting with Mayor, fortnightly meeting LEP Board and regular meetings with Leaders re their portfolio, led by Management Board.

Business Continutity Plan developed and monitored quarterly. Detailed lessons learned analysis of continuity issues as a result of COVID-19 integrated into MCA Executive Continuity Plan.

Existing mitigation 
strategies / controls for 
the risk category

Detailed work on a hybrid approach to working, blending remote and office based, to maximise impact of collaborative working and the continued safety of employees. MCA has full influence over decision making to address the weakness.

MCA Executive regularly briefs all employees but there is no established Employee Forum.  MCA has full influence over decision making to address the weakness.

Mitigated/Residual risk score

Existing mitigation 
strategies / controls 
weaknesses

Corporate Plan, consolidating the priorities of the Mayor, the MCA and the LEP as documented in the various strategic documents drafted, and associated business delivery plans developed. MCA has full influence over decision making to address the 
weakness. 
Full review of HR policies and practices, new job evaluation approach, corporate values and behaviours, a new approach to objectives and job chats (reviews), a new induction and training and development process. MCA has full influence over decision 
making to address the weakness. 

Approval of an approach to establish Collaboration Teams (policy or programme focused) to increase the momentum and focus for new areas of activity.

Key
1 - Immaterial
2 - Minor
3 - Moderate
4 - Major/Serious
5 - Extreme

Key
1 - Remote
2 - Unlikely
3 - Possible
4 - Probable
5 - Highly Probable

Key
1-4 Low
5-10 Medium
11-16 Medium-High
17-25 High

Appendix B

P
age 163



T
his page is intentionally left blank



DATE Mar 21
Risk Category

Probability
Mitigated probabilty 

Risk Description
3 2
3 2

3 3

3 2

5 5
5 5

5 4

2 2

4 3

3.111111111

Impact Mitigated impact

5 4
3 2
3 3
3 3

5 5
5 4
5 3

3.428571429

10.67

Status update Interim date completion date

Budget rebaselining and presentation of a revised budget to 
MCA.

Three budget revisions have now been presented to the MCA. These exercises have been used to address budget pressures and re-set the organisation with an appropriate level of activity. These 
exercises have allowed the MCA to release previously paused activity and invest in services Sep-20 Complete

Development of exit strategies from the current public-
subsidy model for the public transport network, and 
continued lobbying of government for sustained support to 
the network  during Covid disruption.

A Bus Steering Group has been formed from officers of SYPTE and the MCA and Chaired by the Chief Executive. An Interim Bus Project Director post has been created and recruited into to provide 
focus and leadership in this area. Additional resource has been made available for further capacity through the budget, whilst an earmakred reserve of £3m has been created solely for the purpose 
of managing change in this area.  A Light Rail Recovery Plan has been submitted to government whilst a further earmarked reserve has been created to help manage the transition from the current 
concessionary arrangements. Oct-20 Ongoing

Sustainable funding review of the MCA Executive to be 
undertaken as part of Gainshare strategy discussions

A budget for the new financial year has been proposed to the MCA. These proposals do not contain any proposals around the funding of the MCA Executive from gainshare resource in the near-
term. The costs of the Executive have, instead, been met from other funding services. Dec-20 Mar-21

Development of the Mass-Transit Renewal FBC to determine 
an approach to local contributions.

Work on a Mass Transit FBC will commence on completion and approval of the OBC. Further OBC work is required to take account of new post-pandemic patronage forecasts.
Sep-20 Sep-21

Risk / Mitigation Owner Gareth Sutton

Action Plan

Overall/average mitigated impact score

UPDATED A review of reserves and provisions has been undertaken to ensure that the Group holds a prudent total quantum of reserves, and that those reseverves are directed to known risks. A complete re-set of reserves is proposed in the new Reserves Strategy, with a number of new 
earmarked reserves created.
Strong internal controls around forecasting and commissioning allows the MCA to control its financial commitments.

The MCA has introduced a cycle of Budget Revisions throughout the year to re-test expenditure and income assumptions, readopting budgets every quarter

Existing mitigation 
strategies / controls for 
the risk category

UPDATED A Bus Steering Group has been formed from officers across SYPTE and the MCA and led by the Chief Executive to identify a route out of the current arrangements. An interim Bus Project Director has been appointed to provide clear focus and leadership on the task. 
A financial strategy for the new year has been adopted including holding the transport levy and commiting more reserves to Covid resilience
UPDATED Signfiicant progress has been made with Members around the deployment of Y1-2 gainshare monies and the development of longer-term aspriations for the development of a South Yorkshire investment strategy
The MCA Group is engaging with local and government partners in the development of the Mass Transit full business case.

UPDATEDThe MCA Group has been active in engaging with and corralling support from other MCAs to lobby government for continued public transport support during Covid disruption. A Light Rail Recovery Plan has been submitted to government.

UPDATED The MCA has completed its first Group wide integrated Budget and Business Planning exercise, which has allowed for better integrtaion of Group wide shared services, and the alignment of Group wide resource to Group wide objectives

UPDATED Proposals to address weaknesses around Group wide asset management functions have been adopted through the Business Plan and will be resourced through the Budget

Mitigated/Residual risk score

Existing mitigation 
strategies / controls 
weaknesses

Short term government funding horizons are inhibiting longer-term planning
There are limited means for the MCA Group to actively intervene in the public transport market to prime demand and redress falling patronage.
There are limited means to manage major investment projects such as the Mass Transit Renewals scheme beyond central government support, and further limited means to manage local contributions without the support of local levy-paying partners.

The MCA Group lacks the resources and powers to manage mass disruption – such as that arising from Covid – on the public transport network, and is reliant on central government support. 
Government may require regulatory change around bus services as a preconditon of further funding support. This may expose the MCA to longer-term cost and risk.

5 Systemic loss of commercial viability in the South Yorkshire transport network due to patronage reductions, leading to pressure for greater public subsidy

Budget and Financial Management

1 Failure across the MCA Group to create, maintain and implement an effective strategic and operational approach to budgetary, financial and asset management could mean poor financial management accountability, poor transparency and failure to achieve 
intended outcomes 
2 Loss of income and higher reactive expenditure as a result of COVID-19, leading to significant budgetary pressures to resource the MCA Executive and to support the delivery of the programmes and outcomes 
3 Ending of some major funding streams including Local Growth Fund, Mayoral Capacity Fund, Integrated Transport Block, Active Travel, without plans for successor funding, leading to a significant shortfall in income to support priorities and the MCA Executive

4 An inconsistent approach to asset management across the MCA Group and landlord functions leads to sub-optimal performance, tenant disatisfaction, and infefficient reactive expenditure

6 Re-franchising of the Supertram mass-transit light-rail system in 2024 exposes the Group to commercial risk that it is has previously been shielded from

Overall/average mitigated probability score

Potential Impact / 
Consequence if risk 
materialises

1 The financial stability of the MCA Executive is compromised as reserves are deployed on an unsustainable basis

3 The ability of the MCA Group to resource activity beyond immediate priorities is prejudiced
4 The MCA’s ability to adequately control its activity through appropriate staffing levels is compromised
5 The mass-transit renewals project stalls

6 NEW The MCA seeks greater unplanned contributions from local partners or there are service reductions 
7 Reputational damage to the Mayor and the MCA and the Management Board of the MCA Executive

7 The MCA fails to find the local contribution required to attract central government support for the mass-transit renewals scheme, with implications on the ability to refranchise the light-rail system and significant ongoing issues as ageing infrastructure 
becomes inefficient

8 No clear consensus on the use of the devolution financial flexibilities and for the use of gainshare, leading to risk averse behaviour could mean failure to maximise the potential to invest in priorities

2 NEW The MCA is exposed to unplanned and reactive expenditure 

9 NEW Changes to the regulatory environment around Bus services leads to a further change management exercise, greater capacity pressures, and a potential risk shift from government to local bodies

Key
1 - Immaterial
2 - Minor
3 - Moderate
4 - Major/Serious
5 - Extreme

Key
1 - Remote
2 - Unlikely
3 - Possible
4 - Probable
5 - Highly Probable

Appendix C

P
age 165



T
his page is intentionally left blank



DATE Mar 21

Risk Category

Probability
Mitigated 
probabilty 

Risk Description
4 3

4 3

3 2

5 3 change

4 3

5 4

4 2

2.85714286

Impact Mitigated impact

4 3

4 3
5 4
4 3

4 3

3.2

9.14

Status update Interim date completion date

Task and Finish Group of MCA Executive and LA Economic 
Development and Transport Teams to be established to 
consider systems weaknesses (capacity, capability and 
resources) leading to an options proposal for Members

A programme of work led by the Deputy CEX and CEX of DMBC have started a programme of work to review all aspects of the pinch points in the system leading 
to a paper to MCA. The task group has met on 3 occasions with 3 additional sessions with LA CEX. Following completion of the initial phase work to conclude the 
options for Members is underway and revised interim and completion dates for this phase are being agreed

Oct-20 Ongoing
Roll out of Better Business Training to all MCA Executive and 
external Scheme Promotors, subject to budget constraints

This has not started due to awaiting resources following the Government publication of the revised Green Book. We are building budget for this training roll out 
into the Business Plan for 21/22. Any slippage of the development of training resources will be monitored in case there is a need for a local solution to be 
developed Dec-20 Apr-21

The resourcing, design, and implementation of a Project 
Feasibility Fund

Approval for the creation of such a Fund is sought in the 2021/22 budget report, with a recommendation that a further report is taken to the June Board setting 
out proposals for the operationalisation of it

Jul-21 Jul-21
Implementation of Programme Management System 
concluded

The procurement of the system has concluded and is now in the implementation phase. The timescales have slipped and the go-live date is now April 2021. The 
reason for the slippage was to build in localised changes and developments which have taken additional team resource. Sep-20 Mar-21

Risk / Mitigation Owner Gareth Sutton

4 Scale and complexity of work to implement the Bus Review 7 Point Plan, requiring expertise and resources beyond those that are available could mean a failure to effect the desired changes and deliver the desired SY 
transport network. 

Programme Management

1 The number and diversity of new programmes and government funding, each with its own specific complexities, exacerbate the current limitations in the system (MCA Executive and Partners) to respond to bidding rounds 
to secure resources for programmes to meet Mayor, MCA and LEP priorities.
2 The number and diversity of new programmes exacerbate the current limitations in the system (MCA Executive and Partners) in terms of capacity and capability to develop and deliver well formed programmes and 
projects that meet MCA / LEP objectives.
3 Pace of change and diversity of assurance requirements for different funds requires a range of technical assurance expertise and could mean weaknesses in recommendations made to decision makers.

5 Scale and complexity of the devolution of the Adult Education Budget, with limited capacity and resources results in a poorly developed and executed programme.

6 Scale and complexity of work to deliver the Transforming Cities Funding, to the time limits set by Government, exacerbates the limitations in capacity and capability of transport teams to deliver the scale of the 
programme.
7 Failure to collate performance and investment data and risk assessments, adequately analyse and transparently report on performance and benefit realisation outcomes and risks.

Overall/average mitigated probability score

Potential Impact / 
Consequence if risk 
materialises

1 a reduced level of grant income awarded to the MCA or LEP.
2 a lack of investment in SY to deliver the locally agreed interventions leading to an over reliance on national programmes with minimal influence.

3 public transport services patronage continues to decline resulting in loss of income and failure to meet the priorities of the bus review and the ambition to mitigate climate change.
4 destabilisation of the FE Sector and problems in provision for adults.
5 reputational damage, as a result of poor performance or failure to mitigate risks, to the Mayor and the MCA and the Management Board of the MCA Exec.

Overall/average mitigated impact score

Existing mitigation 
strategies / controls for 
the risk category

Development programme leading to trained employees with MSP / Prince 2, Better Business Case or Risk Champion training in place and regularly reviewed
Appraisal Models developed and subject to peer review by relvant government departments
The Assurance and Accountability Framework establishes all processes for the development of business cases, assurance and any post approval change requests and sets out decision making 
All schemes report quarterly on milestones, risks. The Programme and Performance Unit summarise information and escalate issues to the Managament Board and to the Thematic Boards and LEP / MCA. 
Commissioned national AEB expert to lead the devolution of AEB programme, with recent experience of heading arrangements in other devolved administrations

DCEX appointed to lead programme of MCA / PTE Integration

The creation of a Project Feasibility Fund to resource the early stage development of schemes on a sustainable basis has been recommended to members as part of the Budget for FY 2021/22

The procurement of an independent expert to review Business Processes and identify opportunities for improvement

Action Plan

Mitigated/Residual risk score

Existing mitigation 
strategies / controls 
weaknesses

Frequency of changes to government funding streams, often launched without guidance and the retrospective application of rules, hampers the ability to provide clarity and to update processes and implement training. MCA / LEP has limited influence 
to address the weakness.

Quality of programme information from Scheme Promotors is not always accurate and therefore milestone and performance reporting makes it difficult to adequately plan and execute mitigation strategies. MCA has influence to address the 
weakness.
All programme management information is currently processed manually via spreadsheets increasing the potential for errors. MCA has influence to address the weakness.

Key
1 - Immaterial
2 - Minor
3 - Moderate
4 - Major/Serious
5 - Extreme

Key
1 - Remote
2 - Unlikely
3 - Possible
4 - Probable
5 - Highly Probable

Key
1-4 Low
5-10 Medium
11-16 Medium-High
17-25 High

Appendix D

P
age 167



T
his page is intentionally left blank



DATE Mar 21

Risk Category

Probability
Mitigated
probabilty 

Risk Description 2 1

3 2

3 2
3 2

4 3

2 1

3 2

3 2
3 2

1.88888889

Impact Mitigated impact

3 2
3 2
3 2
4 3
4 3
3 2

2.33333333

4.41

Status update Interim date completion date

Roll out of new CPR rules and processes and development of a MCA Exec 
wide training programme. 

CPR Rules were approved by the MCA in November. Training to be rolled out appropriately.
Sep-20 Jan-21

Develop and implement a system of monitoring breaches in application of 
processes especially in procurement. 

In progress

Sep-20 Oct-20
Agree the process for the Mayoral Remuneration Panel. Process agreed. Final report of Remuneration Panel scheduled for MCA meeting Jan 21. COMPLETE Sep-20 Oct-20
Create, implement and monitor an operational governance improvement 
plan with specific actions and officer accountabilities specified. 

In progress

Sep-20 Oct-20
Agree a revised governance model linked to newly constituted Thematic 
Boards, with options to vary delegation levels considered.

Complete

Sep-20 Sep-20
Commission capacity, implement and seek assurances with regard to the 
data management and IT systems work for the devolution of AEB.

In progress

Sep-20 Jul-21
Recruitment of resource to deliver 2022 Election Budget agreed

Jul-20 Nov-21
Recruit to post agreed in Business Plan 20/21 for Information Governance 
to address lack of resource for data management.

Budget agreed

Jul-21 Oct-21

Risk / Mitigation Owner Steve Davenport

Lessons learnt from 2018 Mayoral election can inform planning and delivery. Budget agreed. Timely start to process.

Lack of resource with data management experience.  Budget agreed for 21/22 to address this weakness.
Lack of capacity and capability in the IT team to lead on the complex work as a result of the devolution of AEB. MCA has influence to address the weakness.

Action Plan

Overall/average mitigated impact score

Existing mitigation 
strategies / controls for 
the risk category

Deputy Chief Executive responsible for governance improvement activity across the MCA Executive and LEP.
Annual review of the Constitution, Financial Regulations, Contract Procedure Rules, Assurance and Accountability Framework and LEP Board Policies. 
Fundamental review of CPRs and development of new procurement processes in year. 
OSC and ASC scrutinise policies, processes, decisions. Members have informal briefing sessions with CEX and Senior Officers to increase the effectiveness of the scrutiny process.
HR Policies are reviewed and updated to ensure legislative compliance.
IT Security systems and GDPR Action Plan is in place.

Mitigated/Residual risk score

Existing mitigation 
strategies / controls 
weaknesses

4 Bottle-necks in decision making.
5 Increased numbers of FOIs.

8 Failure to create and implement an effective decision making framework for the MCA and LEP via a new structure for Thematic Boards, with delegation levels agreed could mean a lack of efficiency in policy development, oversight and decision making.

9 Failure to create, implement and monitor an effective information asset and GDPR management approach to manage personal data following the devolution of AEB could mean increased probability of data breaches.

6 Reputational damage to the Mayor and the MCA and the Management Board of the MCA Executive.

NEW 10 - Lack of sufficient resources and expertise to undertake 2022 Mayoral Election

Lack of an organisation wide training programme for all officers in the requirements of new CPR and procurement process, which makes clear the officer obligations and consequences for non-compliance. MCA has influence to address the weakness.

4 Failure to create, implement and monitor an effective approach to ensuring legislative, regulatory and statutory compliance across the organisation. 

Governance and Compliance Management

1 Failure to create, implement and monitor an effective strategic and operational approach to governance improvement across the MCA Group and for the LEP.
2 Failure to implement and monitor an effective approach to the publication of up to date relevant information on procurement, contracts, projects, policy documents and meeting papers could mean a lack of transparency.

3 Failure to effectively identify and plan for the integration of the PTE with the MCA as a consequence of the Bus Review leading to weaknesses in governance and compliance issues as the PTE operation is required to comply with the legislation governing MCA.

There is no operational Governance Improvement Plan which specifies in detail the required actions and which officers are accountable for implementing actions, this results in weaknesses in transparency of information. MCA has influence to address the weakness.

5 Lack of specialist procurement and commercial expertise and weaknesses in the capability of officers to effectively procure goods and services could mean a failure to secure best value and cost overruns as a result of poorly defined specifications.

6 CLOSED Failure to agree and implement a Mayoral Remuneration Panel and to get agreement to the outcome. 
7 Failure to comply with the requirements of the LEP Review, particularly ensuring compliance with the gender diversity KPI

Overall/average mitigated probability score

Potential Impact / 
Consequence if risk 
materialises

1 Poor assessment of governance improvement and compliance by Internal and External Audit and Government as part of the Annual Performance Review of LEPs.
2 Potential Litigation and Financial Penalties.
3 Potential data breach and penalties.

Key
1-4 Low
5-10 Medium
11-16 Medium-High
17-25 High

Key
1 - Remote
2 - Unlikely
3 - Possible
4 - Probable
5 - Highly Probable

Key
1 - Immaterial
2 - Minor
3 - Moderate
4 - Major/Serious
5 - Extreme

Appendix E

P
age 169



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

 

1. Introduction 

 1.1 Regulation 6(1)(a) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires an authority to 
conduct a review, at least once in a year, of the effectiveness of its systems of internal 
control and include a statement reporting on the review with any published Statement of 
Accounts.  

The scope of the Mayoral Combined Authority’s (MCA’s) governance and internal control 
framework spans the whole of the organisation’s activities and is described in the local 
1Code of Corporate Governance. This Code stands as the overall statement of the MCA 
and Local Enterprise Partnership’s (LEP’s) corporate governance principles and 
commitment. The Code demonstrates that the MCA and LEP’s governance arrangements 
comply with the core and sub-principles contained in CIPFA’s “Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government Framework”. 

 

1 https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/SCR-Code-of-Corporate-Governance20-21Final.pdf  

Purpose of Report 
This paper reports the initial findings of the Annual Governance Review which has been carried out in 
line with CIPFA guidance note ‘Application of the Good Governance Framework 2020/21’. It also 
provides an update on the 20/21 Governance Improvement Plan. 

Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 

Under the Freedom of Information Act this paper and any appendices will be made available under the 
Mayoral Combined Authority Publication Scheme. This scheme commits the Authority to make 
information about how decisions are made available to the public as part of its normal business 
activities. 

Recommendations 

The Committee is asked: 

• to note the initial findings of the Annual Governance Review and identify any issues. 
• note the progress of the 20/21 Governance Improvement Plan. 

Audit and Standards Committee 

18th March 2021 

Annual Governance Review – initial findings 

Page 171

Agenda Item 17

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/SCR-Code-of-Corporate-Governance20-21Final.pdf


 

 1.2 
 
This paper reports the initial findings of the Annual Governance Review which has been 
carried out in line with the CIPFA guidance note ‘Application of the Good Governance 
Framework 2020/21’. This guidance note recommends that the impact of the Covid-19 
pandemic should be taken into account when conducting the annual review for 2020/21. 
In particular, it recommends that the review should identify the impact of the pandemic on 
governance arrangements in place and, changes to existing arrangements that have 
resulted from the pandemic.  

2. Proposal and justification  

 2.1 A summary of the outcome of this assessment is outlined in appendix A.  

 2.2 In addition, this paper provides an update on the progress of the 20/21 Governance 
Improvement Plan (Appendix B). 

 2.3 Next steps 

An additional report on the findings of the Annual Governance Review will be provided 
alongside a draft Annual Governance Statement to the Committee in June. 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 

 3.1 Other approaches to the conducting the Governance Review and completing the AGS 
could include commissioning an external audit or undertaking a comprehensive series of 
questionnaires with partners, stakeholders and key officers and having these 
independently analysed. These approaches have been discounted by Statutory Officers 
as the preferred approach, as they risk removing the detailed self-assessment process 
which supports the governance culture and risk management approach that has been 
adopted. However Internal Audit, External Audit, Government Compliance (through the 
Annual Performance Review) and any independent reviews are all used to triangulate the 
self-assessment approach.  

4. Implications 

 4.1 
 
Financial 

The outcome of the annual governance review will be published in the Annual 
Governance Statement as part of the Authority’s statutory accounts. It is important that 
the review assesses the adequacy of the Authority’s internal financial controls as per the 
Financial Regulations. Failure to do so could result in a qualified value for money opinion 
issued by the external auditor, thus undermining confidence in the Authority’s stewardship 
of public funding. 

Furthermore, the risk associated with poor governance practice could result in poor 
financial decision making and, in consideration of Local Growth Fund and other monies 
distributed from central government, could result in material financial penalties including 
the withholding or reduction in grant received.  

 4.2 Legal 

Failure to comply with the principles of good governance ultimately could lead to and 
External Audit opinion qualification. Additionally, in the context of LEP governance could 
result in MHCLG intervention.  
 

Page 172



 

 4.3 Risk Management 
 
Risk management is an important and integral part of good governance. SCR’s strategic 
risk management approach contributes to identifying ways in which to strengthen 
governance arrangements. 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  
 
There are no equality, diversity or social inclusion issues in relation to this update. 

5. 
 
Communications 

 5.1 The activity described in this paper is internally focussed however it will culminate in the 
publication of the Annual Governance Statement alongside the Authority’s accounts. 

6. Appendices/Annexes 

 6.1  Appendix A – Summary of Code of Corporate Governance commitments impacted by the 
Covid-19 Pandemic 

Appendix B – Progress Update – 20/21 Governance Improvement Plan 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR  Claire James 
POST  Senior Governance & Compliance Officer 

Officer responsible Ruth Adams 
Organisation Sheffield City Region 

Email ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk  
Telephone 0114 220 3400 

 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad 
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
Other sources and references: n/a 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 173

mailto:ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Appendix A 
 
Summary of Code of Corporate Governance commitments impacted by the Covid-19 
Pandemic    
 
In order to fulfil the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Good Governance Framework a number of 
commitments are set out in the MCA’s Code of Corporate Governance.  
 
The table below indicates the commitments under each principle that have been affected by the 
Covid-19 pandemic and outlines the impact (positive or negative). Not all commitments have been 
affected and are therefore not included here.  
 

Principle B - ‘Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement’ 

Commitment affected Impact 

Holding MCA meetings in 
public. 
 

At the onset of the first national lockdown in March 2020 
the MCA only cancelled one of its formal meetings (23rd 
March) and quickly put arrangements in place to conduct 
virtual meetings as soon as legislation would allow. Audit 
and Standards Committee and Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meetings were paused for one cycle and 
returned to the original schedule of meetings from summer 
2020 onwards. All meetings were webcast and the most 
recent meeting of the MCA in January 2021 welcomed a 
member of the public who had submitted a question. 
Webcast viewing figures have increased steadily over the 
last 12 months. 

Establishing clear channels of 
communication and effective 
engagement with all 
stakeholders, encouraging 
consultation and collaboration. 
 

Equipping and mobilising the organisation to virtual 
meetings has supported continued effective stakeholder 
engagement and consultation during the pandemic.  
During the early stages of the pandemic additional 
meetings were scheduled with specific groups to ensure 
clear channels of communication including MCA and PTE 
Audit Committee Chairs and Vice Chairs, Local Authority 
Chief Executives, Combined Authority Finance Directors. 
The MCA has also played a key role in convening working 
groups to address the early issues around PPE availability 
and the LEP in ensuring business representation on key 
issues. 

Consulting appropriately to 
determine effective interventions 
and courses of action. 

Consultation on the Strategic Economic Plan continued as 
planned, as well as consultation on the development of the 
Renewal Action Plan.  

 

Principle C - ‘Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and 
environmental benefits’ 

Commitment affected Impact 

Have in place a formal 
statement that describes the 
vision for the City Region and 
sets out purpose and intended 
outcomes of the MCA and LEP. 

As referenced above, despite the challenges 
circumstances the Strategic Economic Plan was approved 
by the MCA in January. Alongside this, the Renewal Action 
Plan has been developed and approved in order to mitigate 
the worst effects of the Covid crisis. 

Page 175



 

 
 

Principle D - ‘Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of 
the intended outcomes’ 

Commitment affected Impact 

To ensure, as appropriate, that 
the views of stakeholders are 
considered in the decision-
making process. 

Extensive SEP and RAP consultations undertaken 
Private Sector lead sessions with major private sector 
stakeholders to understand the impact of the pandemic on 
business and the economy and to inform the development 
of the Renewal Action Plan 

To ensure that decision making 
arrangements are robust but 
flexible enough to adapt to 
changing circumstances. 

In addition to the move to virtual meetings, urgency 
provisions in the constitution were exercised in the early 
part of the pandemic to ensure the organisation could 
continue to operate effectively. 
 

Ensures commissioned 
schemes/investments made are 
measured against defined 
outcomes and that they 
represent the best use of 
resources and value for money. 

In the absence of site visit to monitor project delivery, 
contract monitoring processes adapted to include 
submission of images at agreed gateways. 

Engages with internal and 
external stakeholders in 
determining how courses of 
action should be planned and 
delivered. 

Examples include: 

 In the first national lockdown weekly SY CEX 
meetings were convened 

 2 Weekly Business Development Managers 
Meetings were convened to focus on the delivery of 
support programmes 

 Informal monthly meetings schedule with the Chairs 
and Vice-chair of PTE and MCA Audit Committees 

 
 

Principle E - ‘Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership 
and the individuals within it’ 

Commitment affected Impact 

Ensures a clear protocol exists 
to support a constructive 
working relationship between 
Members and Officers and 
seeks to develop partnerships 
and collaboration where most 
value can be added. 

A protocol has been developed during the last 12 months 
to support the political leadership in the thematic areas of 
MCA priorities. 

Holds staff to account through 
regular performance reviews 
which take account of training or 
development needs 

The timing of the roll out of performance reviews has been 
re-scheduled, to ensure the system is consistent across 
the MCA Exec and PTE. 

Ensures arrangements are in 
place to maintain the health and 
wellbeing of the workforce and 
support individuals in 
maintaining their own physical 
and mental wellbeing. 

Recognising the impact of the pandemic and adapted 
working on the health and wellbeing of the workforce a 
number of additional arrangements were introduced during 
the last year including additional all staff briefings, daily 
and then weekly bulletins, staff surveys, wellbeing 
sessions, sign posting to additional services (counselling 
etc), the introduction of mental health first aiders, DSE 
assessments 

 

Page 176



 

Principle F - ‘Managing risk and performance through robust internal control and 
strong public financial management’ 

Commitment affected Impact 

An effective Audit and 
Standards Committee who lead 
on ensuring robust risk 
management arrangements are 
in place and are evaluated 
regularly. 

In response to internal audit recommendations refreshed 
and updated risk management arrangements were 
endorsed by the ASC and approved by the MCA. Work is 
ongoing to embed new processes. 

To review the effectiveness of 
the decision-making framework, 
including delegation 
arrangements regularly. 

Increase in delegation to £200k from £100k to in order to 
enable officers to make corporate decisions affecting the 
running of the Executive organisation. 

Has in place robust 
arrangements for internal and 
external audit to provide 
assurance over the 
effectiveness of systems of 
internal control. 

Whilst the Internal Audit Plan has been impacted by the 
ongoing situation, sufficient audit activity has been 
undertaken in year to enable a Head of Audit opinion to be 
given. 
Disruption and other priorities caused by the lockdown has 
resulted in some target dates for internal audit actions 
slipping. 
Despite disruption to the timetable the external audit was 
completed, and the accounts submitted by the statutory 
deadline. 

Has in place a properly 
resourced and skilled Finance 
team with embedded processes 
compliant with best practice. 

A dedicated, full time S73 joined the organisation in June 
2020. 
Implementation of new Finance system which has enabled 
the MCA to tailor its system based control to its own 
operating environment, improve the provision of 
management information, and deliver operating efficiencies 
through the use of one Group wide platform. 

Ensures compliance with 
relevant laws and regulations, 
internal policies and procedures 
and that all expenditure is 
lawful. 

Changes required by new procurement law have been 
implemented. 
Adaptation of internal processes to remote working 
including electronic signatures and paperless sign off 
ensuring adequate internal control and segregation of 
duties. 
 

Financial management supports 
both long terms achievement of 
outcomes and short-term 
financial and operational 
performance 

Significant amount of work has been undertaken to 
manage and administer emergency funding from 
Government, as well as work to keep budgets under review 
to ensure they are strategy and priority led and reserves 
used appropriately. 
 

 

Principle G - ‘Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit, to 
deliver effective accountability’ 

Commitment affected Impact 

Holds all MCA meetings in 
public, unless there are good 
reasons to exclude the press 
and public. 

See above 

Reviews the effectiveness of its 
decision-making framework 

See above 

Page 177



 

including delegation 
arrangements 

Welcomes peer challenge, 
reviews and inspections from 
regulatory bodies 

MHCLG’s annual performance review of the LEP 
undertaken virtually. CfGS LEP Peer Review in progress 
during March. 

 

 

Page 178



Appendix B 

 

No. Focus for 2020/21 
 

Lead Milestones/ 
Deadline 

Status Update – as at March 2021 RAG 
Rating 

 Strategic     

1 Adoption of the SEP and RAP 
and the development of agreed 
implementation plans for the SEP 
and the RAP 

Head of Paid 
Service / Deputy 
CEX 

Dec 20 The RAP was adopted by the MCA July 2020. 
A final version of the SEP approved by the LEP on 14th 
January and to the MCA on 25th January. These documents 
have informed the Corporate and Business Plan priorities 
for 21/22 

 

2 Implementation Bus Review 
recommendations including 
progressing the full integration of 
the PTE into the MCA 

Head of Paid 
Service / Deputy 
CEX 

Mar 21 and 
beyond 

A high-level project plan was approved by the MCA in 
September 2020, work continues to negotiate with 
Government on a date for the legal order. An independent 
strategic partner has been appointed to ensure the 
integration process is undertaken effectively and with an 
eye to risk mitigation. 

 

3 Implementation of new Thematic 
Board arrangements 

Head of Paid 
Service / Monitoring 
Officer 

Oct 20 The new Thematic Boards have been operational since 
October 2020. 

 

4 Continuation of negotiation and 
implementation of Devolution 
agreement 

Head of Paid 
Service 

Ongoing Work is underway to implement a number of aspects of the 
Devolution Deal e.g. Implementing the transfer of the Adult 
Education Budget (formal transfer of responsibility Aug 21) 
and on the Investment Strategy for Gainshare, due to be 
adopted by the MCA 22nd March 2021. 

 

 Operational     

5 Embedding risk management 
processes 

Deputy Chief 
Executive 

Mar 21 The revised Risk Management Policy and Process was 
endorsed by the Audit and Standards Committee in 
October 2020 and approved by the MCA in November. Risk 
Management has been embedded into the 2021/22 
Business Planning process and is being embedded in to 
the new Programme Management System which is due to 
go live w/c 22nd March.  

 

6 Introduction of new CPRs and a 
Social Value Policy 

S73 Officer Jan 21 New Contract Procurement Rules were approved by the 
MCA in November, a new Head of Procurement is due to 
take up a new position in April 21 and full training will be 
rolled out across the Executive Team.  

 

7 Review and implementation of 
new corporate induction 

Deputy Chief 
Executive 

Jan 21 Content for the corporate induction was reviewed and 
largely finalised in December. Management Board reviewed 
the content in January and an implementation plan for 
adopting the new induction process has been developed.  
Full roll out is scheduled by the end of Q4 (noting the roll 

 

P
age 179



out will be virtual due to new starters working remotely) 

8 Refresh Assurance Framework to 
take account of devolution 

Deputy Chief 
Executive 

Dec 20 A thorough review of the Assurance Framework has been 
undertaken and will be considered by the LEP on 11th 
March and the MCA on 22nd March ahead of submission to 
Government.  

 

9 Refresh Evaluation Strategy to 
take account of devolution and 
implement programme level 
evaluations for LGF and TCF 

Deputy Chief 
Executive 

Feb 21 The Framework will be considered by the LEP on 11th 
March and the MCA on 22nd March, ahead of submission to 
Government. 

 

 Delivery     

10 Embed cross organisational 
Collaboration Teams to improve 
the effectiveness of major 
programme delivery 

Deputy Chief 
Executive 

Mar 21 Initial work to progress formalised cross team working was 
paused due to multiple lockdowns. This work has been 
considered as part of the Corporate and Business Planning 
work with a view to reintroducing this in 21/22. 

 

11 Full review of the lifecycle of 
programme development and 
delivery to inform continual 
improvements 

Deputy Chief 
Executive 

Mar 21 Work, jointly sponsored by the Deputy Chief Executive and 
CEX of DMBC (on behalf of SY LA) has commenced to do 
a full review, leading to a report to Members on systems. 
An interim programme improvement manager has been 
appointed and is working within the MCA on continual 
improvement approaches.   
 
Appointment of a partners to undertake Business Process 
Re-engineering on processes between LA and MCA has 
been agreed by CEXs and is in the appointment stage, due 
to conclude appointment this financial year and undertake 
work and reporting Q1 21/22.  
 

 

 

 

P
age 180



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

The Audit and Standards Committee is responsible for overseeing and reviewing the Authority’s 
internal audit strategy, and receiving reports, as appropriate, from the Internal Auditor. This report 
presents an update on the implementation of the recommendations made by Internal Audit. 

Freedom of Information & Section 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 

Under the Freedom of Information Act this paper and any appendices will be made available under the 
Mayoral Combined Authority Publication Scheme. This scheme commits the Authority to make 
information about how decisions are made available to the public as part of its normal business 
activities. 

Recommendations 

Members are asked to review the progress of the implementation of internal audit recommendations. 

AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

18th March 2021 

Internal Audit Recommendations Tracker Report  

Page 181

Agenda Item 18



This page is intentionally left blank



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Recommendation Tracker March 2021

Commercial in confidence

Internal Audit 

Recommendation Tracker

Sheffield City Region Mayoral Combined Authority

March 2021

P
age 183



Recommendations due for implementation

An analysis of the overdue recommendations is show n below . The five recommendations 

are all low  risk. 

Overdue recommendation by department

An analysis of the overdue recommendations by SMT ow ner is show n below . On the 

remaining pages of this report, w e provide the responses provided by management in 

respect of progress w ith the implementation of actions.

Introduction & headlines
Purpose

This document provides an overview  of the status of internal audit recommendations.

Respective responsibilities

We follow  up recommendations and report progress to the Audit Committee. It is the 

responsibility of management to implement audit recommendations on time and provide 

updates for the Action Tracker.

Analysis of outstanding recommendations

As at the date of f inalising this report, there w ere f ive overdue recommendations agreed 

w ith management w hich remain outstanding. Management confirmed tw o actions have 

been implemented since the last Audit Committee. Six recommendations are not yet due. 

The analysis on page three of this report show s the number of days that have passed from 

the original agreed implementation dates. 

We acknow ledge that progress w ith implementation may have been impacted due to the 

disruptions of COVID-19 and the Authority may w ish to consider agreeing revised 

implementation dates.

We have summarised below  the current status of all outstanding recommendations as at 

10th March 2021.  

1

4

0

1

2

3

4

Deputy Chief Executive Monitoring Officer

Low Medium High

2

5

4

2

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Implemented Overdue Not Due

Low Medium High

6

5

5

Not yet due Overdue High Medium Low risk

P
age 184



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Recommendation Tracker March 2021

Commercial in confidence

3

Ageing of overdue recommendations –number of days since original due date

0 1 2 3 4

> 360 Days

180 - 360

90 - 180

30 - 90

0 - 30

D
a
y
s
 F

ro
m

 O
ri
g
in

a
l 

D
u
e
 D

a
te

Number of overdue recommendations

P
age 185



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Recommendation Tracker March 2021

Commercial in confidence

4

Audit area

Risk 

rating

Agreed management 

action

Responsible 

officer SMT Owner Due Date

Days 

from 

original 

due date Status Management comment

GDPR

(2019/20) 

Low Review  the w ay in w hich the 

Information Asset Register 

is used across both 

organisations and look for 

an opportunity to 

standardise on a more 

consistent, comprehensive 

version that includes all key 

f ields that should be tracked 

for both organisations in line 

w ith the requirements of 

GDPR/DPA2018.

Claire James,

Senior 

Governance 

and 

Compliance 

Officer (MCA)

& Andy 

Dickinson,

Head of 

Information 

Technology 

(PTE) 

Steve 

Davenport, 

Monitoring 

Officer

Original:

01/12/20

89 In Progress The MCA asset register has now  been 

replicated for use in SYPTE to ensure 

both organisations are using the same 

fields and recording the same information 

including security classif ications. SYPTE 

Information Asset Ow ners are review ing 

and updating their registers.

HR is a Group resource and therefore the 

asset register is by default MCAs. All 

registers are overseen by one DPO. All 

asset registers w ill be review ed and 

consolidated as a result of the integration 

of the MCA and PTE.

Management have requested to revise 

the implementation date to 30/04/21

GDPR

(2019/20) 

Low Review  the w ay in w hich the 

Information Security 

Classif ications are being 

used across both 

organisations to support 

GDPR/DPA2018 

compliance to ensure that 

they are being used 

consistently, in line w ith 

Cabinet Office guidance on 

Government Security 

Classif ications, both from a 

classif ication and protection 

of data perspective.

Stephen 

Batey,

Director of 

Mayors Office 

Group (MCA)

& Andy 

Dickinson,

Head of 

Information 

Technology 

(PTE) &

Steve 

Davenport, 

Monitoring 

Officer

Original:

31/03/20

Revised:

31/12/20

334 In Progress The review  is now  part of IT and 

Governance business plans for 21/22. 

The decision to move to data 

classif ication w ill require a Board 

decision based on a cost benefit analysis 

given that automated classif ication of 

data w ill require an upgrade on the 

Microsoft licencing and not insignif icant 

resource dedicated to implementation.

Management have requested to revise 

the implementation date to 31/03/2022

Status of Overdue Recommendations.

P
age 186



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Recommendation Tracker March 2021

Commercial in confidence

5

Audit area

Risk 

rating

Agreed management 

action

Responsible 

officer SMT Owner Due Date

Days 

from 

original 

due date Status Management comment

GDPR

(2019/20) 

Low Review  the w ay 

GDPR/DPA2018 related risk 

is being managed across 

both organisations to look 

for w ays of implementing a 

more consistent, low er level 

process w hich identif ies and 

manages low er level risks 

and not higher level 

summary risk groupings.

Claire James,

Senior 

Governance 

and 

Compliance 

Officer (MCA)

& Andy 

Dickinson,

Head of 

Information 

Technology 

(PTE) 

Steve 

Davenport, 

Monitoring 

Officer

Original:

01/12/20

89 In Progress GDPR compliance and resourcing w ill be 

considered as part of the Governance 

w orkstream of the MCA/PTE merger. 

GDPR risk management w ill form part of 

this w ider piece of w ork.

Low er level GDPR risks developed to be 

added to risk registers of both 

organisations.

A revised implementation date has not 

been proposed.

GDPR

(2019/20)

Low The public facing w ebsites 

w ill be updated and a new  IT 

Policy w ill be implemented 

in April 2020.

Christine 

Marriott,

Scrutiny 

Officer 

Steve 

Davenport, 

Monitoring 

Officer

01/04/20 333 In Progress The new  IT Policy has been published on 

the w ebsite. It is still in draft form 

aw aiting union sign off.

A revised implementation date has not 

been proposed.

Status of Overdue Recommendations.

P
age 187



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Recommendation Tracker March 2021

Commercial in confidence

6

Audit area

Risk 

rating

Agreed management 

action

Responsible 

officer SMT Owner Due Date

Days 

from 

original 

due date Status Management comment

Risk 

Management

(2019/20)

Low The Authority to consider 

introducing a simple risk 

appetite matrix to be 

completed as part of the 

Board overview  reports to 

enable decisions to be made 

inconsideration and 

alignment w ith the 

Authority’s risk appetite

Claire James, 

Senior 

Governance 

and 

Compliance 

Officer

Ruth Adams,

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

31/12/20 59 In Progress A revised board paper template and 

guidance is under consideration and 

includes enhanced requirements around 

risk.

It is proposed to implement the use of the 

new  template from Q1 w ith the intention 

of it being in use by the MCA AGM in 

June. 

Management have requested to revise 

the implementation date to 30/05/21. 

Status of Overdue Recommendations.

P
age 188



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Recommendation Tracker March 2021

Commercial in confidence

7

Audit area

Risk 

rating

Agreed management 

action

Responsible 

officer SMT Owner Due Date

Days 

from 

original 

due date Status Management comment

Risk 

Management

(2019/20)

Medium Look at the frequency of 

reporting and develop a 

more comprehensive 

approach as strategic 

objectives are embedded.

Claire James, 

Senior 

Governance 

and 

Compliance 

Officer 

Ruth Adams,

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

31/03/21 N/A In Progress The new  Policy and Process outlines the 

reporting frequency. The format for 

reports is under development and 

evolving.

Public 

Engagement 

and 

Consultation

(2020/21)

Medium Develop a joint Consultation 

Policy and Procedures 

w hich brings together the 

issues raised by this audit.

Claire James, 

Senior 

Governance 

and 

Compliance 

Officer 

Stephen 

Batey, 

Director of 

Mayors 

Office Group 

31/12/21 N/A Not Yet Due No progress to date.

.

Public 

Engagement 

and 

Consultation

(2020/21)

Low Policy and procedures w ill 

be developed to include 

guidance on having an 

overarching consultation 

plan w hich sets out the 

governance arrangements 

including TOR for w orking 

groups. 

Claire James, 

Senior 

Governance 

and 

Compliance 

Officer 

Stephen 

Batey,

Director of 

Mayors 

Office Group 

31/12/21 N/A Not Yet Due No progress to date.

Public 

Engagement 

and 

Consultation

(2020/21)

Low A checklist, covering 

consultation principles in 

current government 

guidance w ill be included in 

the procedures..

Claire James, 

Senior 

Governance 

and 

Compliance 

Officer 

Stephen 

Batey,

Director of 

Mayors 

Office Group 

31/12/21 N/A Not Yet Due No progress to date.

Status of Recommendations Not Yet Due.

P
age 189



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Recommendation Tracker March 2021

Commercial in confidence

8

Audit area

Risk 

rating

Agreed management 

action

Responsible 

officer SMT Owner Due Date

Days 

from 

original 

due date Status Management comment

Public 

Engagement 

and 

Consultation

(2020/21)

Low Guidance on w hat key 

supporting documents are 

required to demonstrate 

compliance (including a 

f inancial breakdow n), w ill be 

set out in the Consultation 

Policy and Procedures.

Claire James, 

Senior 

Governance 

and 

Compliance 

Officer 

Stephen 

Batey,

Director of 

Mayors 

Office Group 

31/12/21 N/A Not Yet Due No progress to date.

Public 

Engagement 

and 

Consultation

(2020/21)

Low A process w ill be developed 

to include and regularly 

review  information on past 

and present consultations 

on the w ebsite.

Claire James, 

Senior 

Governance 

and 

Compliance 

Officer 

Stephen 

Batey,

Director of 

Mayors 

Office Group 

31/12/21 N/A Not Yet Due No progress to date.

Status of Recommendations Not Yet Due.

P
age 190



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Recommendation Tracker March 2021

Commercial in confidence

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 
firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 191



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

 

 

1. Introduction 

 1.1 Regulation and the MCA’s Constitution require that the MCA approve the adoption of an 
Annual Treasury Management Strategy (TMS). The MCA will consider the Strategy at 
their meeting on 22nd March. Ahead of this, the Audit and Standards Committee are 
asked to note the Strategy. 

2. Proposal and justification  
 2.1 The TMS sets the parameters within which the MCA will deliver its cash and debt 

management activities. The proposed TMS is appended to this report and includes an 
Investment Strategy and Prudential Indicators. Progress against this proposed strategy 
will be reported to the MCA at the mid-year point, and again at outturn. 

   
 2.2 In common with most other public sector bodies, the MCA’s approach to its Investment 

Strategy is governed by a hierarchy of considerations centred on protecting public 
funding. This hierarchy places a greater emphasis on the security and the liquidity of the 
MCA’s investments than it does on the yield generated from them.  

   
 2.2 This relatively conservative approach limits the MCA’s exposure to losses arising from 

counterparty default, but also limits the returns that can be generated from investing 
cash resource until it is required. 

   
 2.3 Noting the significant financial uncertainties prevailing in financial markets, the TMS 

proposes to maintain the current stance, limiting investments to the safest of 
counterparties.  
 

Purpose 

This report presents the draft Treasury Management Strategy for financial year 2021/22. 

Freedom of Information & Section 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 

Under the Freedom of Information Act this paper and any appendices will be made available under 
the Mayoral Combined Authority Publication Scheme. This scheme commits the Authority to make 
information about how decisions are made available to the public as part of its normal business 
activities. 
Recommendations 

The Audit and Standards Committee are asked to note the Treasury Management Strategy. 

Audit & Standards Committee  

18th March 2021 

Draft Treasury Management Strategy 

Page 193

Agenda Item 19



 
 2.4 With interest-rates forecast to remain at record lows for some time, it is likely that 

revenue generated from the MCA’s investment activity will remain lower than previously 
forecast. The impact of this is felt in the Group’s proposed revenue budgets, with 
depressed income returns impacting upon the scope of activity that can be funded. 

   
 2.5 The TMS also notes the intention to retire a further £8m of borrowing during the year, 

following the £53m repaid this year. The repayment of this borrowing reduces the cost of 
debt by c. £1.20m.  

   
 2.6 The ongoing retirement of legacy debt will reduce the overall burden of financing costs 

on the revenue budget and the transport levy. This trend is matched to the release of 
reserves from the Levy Reduction Reserve, meaning that when that reserve is 
exhausted the cost of debt will have fallen so significantly that the reserve subsidy can 
be withdrawn on a more sustainable basis. 
 

 2.7 Of note in the new financial year is the expectation that the MCA will accrue new powers 
to borrow for its non-local transport authority activity. The receipt of these powers is 
contingent on Parliament passing new legislation. It is expected that that process will 
begin in the summer, concluding in the Autumn.  
 

 2.7 Reflecting this, it should be noted that the TMS contains a proposal to increase the 
operational boundary and the authorised limit on debt the MCA can hold. Whilst at this 
stage there are no plans to undertake borrowing for new non-LTA activity in the new 
year, increasing the limits at this stage provides the MCA with the necessary headroom 
to initiate a programme of borrowing funded activity during the year should the need or 
opportunity arise. All investment decisions will be subject to the MCA’s revised 
Assurance Framework. 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 

 3.1 
 
This Strategy has been informed by the Group wide Business Planning processes. 

4. Implications 

 4.1 
 
Financial 
 
This is a financial report, the details of which are presented in the main body of the report 
and in the appendices. 

 4.2 Legal 
 
The MCA is obliged to set a Treasury Management Strategy. 

 4.3 Risk Management 
 
The Treasury Management Strategy will help mitigate risk across the Group. 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  
 
None 

5. 
 
Communications 

 5.1 None 

6. Appendices/Annexes 

 6.1  Appendix 1 – Treasury Management Strategy 

 Page 194



 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 
 

SHEFFIELD CITY REGION MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY  
 
ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2021/22 
 
Introduction  

The annual treasury management strategy is forward looking and seeks to ensure that: 

 The MCA’s overarching Borrowing strategy is appropriate in the context of the current 
economic climate  

 The MCA Group’s capital plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable (as measured via a 
series of prudential indicators); 

 Prudent charges are made to revenue for the repayment of debt by adopting a minimum 
Revenue provision (MRP) policy that is compliant with statutory MRP guidance 

 investments and borrowings are organised in accordance with the MCA’s risk appetite (as 
measured via a series of treasury indicators); and  

 The MCA Group’s investment strategy pays due regard to security (the management of risk 
and the protection of the principal sums invested) and liquidity (availability of cash to meet 
liabilities as they fall due) as first priorities and then what level of return (yield) can be obtained 
based on risk appetite and the contribution each investment activity makes. 

 
The annual treasury management strategy is set in the wider context of the MCA’s medium and longer 
term capital investment plans. At this stage, whilst business investment, capital infrastructure and 
transport programmes beyond 2021/22 are still being developed, the financial planning horizon has been 
limited to the three-year minimum specified by the Code based on existing commitments.  
 
In addition, the annual treasury management strategy sets out the MCA Group’s position on: 
 

 borrowing in advance of need; 
 debt rescheduling; and 
 use of external service providers. 

 
These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA Prudential Code, 
MHCLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code and MHCLG Investment Guidance. 
 
Proposed changes to CIPFA’s Prudential Code and Treasury Management Code are currently out to 
consultation with the focus on ensuring that: 
 

 risks associated with commercial property investment are properly addressed 
 treasury management staff and members receive adequate training to ensure that they have 

the necessary expertise, knowledge and skills to perform their duties 
 treasury activities pay due regard to Environmental, Social and Governance risks over the 

sums invested  
 
The impact of these changes will be reported back in the mid year report on treasury management.  
 
Treasury management reporting 
 
The annual treasury management strategy is the first of a minimum of three reports that will be reported 
in respect of 2021/22 treasury activity. As a minimum the two other reports will comprise: 
 

 a mid year report which will provide an update on treasury activity for the first 6 months of the 
2021/22 financial year, and   

Page 195



 

 

 an annual report which will report actual performance against the treasury management strategy 
after the end of the 2021/22 financial year   

 
In addition, should there be any material changes to the strategy or associated indicators these will be 

brought back for approval before being implemented.  

Recommendations 

Members are asked to: 

 Approve the annual treasury management strategy;  

 Approve the borrowing strategy set out in Section A of the annual treasury management 

strategy; 

 Approve the capital expenditure estimates and associated prudential indicators set out in Section 

B of the annual treasury management strategy; 

 Approve the minimum revenue provision policy set out in Section C of the annual treasury 

management strategy; 

 Approve the annual investment strategy set out in Section D of the annual treasury management 

strategy and to grant delegated authority to the Group Finance Director to develop it further by 

investigating options for diversification in consultation with the MCA’s external advisors and Audit 

and Standards Committee; 

 Grant delegated authority to the Group Finance Director in consultation with the Chief Executive 

to provide a financial guarantee in favour of the SCR Financial Interventions Holding company, 

and; 

 Support the intention to negotiate with HM Treasury and MHCLG to agree a borrowing cap for 

non transport functions.  

  

Page 196



 

 

Section A 
 
Borrowing Strategy  
 
The borrowing strategy currently relates solely to the transport functions of the MCA as, at present, the 
MCA has no borrowing powers in relation to its LEP functions.  
 
However, this position is likely to change during the course of 2021/22, to enable the MCA to borrow 
money for non-transport purposes, up to a Government agreed cap. These powers will be conferred by 
separate legislation following negotiation with HM Treasury and MHCLG on what level of cap is needed 
to meet the MCA’s strategic plans having regard to affordability, prudence and sustainability. 
 
The current borrowing strategy is to meet any borrowing need for the year internally from treasury 
investments rather than taking out external borrowing. This is in the expectation that the cost of new 
borrowing will continue to exceed likely investment returns. This remains likely to be the case despite the 
Government reducing PWLB rates on new loans by 1% under new lending arrangements which came 
into effect on 26 November 2020. This has reduced fixed term PWLB rates to between 1% and 2.3% 
currently. However, returns on investments are forecast to remain suppressed at 0.1% for relatively short 
term investments of three months duration up to and including 2023/24.  
 
In addition, the current strategy is to repay debt as it falls due rather than to refinance debt. This 
assumption has been built into the financial plans resulting in a projected fall in debt servicing costs as 
debt is repaid. 
 
The strategy also seeks to take the opportunity to reschedule existing debt where this will lead to an 
overall saving. However, for the reasons described further on in this report it is considered unlikely that 
any such opportunities will arise in the short to medium term.  
 
The new lending arrangements introduced in November 2020, in addition to lowering interest rates, also 
tightened the rules governing local authorities, including MCAs, access to PWLB borrowing. The new 
rules do not allow access to PWLB where a local authority intends to buy commercial investment assets 
held primarily or partially to generate a profit for yield within its capital plans at any point in the next three 
years regardless of whether the transaction would notionally be financed from a source other than 
PWLB. The definition of commercial investment assets in this case is that contained within MHCLG 
Statutory Guidance on Local Government investments and includes, for example, investment property 
portfolios whose main purpose is to generate a profit.  
 
The MCA Group’s investment property portfolio is a legacy of bus deregulation and comprises former 
transport assets which are not being actively managed to achieve commercial returns. Accordingly, they 
are not considered to fall within the definition of commercial investment assets under the Statutory 
Guidance. This will however be kept under review should there be any plans to expand or diversify the 
portfolio. 
 
 
 
  

Page 197



 

 

Section B 
 
Capital Expenditure Plans and Prudential Indicators: 2020/21 to 2023/24 
 
Indicator 1 - Group Capital expenditure estimates  
 
The table below summarises the MCA Group’s capital investment plans for the forthcoming year and 
indicative estimates for the following two years.  
 
The estimates are based on known commitments at this point in time. It is highly likely that these 
commitments will change as new Government funding streams announced in the Spending Review 
come on-line, and the MCA begins to shape its own gainshare funded investment strategy. The 
estimates may also materially change should the MCA be successful in its Mass Transit Renewals bid 
into Government. The estimate below reflect known commitments: 
 

1. Group Capital Expenditure Estimates  2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

  Actual  Forecast  Estimate  Estimate  Estimate  

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

 Local Growth Fund  £39,531 £43,786 £10,502     

 Brownfield Fund  £0 £1,907 £20,000 £8,112  £8,112 

 Getting Building Fund  £0 £5,155 £28,445     

 Active Travel Emergency Fund (Capital)  £0 £603 £0     

 Active Travel (phase-2)  £0 £0 £4,369     

 Highways Capital Maintenance  £13,058 £13,552 £8,718     

 Pothole & Challenge Fund  £0 £3,401 £6,974     

 SYPTE (excluding ITB & TCF)  £8,098 £6,957 £2,463     

 Integrated Transport Block  £9,531 £8,668 £8,746     

Transforming Cities Fund - tranche 1 £1,973 £2,271 £0     

Transforming Cities Fund - tranche 2 £0 £4,534 £61,401 £100,370   

 Gainshare Capital  £0 £5,500 £33,980     

 Parkway Widening A630  £0 £0 £40,160     

 ICT and Asset Renewals  £0 £411 £910     

 BDR Transport Capital Pot  £2,607 £472 £0     

Low Emission Buses  £1,293 £0 £0     

Identified New Funding Streams:      

Levelling Up Fund          

Shared Prosperity Fund          

Inter-City Transport Fund           

            

Total Capital Investment  £76,091 £97,217 £226,668 £108,482  £8,112 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 198



 

 

Indicator 2 – Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) estimates 
 
The table below shows how the planned capital expenditure is expected to be financed.  Any capital 
expenditure not funded by capital grants, capital receipts, or revenue contributions, results in a need for 
borrowing. 
 

2. Group Capital Financing Estimates  2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

  Actual  Forecast  Estimate  Estimate  Estimate  

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Government Grant - LGF  £38,843 £43,239 £0 £0   

Government Grants - BrownField Fund £0 £1,907 £20,000 £8,112  £8,112 

Government Grants - Getting Building Fund  £0 £5,155 £28,445 £0   

Government Grants - transport  £25,855 £33,029 £130,368 £100,370   

Gainshare - capital  £0 £5,500 £33,980 £0   

Capital Receipts £2,152 £958 £11,412 £0   

Earmarked reserves £0 £0 £0 £0   

Revenue contributions  £0 £0 £0 £0   

SYPTE - other grant funding  £3,071 £2,722 £2,383 £0   

Borrowing £6,170 £4,707 £80 £0   

            

            

Net borrowing needed for the year  £6,170 £4,707 £80 £0  £0 
 
 
The borrowing need in 2020/21 and 2021/22 stems from the decision taken in 2018/19 to borrow up to 
£23.3m over the 3-year period 2018/19 to 2020/21 to support capital investment in South Yorkshire 
transport schemes (Rotherham Interchange, re-railing and the transport capital pot).  
 
The cumulative borrowing need over the period from 2018/19 to 2020/21 is forecast to be £23.1m and 
therefore within the overall amount approved. The revenue implications of this borrowing have been 
factored into the 2021/22 South Yorkshire transport revenue budget approved by the MCA at its meeting 
on 25 January 2021. 
 
As noted above under the section on Borrowing Strategy, the MCA will be negotiating with HM Treasury 
and MHCLG on a borrowing cap for non transport purposes. This has not been factored into the table 
above at this stage pending the outcome of the negotiations being known.  
 
Based on the above capital investment plans and capital financing proposals, the Group’s overall 
forecast underlying need to borrow or Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is forecast to change as 
follows: 

Page 199



 

 

 
 
 
Indicator 3 - Amount of external debt against the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)  
 
The purpose of this indicator is to assess the extent to which borrowing is only being used in the medium 
to longer term to finance capital expenditure. The benchmark recommended by CIPFA is that the 
estimated amount of gross debt should not exceed the estimated CFR for the current and following two 
years. 
 

 
 
 
Historically, gross debt has exceeded CFR because MRP has been charged annually to the transport 
levy to write down the CFR but no loan repayments had taken place. As illustrated in the table above, 
this situation is now rebalancing as debt matures and significant loan repayments are being made. 
 
The repayment of borrowing is also drawing down on the cash investments built up in previous years for 
the repayment of debt with the consequence that the level of investments is also forecast to fall - see 
Investment Strategy - Table 2. 
 
 

Indicator 4 - Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 

This indicator is a measure of the affordability of decisions taken to finance capital investment borrowing 
in the context of the Group’s overall financial sustainability. 

2. Group Capital Financing Requirement 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Actual Forecast Estimate Estimate Estimate 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Opening CFR £113,045 £116,054 £117,114 £113,334 £109,519

movement in CFR 

Additional borrowing requirement  £6,170 £4,707 £80 £0 £0

MRP -£3,161 -£3,647 -£3,860 -£3,815 -£3,778

Capital receipts set aside for the repayment of 

debt £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Other adjustments £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Closing CFR £116,054 £117,114 £113,334 £109,519 £105,741

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Actual Forecast Estimate Estimate Estimate 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

External Debt

   -MCA Loans £25,660 £25,660 £25,000 £25,000 £25,000

   -Expected change in MCA Loans £0 -£660 £0 £0 -£4,000

   -SYPTE Debt £161,375 £161,375 £108,375 £100,400 £92,400

   -Expected change in SYPTE Loans £0 -£53,000 -£7,975 -£8,000 -£46,400

Gross Debt £187,035 £133,375 £125,400 £117,400 £67,000

The Capital Financing Requirement £116,054 £117,114 £113,334 £109,519 £105,741

Debt in excess of CFR £70,981 £16,261 £12,066 £7,881 -£38,741

Group external borrowing 

Page 200



 

 

 

Interest payable is principally fixed rate PWLB borrowing. The reduction in the amount of interest 
payable is therefore a function of PWLB debt being repaid as it matures. A significant amount of PWLB 
debt is scheduled to be repaid over the period to 2023/24 as illustrated in Indicator 3, hence, the 
downward trend.   

The return on investments is a function of the average level of treasury investments and target returns 
which are expected to be achieved. The reduction in investment income reflects the fact that investments 
are being used to settle loan repayments as they fall due in accordance with the borrowing strategy 
thereby reducing the level of core funds. The expected returns on investments are also expected to 
decline as long term investments on which decent returns are currently being earned unwind - see 
Investment Strategy Table 2.    

External Debt – borrowing limits – Indicators 5 and 6  

There are two indicators on borrowing limits: the authorised limit and operational boundary 

The authorised limit represents a control on the maximum amount of debt the Group can borrow for 
capital investment and temporary cash flow purposes. Under Section 3 of the Local Government Act 
2003 this limit is agreed by the MCA and cannot be revised without that body’s agreement. 

The authorised limit reflects the level of external debt which, while not desired, could be afforded in the 
short term, but is not sustainable in the long term. 

The operational boundary is the maximum amount of money the Group expects to borrow during the 
financial year. It acts as a useful warning if breached during the year that underlying spend may be 
higher than expected or income lower than budgeted. 

 

 

 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Actual Forecast Estimate Estimate Estimate 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Interest £13,136 £9,554 £8,359 £7,762 £5,555

MRP £3,161 £3,647 £3,859 £3,815 £3,777

Less Investment Income -£2,000 -£1,189 -£870 -£496 -£386

Net Financing Costs £14,297 £12,012 £11,348 £11,081 £8,946

Income - transport levy £54,365 £54,365 £54,365 £54,365 £54,365

Finance Costs/Unrestricted                                

Revenue Income %
26.3% 22.6% 21.2% 20.2% 16.5%

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue 

streams

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Actual Forecast Estimate Estimate Estimate 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Loans £228,500 £228,500 £673,500 £665,500 £657,500

Other Long Term Liabilities £11,500 £11,500 £11,000 £11,000 £10,500

Total £240,000 £240,000 £684,500 £676,500 £668,000

Authorised Limit

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Actual Forecast Estimate Estimate Estimate 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Loans £213,500 £213,500 £658,500 £650,500 £642,500

Other Long Term Liabilities £11,500 £11,500 £11,000 £11,000 £10,500

Total £225,000 £225,000 £669,500 £661,500 £653,000

Operational Boundary

Page 201



 

 

Both the Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary allow for up to a £500m increase in borrowing 
capacity to accelerate delivery of the Gainshare funded Investment Programme by bringing forward all 
uncommitted Gainshare capital that the MCA is due to receive in years 3 to 30 so that it can be invested 
upfront in the near term. The figure of £500m represents the upper limit of what is potentially affordable 
to enable the associated debt financing costs to be contained within the overall 30 year Gainshare 
allocation. It will also be subject to the borrowing cap that the MCA agrees with HM Treasury and 
MHCLG for non-transport purposes. 

In addition, the authorised limit allows for an additional £40m headroom over the maximum expected 
amount of gross debt in 2021/22 (excluding the £500m referred to above) - the operational boundary 
allows for an additional £25m headroom. The headroom provides capacity for short term temporary 
borrowing to manage the MCA’s cash position rather than having to realise higher yield longer term 
investments early before they are due to mature.  

The MCA has ready access to temporary borrowing should the need arise through local authority to local 
authority lending. Currently, borrowing rates in the local authority to local authority market are around 
0.1% to 0.25% for one to two year borrowing. In this context, having headroom of up to £40m is 
considered affordable in the short term.  

The Other Long-Term Liabilities set out in the table below represents the PFI liability in respect of 
Doncaster Interchange.  

Major changes to local authority accounting rules under IFRS 16 in respect of accounting for leasing may 
lead to “right of use” leased assets being brought on balance sheet which would increase the value of 
Other Long-Term Liabilities. The new accounting rules were due to come into effect in 2020/21 but 
implementation has now been deferred until the start of 2022/23. Should the introduction of the new 
accounting rules lead to other long term liabilities being brought on balance sheet on 1 April 2022 this 
will be reflected in the 2022/23 annual treasury management strategy.  

Indicator 7 – Maturity structure of borrowing  

The maturity profile is important in ensuring there is sufficient liquidity to meet loan repayments as they 
fall due. 

Maturity of Group borrowing: 

Amount     

£'000 % 

2020/21 53,000 28% 

2021/22 7,975 4% 

2022/23 8,000 4% 

2023/24 50,400 27% 

2024/25 4,000 2% 

2025/26 4,000 2% 

2026/27 4,000 2% 

2027/28 22,000 12% 

2028/29 0 0% 

2029/30 4,000 2% 

2030/31 4,000 2% 

2043 to 2056 25,000 13% 

Total £186,375 100% 
 
 

Page 202



 

 

The level of core funds available up to and including 2023/24 (see Investment Strategy - Table 2) 
indicates that there are sufficient internal funds to meet loan repayments in the medium term without the 
need for external borrowing.  
 
In the period 2024/25 to 2026/27 the amount raised as MRP through the levy will more or less match the 
loan repayments of £4m p.a in each of these years. Hence, it is not until 2027/28 that there is a potential 
need for external borrowing. This is on the assumption that: 
 

 Borrowing requirement - the net borrowing need is as set out in Indicator 2 

 Market loans - there is no early repayment of market loans (considered very unlikely in the 
prevailing low interest rate environment - see Debt Rescheduling below)  

 

Debt Rescheduling 

Opportunities for debt rescheduling depend on the difference between the repayment rates on early 
redemption and the interest rates on existing debt. 
 
Where repayment rates on early redemption are lower, a premium (cost) is payable. Where repayment 
rates are higher, a discount (saving) can be obtained.  
 
In the present low interest rate environment, PWLB rates for early repayment are currently in the range 
minus 0.2% to 1.2%. This is significantly lower than rates on the Group’s existing PWLB debt portfolio 
which range from 4.25% to 8.50%. Early repayment would therefore incur a very substantial premium.  

The interest rates on the Group’s market loans range from 4.50% to 4.95%. As these are considerably 
higher than the prevailing rates it is considered unlikely that the lender would exercise their call option  
which would trigger an opportunity to repay the debt early and refinance it by cheaper PWLB debt.  

The prospect of refinancing or paying off early some of the underlying PFI debt relating to Doncaster 
Interchange in order to reduce future unitary payments over the remainder of the PFI term is discussed 
at the regular review meetings with the PFI Operator. No such opportunities have presented themselves 
to date.   

Borrowing in advance of need 

The MCA will not borrow more than, or in advance of, its needs purely in order to profit from the 
investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in advance will be within forward 
approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates and will be considered carefully to ensure that value 
for money can be demonstrated and that the MCA can ensure the security of such funds.  

Risks associated with any borrowing in advance will be subject to prior appraisal and reporting through 
the mid-year treasury report or annual report on treasury management.  

Financial guarantee  
 
The MCA has a wholly owned subsidiary, the SCR Financial Interventions Holding Company whose sole 
purpose is to hold finance to support the delivery of the LGF programme. The company does not trade, 
is controlled by the MCA Executive and only has intercompany transactions with the MCA.  

Under Companies Act legislation, the company can be made exempt from the requirement for audit, and 
therefore save the public purse, if the MCA as parent provides a financial guarantee in the required 
format stating the financial year to which it relates.  

The effect of the guarantee is that the MCA guarantees all outstanding liabilities to which the company is 
subject at the end of the financial year to which the guarantee relates until they are satisfied in full; and, 
the guarantee is enforceable against the MCA by any person to whom the company is liable in respect of 

Page 203



 

 

those liabilities. However, as the company’s only liability is to the MCA, there is no risk to the MCA 
group. 

It is therefore proposed that the MCA provides a financial guarantee in respect of the 2020/21 financial 
year and that this remains in force if and until such time that the company transacts with parties other 
than the MCA. As the MCA’s Financial Regulations allow the Group Finance Director to enter into any 
borrowing, investment and financing arrangements on behalf of the Authority compliant with the Treasury 
Management Policy, it is recommended that delegated authority be given to the Group Finance Director 
to provide the financial guarantee on the MCA’s behalf for filing with Companies House. 
 
Use of external advisors  

Link Asset services have been appointed as treasury advisors to the MCA to provide technical guidance 

and support on treasury matters, including providing a creditworthiness service on financial institutions 

and other potential counterparties.  

The MCA also has a service level agreement with Sheffield City Council to provide day to day banking 

and treasury services including managing the MCA’s investment portfolio on its behalf. 

Where external advisors are appointed to provide specialist skills and resources, officers will ensure that 

the terms of their appointment and methods by which their value will be assessed are properly agreed 

and documented.   

Page 204



 

 

Section C 
 
 
Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement  
  
This policy statement has been prepared having regard to the Revised Statutory MRP Guidance issued 
in 2018. This limited the maximum number of years over which MRP can be charged to 50 years unless 
a suitably qualified professional advisor advises that the related asset will deliver service functionality for 
more than 50 years. 
 
In practice, this change will have little or no practical effect on the existing profile of MRP charges. 
 
The broad aim of MRP is for an authority to make a prudent provision by charging revenue over time to 
reduce its Capital Financing Requirement. In doing so, an authority should align the period over which 
they charge MRP to one that is commensurate with the period over which its capital assets / expenditure 
provides benefits either in terms of service potential or economic return. 
 
Regulation 28 of the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 [as 
amended] gives local authorities flexibility in how they calculate MRP, providing the calculation is 
‘prudent’. In calculating a prudent provision, local authorities are required to have regard to statutory 
guidance on determining MRP which offers a number of options for meeting this requirement.  
 
In addition, an authority may charge an amount greater than the statutory minimum should it wish to do 
so. The MCA has not elected to charge in excess of the minimum statutory amount to date and has no 
plans to do so in 2021/22.  
 
The MCA is recommended to approve the following MRP statement for financial year 2021/22: 
MRP on the residual Capital Financing Requirement at the end of 2015/16 relating to capital expenditure 
incurred before 1st April 2008, is being charged on a flat line basis over fifty years. This is considered a 
more prudent approach to the “regulatory method” adopted up to and including 2015/16, as it better 
aligns the charges to revenue to the benefits the related assets deliver.   
 
MRP on capital expenditure incurred since 1st April 2008, financed by unsupported borrowing will be 
based on the ‘asset life method’. This means that MRP will be based on the estimated useful life of the 
assets created. The MCA will apply a maximum life of 50 years to new assets unless a suitably qualified 
professional advisor advises that an asset will deliver service functionality for more than 50 years or 
where an asset is a lease or PFI asset, and the length of the lease/PFI contract exceeds 50 years. 
MRP will commence in the year after an asset becomes operational to align charges to revenue to the 
economic benefits generated from those assets. 
 
MRP on capital loans and capital grants awarded to partners and third parties financed by borrowing will 
be charged over the useful life of the assets concerned. 
 
MRP on capital expenditure on assets not owned by the MCA or on assets for use by others will similarly 
be charged over the useful life of the assets concerned. MRP on expenditure capitalised by virtue of a 
statutory direction, repayment of capital grants or loans received, or acquisition of share capital, will be 
charged over a period not exceeding the maximum period specified by regulation. 
 
If, as noted in the section about the Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary, the MCA agrees 
increase its borrowing capacity by up to £500m to accelerate delivery of the Gainshare Funded 
Investment Programme, Gainshare capital will be applied in the first instance to meet the requirement to 
set aside an amount to repay debt in lieu of charging revenue. 

 
  

Page 205



 

 

Section D 
 
Investment strategy  
 
The MCA’s investment policy has regard to the following:  
 

 MHCLG’s Guidance on Local Government Investments  

 CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance 
Notes 2017  

 CIPFA Treasury Management Guidance Notes 2018   
 
The MCA’s investment priorities will be security first, portfolio liquidity second and then yield (return). The MCA 
will aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on its investments commensurate with proper levels of security 
and liquidity and with the MCA’s risk appetite.  
 
MHCLG and CIPFA place a high priority on the management of risk. Accordingly, the MCA has adopted 
a prudent approach to managing risk and defines its risk appetite by the following means:  
 

 Minimum acceptable credit criteria are applied in order to generate a list of highly creditworthy 
counterparties.  This also enables diversification and thus avoidance of concentration risk. The 
key ratings used to monitor counterparties are the short term and long-term ratings.   

 

 A defined list of types of investment instruments that the treasury management team are 
authorised to use. These fall into two categories - ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments.  
 

 Specified investments are those with a high level of credit quality and subject to a 
maturity limit of one year or have less than a year left to run to maturity if they were 
originally classified as being non-specified investments solely due to the maturity period 
exceeding one year.  

 Non-specified investments are those with less high credit quality, may be for periods in 
excess of one year, and/or are more complex instruments which require greater 
consideration by members and officers before being authorised for use.  

 

 Lending limits (amounts and maturity) for each counterparty will be set through applying the 
matrix in Table 4 

 
 A limit on investments which are invested for longer than 365 days - see Table 2 
 

At the advent of the Covid 19 pandemic the Bank of England took emergency action in March 2020 to 
reduce the base rate to first 0.25% and then to a historic low of 0.10%. This, together with the 
Government’s fiscal stimulus package, has resulted in returns on traditional types of investment being 
suppressed. This is likely to remain the case in the medium term as illustrated in the table in the section 
below on Prospects for Interest Rates. 
 
In view of this and in accordance with the 2020/21 annual treasury management strategy, preliminary 
discussions have taken place with the Group’s treasury advisors and bankers on options to diversify into 
other types of pooled investment funds including, for example: 
 

 Short dated bond funds (suitable for investors with a minimum time horizon of 2 to 3 years)  

 Property Funds (suitable for investors with a minimum time horizon of at least 5 years) 

 Multi-asset income funds (suitable for investors with a minimum time horizon of at least 5 years) 
 
These types of investment can generate a higher rate of return but inevitably at a greater risk than 
traditional types of investment.  A comprehensive understanding of the varying degrees of risks 

Page 206



 

 

associated with these types of investment is therefore required to assess against the potential rewards 
having regard to appropriate professional advice from external advisors. 
 
Given the risks and uncertainties in the current economic climate, the focus for the time being at least, 
has been and will continue to be on maximising returns from traditional types of investment rather than 
on diversification. 
 
Investment Performance  
 
Over the course of 2020/21 in the 10 months to January 2021, the average size of the investment 
portfolio was £260m with the weighted average return on investments falling from 1.07% in April 2020 to 
0.50% in January 2021 and averaging 0.70% for the 10 months to date. 
 
The types of investment included within the investment portfolio are the more traditional ones held by 
local authorities, namely: 
 

 Deposits with local authorities through the local authority to local authority market; 

 Call accounts with reputable banks with a high credit rating, and;  

 Low volatility low risk highly liquid Money Market Funds which provide for instant access. 
  
The returns on all of these types of investment have declined over the year with the average return now 
being c. 0.30% on local authority deposits (excluding longer term investments), 0.35% to 0.40% on call 
accounts and 0.02% on Money Market Funds.  
 
The reason for the weighted average return for the 10 months to date of 0.70% being higher than the 
returns on traditional investments is due to the higher returns being earned on longer term fixed interest 
local authority deposits of more than 365 days duration. As at January 2021 there were £85m of such 
longer investments on which the average return was 1.70%.   
 
Table 1 - Prospects for interest rates 
 

 
 
As shown in the forecast table above, no increase in Bank Rate is expected in the forecast table over the 
next three years as economic recovery is expected to be only gradual and, therefore, prolonged. 
 
Returns on investments are expected to remain suppressed at 0.10% on investments of shorter duration 
and 0.20% on investments of 12 months. 
 
On the positive side, PWLB interest rates on borrowing are expected to rise only marginally over the next 
three years. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 207



 

 

 
 
 
Table 2 - Core funds and balances and longer term investments of more than 365 days 
 
 

 
 
The level of core funds available beyond 2023/24 will remain reasonably constant until 2027/28 when (as 
illustrated in Indicator 7) £22m of borrowing is due to be repaid.  
 
 

 
 
The table above shows the estimated amount available to invest in longer term investments of more than 
365 days duration based on the estimated level of core funds available (excluding short term cash and 
working capital) measured against the existing longer term investment portfolio as at January 2021. 
 
It shows that some capacity remains for further longer term investments in the next three years but that 
the position will now need to be managed carefully as the headroom is down to an estimated £12.5m in 
2022/23  
 
 
Table 3 - Target return on investments (Yield)  
 
Using the prospects for interest rates, returns on longer term investments and core funds available to 
investment set out above, the target return on the investment portfolio as a whole (short and long term) 
is as follows: 
 

 
 
 
Security  
 
The risk of default varies according to the type of investment. Local authorities are assumed to have a 
zero default rate. The default risk attached to other counterparties depends on their creditworthiness and 
duration of investment. The MCA’s treasury advisors provide historic default rates for different types of 
counterparty as a guide. The risk of default on non local authority investments in the investment portfolio 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Actual Forecast Estimate Estimate Estimate 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Reserves and balances - revenue and capital £107,290 £131,301 £84,035 £72,297 £66,179

Cash set aside to repay debt £70,981 £16,261 £12,146 £7,961 -£38,661

Sub - Total £178,271 £147,562 £96,181 £80,258 £27,518

Short term cash / working capital  / capital 

grant unapplied £39,200 £121,778 £77,259 £34,007 £25,000

Total £217,471 £269,340 £173,440 £114,265 £52,518

Core funds 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Actual Forecast Estimate Estimate Estimate 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Maximum - end of the year £90,000 £96,000 £80,000 £27,500 £33,000

Existing long term investments £60,000 £85,000 £63,000 £15,000 £15,000

Balance available to invest £30,000 £11,000 £17,000 £12,500 £18,000

Investment greater than 365 days

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Actual Forecast Estimate Estimate Estimate 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Target return on treasury investments 1.22 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7

Returns on investments  

Page 208



 

 

as at January 2021 using historic default rates provided by the MCA’s treasury advisors at the end of 
2019/20 is c. 0.013% or £8k.  
 
This is considered an acceptable level of risk against an average portfolio of £260m. 
 
Liquidity  
 
A balance of £25m will be maintained in highly liquid instant access investments / the bank to manage 
day to day treasury activity. 
 
Creditworthiness policy  
 

The MCA has adopted the creditworthiness service provided by its external treasury management 
advisors to manage counterparty risk. 
 
The service involves a risk weighted scoring of the three main credit rating agencies to arrive at a colour 
coding system to recommend the maximum duration of investments. This is summarised in the table 
below: 
 

Colour Band Duration 

Yellow 5 years * 

Dark pink 5 years for Ultra Short Dated Bond Funds with a credit score of 1.25 

Light pink 5 years for Ultra Short Dated Bond Funds with a credit score of 1.5 

Purple  2 years 

Blue  1 year   (only applies to nationalised/semi nationalised UK Banks) 

Orange 1 year 

Red  6 months 

Green  100 days   

No colour  not to be used  

 
The Lending limits (amounts and duration) for each counterparty are unchanged from 2020/21.  
 
At the foot of the matrix table, other investment options have been introduced.  These include, for example, 
short dated bond funds, property funds and multi asset income funds. No limits have been specified for 
these new investment types as yet, subject to further investigation into the risks and suitability of these 
options.  
 
Table 4 - Lending Limits 
  

Colour (and long 
term rating where 
applicable) 

Maximum sum 
and/or % 
Limit (per 
institution) 

Time 
Limit 

Banks * Yellow 100% 5 years 

Banks  Purple £30m 2 years 

Banks  Orange £30m 1 year 

Banks – part nationalised** Blue £50m 1 year 

Banks (UK Banks) Red £20m 6 months 

Banks (non-UK Banks) Red £15m 6 months 

Banks  Green £10m 100 days 

Banks  No colour Not to be used 

Page 209



 

 

 

Colour (and long 
term rating where 
applicable) 

Maximum sum 
and/or % 
Limit (per 
institution) 

Time 
Limit 

MCA’s banker (Barclays) in the 
event of the bank being ‘no 
colour’ 

- 
100 % 5 days*** 

DMADF AAA 100% 6 months 

Local authorities and other 
suitable public bodies or bodies 
delivering public services 
funded by the government 

N/A 

£50m 10 years 

Money market funds – CNAV 
**** 

AAA 
100 % Liquid 

Money market funds – LVNAV 
***** 

AAA 
100 % Liquid 

Money market funds – VNAV 
****** 

AAA 
100 % Liquid 

Ultra short dated bond funds 
with a credit score of 1.25 

Dark pink / AAA 
100 % Liquid 

Ultra short dated bond funds 
with a credit score of 1.5 

Light pink / AAA 
100 % Liquid 

Short dated bond funds    

Property Funds    

Multi Income Asset Funds     

* Please note: the yellow colour category is for UK Government debt, or its equivalent, constant net asset value money market 
funds and collateralised deposits where the collateral is UK Government debt. 
** When placing deposits with part nationalised banks the MCA will take care to review when it expects the UK Government to 
divest its interest in the institution, and the impact this move would have on the MCA’s view of the institutions security. 
*** to cover period to next working day allowing weekends and bank holidays such as Easter 
**** CNAV refers to Constant Net Asset Value Money Market Funds when investors will be able to purchase and redeem at a 
constant Net Asset Value(£1 in / £1 out) 
***** LVNAV refers to Low Volatility Net Asset Value Money Market Funds when investors will be able to purchase and redeem 
at a stable Net Asset Value to two decimal places, provided the fund is managed to certain restrictions 
****** VNAV refers to Variable Net Asset Value Money Market Funds where the price may vary 

 
The MCA is alerted to changes to ratings through the creditworthiness service provided by its external 
treasury advisors.   
If a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer meeting the MCA’s minimum 
criteria, its further use as a new investment will be withdrawn immediately. Any existing investment will 
be redeemed as soon as it is economically viable. 
Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed under the ‘specified’ and ‘non-
specified’ investments categories. Counterparty limits will be as set through the MCA’s treasury 
management practices.  
 
Country limits 
The MCA has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from countries with a minimum 
sovereign credit rating of “AA-“ from Fitch. The list of countries that qualify using this credit criteria as at 
the date of this report are as shown below.  Should ratings change, this list will be added to, or deducted 
from, by officers in accordance with this policy. 

AAA                      

 Australia 

 Denmark 

 Germany 

 Luxembourg 

Page 210



 

 

 Netherlands  

 Norway 

 Singapore 

 Sweden 

 Switzerland 

 

AA+ 

 Canada    

 Finland 

 U.S.A. 

 

 AA 

 Abu Dhabi (UAE) 

 France 

 

AA- 

 Belgium 

 Hong Kong 

 Qatar 

 U.K. 

 
Specified and Non specified investments  
The distinction between specified and non specified investments is important because of the additional 
procedures that need to be undertaken in considering the risk attached to non specified investments.  
 
Specified Investments 
Statutory Guidance on Investments defines specified investments as ones having the following 
characteristics: 

 Denominated in sterling 

 The duration is 12 months or less 

 The investment is high quality or is with the UK Government or a local authority  
 
High quality is determined by reference to the matrix table included in the creditworthiness policy. 
 
 
Table 5 - Limits on Specified Investments 
 
 

 

 Minimum 
credit 
criteria / 
colour band 

** Max % of total 
investments / £ 
limit per 
institution 

Max. maturity period 

Money Market Funds CNAV AAA 100% Liquid 

Money Market Funds LNVAV AAA 100% Liquid 

Money Market Funds VNAV AAA 100% Liquid 

Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds 
with a credit score of 1.25  

AAA 100% Liquid 

Page 211



 

 

Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds with a credit 

score of 1.5   
AAA 100% Liquid 

Local authorities yellow 100% 12 months  

Term deposits with banks and building societies 
or housing associations 

Blue 
Orange 

Red 
Green 

No Colour 

As per lending 
limits table 

12 months  
12 months  
 6 months 
100 days 
Not for use 

CDs or corporate bonds with banks and building 
societies 

Blue 
Orange 

Red 
Green 

No Colour 

As per lending 
limits table 

12 months  
12 months  
 6 months 
100 days 
Not for use 

UK government debt  Yellow 100% 12 months 

  
Non specified investments 
These are any investments which do not meet the specified investment criteria.  
As far as the MCA is concerned, Non-specified investments represent those with a duration of more than 
one year, and/or are more complex instruments which require greater consideration by members and 
officers before being authorised for use.  
 
The table below illustrates the types of non specified investment that are currently being invested in or 
could be considered at a future date. The list is not however intended to be exhaustive and may be 
expanded as other types of investment are investigated.  
 
Table 6 - Limits on Non Specified Investments 
 
  

Duration of more than one year  
* Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

** Max % of total 
investments 

Max. maturity period 

Term deposits – local authorities  N/A 100% 10 years  

Term deposits – banks and building 
societies  

Purple £30m  2 years  

UK Government Debt  Yellow 100% 5 years 

Multi asset income funds     

Property Funds     

Short dated bond funds     

 

Page 212



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
1. 

 
Introduction 
 

 1.1 The Audit and Standards Committee work plan for 2020/21, is required to facilitate the 
Committee in meeting its accountabilities. 
 

 1.2 The work plan is reviewed quarterly to ensure it remains on schedule. 
 

2. Proposal 
 

 2.1 The work plan is attached at appendix A. This document aims to ensure the Audit and 
Standards Committee are appropriately sighted on key governance issues and activities in 
a timely manner and ensure that items relevant to their statutory accountabilities are 
appropriately scheduled. 
 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1 A work plan is required to ensure the Audit and Standards Committee is able to meet its 
accountabilities. 
 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
None. 
 

Purpose of Report 

This report presents the Audit and Standards Committee work plan for 2020/21.  

Freedom of Information & Section 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 

Under the Freedom of Information Act this paper and any appendices will be made available under the 
Mayoral Combined Authority Publication Scheme. This scheme commits the Authority to make 
information about how decisions are made available to the public as part of its normal business 
activities. 
Recommendations 

Members consider the work plan for 2020/21 and agree any changes or additional items to be 
scheduled. 

Audit and Standards Committee 

18th March 2021 

Work Plan for 2020/21 

Page 213

Agenda Item 20



 

 

 
 4.2 Legal 

None. 
 

 4.3 Risk Management 
Failure to consider this annual work plan could result in ineffective controls of the MCA / 
LEP. 
 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  
There are no equality, diversity or social inclusion implications. 
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 None. 
 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 6.1  Appendix A – Work Plan  
 
REPORT AUTHOR  Claire James 
POST  Senior Governance & Compliance Officer 

Officer responsible Ruth Adams 
Organisation Sheffield City Region 

Email Ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 
Telephone 0114 220 3400 

 

Page 214

mailto:Ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


Appendix A 

Date Agenda items 

Thursday 10th June 
2021 

**Annual review of Code of Corporate Governance 
AGR Findings and Draft AGS 
Draft Accounts 
2020/21 Internal Audit Annual Plan Progress Report 
Strategic Risk Monitoring 
Internal Audit Reports – tbc 
 
Detailed progress report on PTE/MCA Integration (action from 
Jan 21) 
 

Training  Scrutinising the Accounts 
Treasury Management  

Thursday 15th July 
2021 

Final AGS 
Final Accounts 
IA Annual Report  
Internal Audit Reports - tbc 
Strategic Risk Monitoring 
 

 

**deferred from March to June 

 

Page 215



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 21st January 2021
	8 Actions from the previous meeting
	9 Economic Impact of the Coronavirus Pandemic on the Economy
	10 Progress Update on the MCA's Response to the Bus Review
	Annex A - MCA’s agreed response to the Bus Review

	11 Assurance and Monitoring and Evaluation Frameworks
	Appendix 1 - Draft Assurance Framework
	Appendix 2 - Draft Monitoring and Evaluation Framework

	14 Internal Audit Plan 20/21 Progress Report
	Internal Audit Progress Report March 2021

	15 Internal Audit Reports
	Appendix 1 - AMP Technology Centre Final Report

	16 Strategic Risk Monitoring
	Appendix A - Strategy Focus Risks Mar 21
	Strategy Focus

	Appendix B - Organisational Management Risks Mar 21
	Org M'Mt

	Appendix C - Budget & Fin Management Risks Mar 21
	Budget & Fin M'Mt

	Appendix D - Programme Management Risks Mar 21
	Prog M'Mt

	Appendix E - Governance and Compliance Risks Mar 21
	Gov & Comp M'Mt


	17 20/21 Annual Governance Review - initial findings
	Appendix A - Summary of Code of Corporate Governance commitments impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic
	Appendix B - 20-21 Governance Improvement Plan Update

	18 Internal Audit Recommendation Tracking Report
	Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report March 2021

	19 Draft Treasury Management Strategy
	Appendix 1 - Treasury Management Strategy 2021-22

	20 Work Plan
	Appendix 1 - Work Plan




